

1. Public Notice 5/10 And 5/24

Documents:

[5-10-21 AND 5-24-21.PDF](#)

2. Meeting Minutes 5/24

Documents:

[FULL LEGISLATIVE SESSION, 05-24-21.PDF](#)

3. Legislative Calendar To The May 24, 2021 County Legislative Full Meeting

Documents:

[5-24-21 CALENDAR -.DOCX](#)

4. Proposed Local Laws

Documents:

[PROPOSED LL CI 175-21.PDF](#)
[PROPOSED LL CI 176-21.PDF](#)
[PROPOSED LL CI151-21.PDF](#)
[PROPOSED LL CI159-21.PDF](#)
[PROPOSED LL CI 143-21.PDF](#)

5. Proposed Ordinances

Documents:

[PROPOSED ORD. 47-21.PDF](#)
[PROPOSED ORD. 48-21.PDF](#)
[PROPOSED ORD. 49-21.PDF](#)
[PROPOSED ORD. 126-20.PDF](#)
[PROPOSED ORD. 45-21.PDF](#)
[PROPOSED ORD. 46-21.PDF](#)

6. Proposed Resolutions

Documents:

[PROPOSED RES. 81-21.PDF](#)
[PROPOSED RES. 82-21.PDF](#)
[PROPOSED RES. 83-21.PDF](#)
[PROPOSED RES. 73-21.PDF](#)
[PROPOSED RES. 74-21.PDF](#)
[PROPOSED RES. 75-21.PDF](#)
[PROPOSED RES. 89-21.PDF](#)
[PROPOSED RES. 168-20.PDF](#)
[PROPOSED RES. 84-21.PDF](#)
[PROPOSED RES. 85-21.PDF](#)
[PROPOSED RES. 86-21.PDF](#)
[PROPOSED RES. 87-21.PDF](#)
[PROPOSED RES. 88-21.PDF](#)

[PROPOSED RES. 76-21.PDF](#)
[PROPOSED RES. 77-21.PDF](#)
[PROPOSED RES. 78-21.PDF](#)
[PROPOSED RES. 79-21.PDF](#)
[PROPOSED RES. 80-21.PDF](#)

7. Emergencies

Documents:

[ER 3-21.PDF](#)
[ER 4-21.PDF](#)
[ER 5-21.PDF](#)
[RESOLUTION 89-A-2021.PDF](#)
[RESOLUTION 89-B-2021.PDF](#)
[RESOLUTION 89-C-2021.PDF](#)

PUBLIC NOTICE

PLEASE TAKE NOTICE THAT THE NASSAU COUNTY LEGISLATURE WILL HOLD COMMITTEE MEETINGS OF THE LEGISLATURE ON MONDAY, MAY 10, 2021 STARTING AT 1:00 PM AND WILL HOLD A FULL SESSION OF THE LEGISLATURE ON MONDAY, MAY 24, 2021 STARTING AT 1:00 PM IN THE PETER J. SCHMITT MEMORIAL LEGISLATIVE CHAMBER, 1ST FLOOR, THEODORE ROOSEVELT EXECUTIVE AND LEGISLATIVE BUILDING, 1550 FRANKLIN AVENUE, MINEOLA, NEW YORK 11501.

FULL LEGISLATIVE SESSION.....1:00 PM

COMMITTEES	TIME
RULES	1:00PM
PUBLIC SAFETY	1:00PM
PLANNING, DEVELOPMENT & THE ENVIRONMENT	1:00PM
TOWNS, VILLAGES AND CITIES	1:00PM
ECONOMIC AND COMMUNITY DEVELOPMENT, LABOR AND TRANSPORTATION COMMITTEE	1:00PM
PUBLIC WORKS AND PARKS	1:00PM
HEALTH AND SOCIAL SERVICES	1:00PM
GOVERNMENT SERVICES AND OPERATIONS	1:00PM
MINORITY AFFAIRS	1:00PM
VETERANS AND SENIOR AFFAIRS	1:00PM
FINANCE	1:00PM

Please be advised that due to health and safety concerns associated with the COVID-19 virus, the Peter J. Schmitt Memorial Legislative Chamber will be open to a maximum of thirty-five members of the public. Further, this meeting will be available for viewing online at <http://www.nassaucountyny.gov/agencies/Legis/index.html>

Public comment on any item may be emailed to the Clerk of the Legislature at LegPublicComment@nassaucountyny.gov and will be made part of the formal record of this Legislative meeting.

While Chamber capacity is limited, the Nassau County Legislature is committed to making its public hearings accessible to individuals with disabilities. If, due to a disability, you need an accommodation or assistance to participate in the public hearing or to obtain a copy of the transcript of the public hearing in an alternative format in accordance with the provisions of the Americans with Disabilities Act, please contact the Office of the Clerk of the Legislature at 571-4252, or the Nassau County Office of the Physically Challenged at 227-7101 or TDD telephone No. 227-8989.

MICHAEL C. PULITZER
Clerk of the Legislature

May 3, 2021
Mineola, NY

1
2
3
4
5
6
7
8
9
10
11
12
13
14
15
16
17
18
19
20
21
22
23
24
25

NASSAU COUNTY LEGISLATURE

RICHARD NICOLELLO
PRESIDING OFFICER

LEGISLATIVE SESSION

County Executive and Legislative Building
1550 Franklin Avenue
Mineola, New York

Monday, May 24, 2021
1:30 P.M.

1

2 A P P E A R A N C E S:

3

4 LEGISLATOR RICHARD J. NICOLELLO

5 Presiding Officer

6 9th Legislative District

7

8 LEGISLATOR HOWARD KOPEL

9 Deputy Presiding Officer

10 7th Legislative District

11

12 LEGISLATOR DENISE FORD

13 Alternate Presiding Officer

14 4th Legislative District

15

16 LEGISLATOR KEVAN ABRAHAMS

17 Minority Leader

18 1st Legislative District

19

20 LEGISLATOR SIELA BYNOE

21 2nd Legislative District

22

23 LEGISLATOR CARRIE SOLAGES

24 3rd Legislative District

25

1

2 LEGISLATOR DEBRA MULE

3 5th Legislative District

4

5 LEGISLATOR C. WILLIAM GAYLOR III

6 6th Legislative District

7

8 LEGISLATOR VINCENT T. MUSCARELLA

9 8th Legislative District

10

11 LEGISLATOR ELLEN BIRNBAUM

12 10th Legislative District

13

14 LEGISLATOR DELIA DERIGGI-WHITTON

15 11th Legislative District

16

17 LEGISLATOR JAMES KENNEDY

18 12th Legislative District

19

20 LEGISLATOR THOMAS MCKEVITT

21 13th Legislative District

22

23 LEGISLATOR LAURA SCHAEFER

24 14th Legislative District

25

1

2 LEGISLATOR JOHN FERRETTI, JR.

3 15th Legislative District

4

5 LEGISLATOR ANDREW DRUCKER

6 16th Legislative District

7

8 LEGISLATOR ROSE WALKER

9 17th Legislative District

10

11 LEGISLATOR JOSHUA LAFAZAN

12 18th Legislative District

13

14 LEGISLATOR STEVEN RHOADS

15 19th Legislative District

16

17 MICHAEL PULITZER

18 Clerk of the Legislature

19

20

21

22

23

24

25

1 Full - 5-24-21

2 LEGISLATOR NICOLELLO: Let's
3 start the meeting off as we always do with the
4 Pledge of Allegiance and I'd ask Legislator
5 Debra Mule to lead us in the pledge.

6 Mike, could you please call the
7 roll.

8 MR. PULITZER: Yes. Thank you.
9 Deputy Presiding Officer Howard Kopel.

10 LEGISLATOR KOPEL: Here.

11 MR. PULITZER: Alternate Deputy
12 Presiding Denise Ford.

13 LEGISLATOR FORD: Here.

14 MR. PULITZER: Legislator Siela
15 Bynoe.

16 LEGISLATOR BYNOE: Here.

17 MR. PULITZER: Legislator Carrie
18 Solages.

19 LEGISLATOR SOLAGES: Here.

20 MR. PULITZER: Legislator Debra
21 Mule.

22 LEGISLATOR MULE: Here.

23 MR. PULITZER: Legislator C.
24 William Gaylor the third.

25 LEGISLATOR GAYLOR: Present.

1 Full - 5-24-21

2 MR. PULITZER: Legislator Vincent

3 Muscarella.

4 LEGISLATOR MUSCARELLA: Here.

5 MR. PULITZER: Legislator Ellen

6 Birnbaum.

7 LEGISLATOR BIRNBAUM: Here.

8 MR. PULITZER: Legislator Delia

9 DeRiggi-Whitton.

10 LEGISLATOR DERIGGI-WHITTON:

11 Here.

12 MR. PULITZER: Legislator James

13 Kennedy.

14 LEGISLATOR KENNEDY: Here.

15 MR. PULITZER: Legislator Thomas

16 McKevitt.

17 LEGISLATOR MCKEVITT: Here.

18 MR. PULITZER: Legislator Laura

19 Schaefer.

20 LEGISLATOR SCHAEFER: Here.

21 MR. PULITZER: Legislator John

22 Ferretti.

23 LEGISLATOR FERRETTI: Here.

24 MR. PULITZER: Legislator Arnold

25 Drucker.

1 Full - 5-24-21

2 LEGISLATOR DRUCKER: Here.

3 MR. PULITZER: Legislator Rose
4 Marie Walker.

5 LEGISLATOR WALKER: Here.

6 MR. PULITZER: Legislator Joshua
7 Lafazan.

8 LEGISLATOR LAFAZAN: Here.

9 MR. PULITZER: Legislator Steven
10 Rhoads.

11 LEGISLATOR RHOADS: Present.

12 MR. PULITZER: Minority Leader
13 Kevan Abrahams.

14 LEGISLATOR ABRAHAMS: Here.

15 MR. PULITZER: Presiding Officer
16 Richard Nicolello.

17 LEGISLATOR NICOLELLO: Here.

18 MR. PULITZER: We have a quorum
19 sir.

20 LEGISLATOR NICOLELLO: Thank
21 you. We have three items on the emergency
22 agenda and I'd ask the clerk to call all three
23 and the emergencies.

24 MR. PULITZER: Yes, sir.

25 LEGISLATOR NICOLELLO: Actually

1 Full - 5-24-21

2 you can hold off for a moment. I have several
3 slips for public comment. Three of them
4 relate to one of the items on the agenda which
5 we will call in a few minutes but one is just
6 a general public comment so I will call that
7 now. Richard Clolery.

8 MR. CLOLERY: To the members of
9 the legislature. Hello again. It's been such
10 a long time since we last saw one another and
11 I here once again to plead my case for
12 increased funding for the buses. Only now
13 there is an increased reason for this.

14 As you may be aware, due to the
15 pandemic and a recent cyber attack on a gas
16 pipeline, there's been increasing gas prices
17 may continue which will of course decrease
18 public using their cars this summer for
19 anything outside of work. Which means less
20 recreational driving which will lead in its
21 own way to less money coming into the Nassau
22 County coffers.

23 Also due to the pandemic, there's
24 been shortages of processing chips, which
25 makes it impossible for me to get the latest

1 Full - 5-24-21

2 video game systems and for everyone else who
3 might want to get a new car, used car, also
4 impossible due to increased prices at such a
5 level that it's too expensive without a loan.
6 Who they if they miss a single payment means
7 that this person with this loan will probably
8 default on it. Don't believe me? Ask your
9 local repo man.

10 Look, I know that you've probably
11 heard this all before but I want you to think
12 about this. With increased funding that means
13 more buses for people who can't drive and
14 increased connectivity to railroad stations,
15 to recreational places like Adventureland,
16 like the Nassau Coliseum, to places where they
17 shop.

18 All I'm saying is this, don't look
19 upon a well-run bus system as a cost but
20 potential benefit for the people of Nassau
21 County who, because of what is going on, can't
22 drive to the places where they need to be or
23 have to be or want to be.

24 Also, for the members of the local
25 Republican Party who might want to impose on

1 Full - 5-24-21

2 what I am saying, I want to ask you
3 something. How are you feeling about the
4 national party as a whole? Especially with
5 the opposition to the January 6th commission
6 creation? Creation of voter suppression laws
7 for minorities all over the country. There
8 attempts to override Rowe v Wade, which won't
9 stop women from getting abortions if
10 overturned by the way. Their support for from
11 right wing extremist news organizations like
12 Faux news. Yes, F-A-U-X News. Their antics
13 like Marjorie Greene's equating the Holocaust
14 to mask wearing.

15 If I were a conscientious
16 Republican I would be asking myself this.
17 Should I still be one? Especially with what's
18 going on lately. Or should I listen to my
19 conscious and do one of two things. One, join
20 the Democratic Party. Or two, either start a
21 new political party that will require me to be
22 more inclusive of people or join an
23 independent party with the same philosophy
24 like the Worker's Party or Independent Party.

25 And by the way, for those of you

1 Full - 5-24-21

2 who may drive and may be afraid of what I'm
3 saying, I have nothing but great respect and
4 admiration for those who drive carefully.
5 Keep up the good work. Thank you for your
6 time everyone.

7 LEGISLATOR NICOLELLO: Let's go
8 to the emergencies.

9 MR. PULITZER: Thank you Mr.
10 Chairman. Emergency Resolution 3-2021. An
11 emergency resolution declaring an emergency
12 for immediate action upon a resolution
13 requesting the legislature of the state of
14 New York to enact and the governor to approve
15 an act to amend the Retirement and Social
16 Security law, in relation to disability
17 retirement benefits for sheriffs, deputy
18 sheriffs, undersheriffs and correction
19 officers in Nassau County.

20 The following ones are emergency
21 resolution number 4-2021. An emergency
22 resolution declaring an emergency for
23 immediate action upon a resolution requesting
24 the legislature of the state of New York to
25 enact and the governor to approve an act to

1 Full - 5-24-21
2 amend the Retirement and Social Security Law
3 in relation to providing death benefits for
4 correction officers employed by Nassau
5 County.

6 The next emergency is number
7 5-2021. Emergency resolution number 5-2021,
8 an emergency resolution declaring an emergency
9 for immediate action upon a resolution
10 requesting the legislature of the state of
11 New York to enact and the governor to approve
12 an act to amend the Retirement and Social
13 Security Law in relation to accidental
14 disability retirement for deputy sheriffs.

15 LEGISLATOR NICOLELLO: Thank
16 you. We need a motion to establish the
17 emergency. Moved by Legislator McKevitt.
18 Seconded by Legislator Birnbaum. Any debate
19 or discussion? All in favor signify by saying
20 aye. Those opposed? The emergency is
21 established.

22 I'm going to call the items.
23 178-2021 a resolution requesting the
24 legislature of the state of New York to enact
25 and the governor to approve an act to amend

1 Full - 5-24-21

2 the Retirement and Social Security Law in
3 relation to disability retirement benefits for
4 sheriffs, deputy sheriffs, undersheriffs and
5 correction officers in Nassau County.

6 Item 179. A resolution requesting
7 the legislature of the state of New York to
8 enact and the governor to approve an act to
9 amend the Retirement and Social Security Law
10 in relation to providing death benefits for
11 correction officers employed by Nassau
12 County.

13 Item 182 of 2021. A resolution
14 requesting the legislature of the state of
15 New York to enact and the governor to approve
16 an act to amend the Retirement and Social
17 Security Law in relation to accidental
18 disability retirement for deputy sheriffs.

19 I think the titles provide most of
20 the information that's necessary. I don't
21 know if anyone is here from the administration
22 who wants to speak on these but these are
23 joint initiatives on the part of the
24 legislature and the administration.

25 The last one, 182 of 2021, provides

1 Full - 5-24-21

2 accidental disability benefits for deputy
3 sheriffs to be increased from two-thirds to
4 three-quarters final average salary. Which is
5 in line with other similar positions whether
6 it be the police department etcetera.

7 So, any debate or discussion on
8 these three items? Legislator
9 DeRiggi-Whitton.

10 LEGISLATOR DERIGGI-WHITTON: I
11 just want to say we were discussing I think
12 this is the third time that we've tried this
13 in my tenure. We do support and we hope it
14 gets the signatures that it requires going
15 forward.

16 LEGISLATOR NICOLELLO: We echo
17 that completely. Any further debate or
18 discussion? Hearing none, all in favor
19 signify by saying aye. Those opposed?
20 Carries unanimously.

21 Now we move on to the regular
22 agenda. The first three items related to the
23 capital plan are not being called today. Go
24 to item four, which is a hearing on a proposed
25 local law to amend Article 10 of the Nassau

1 Full - 5-24-21

2 County Administrative Code to require written
3 notification to towns, villages, cities and
4 school districts of agreements proposed to be
5 entered into by Nassau County for the
6 operation of multiunit shelters to be located
7 within such jurisdictions.

8 That item is moved by Legislator
9 Walker and seconded by Legislator Schaefer.
10 It is now before us.

11 This action we're taking with
12 respect to this local law is in response to
13 the administration's action with respect to
14 the proposed emergency shelter to be located
15 at 120 Jericho Turnpike and actions that they
16 took before the public and before legislators
17 and most people knew what was happening.

18 So, what the purpose of this is to
19 provide greater transparency. It is a focused
20 piece of legislation, narrowly focused on the
21 issue of providing notice when such issues are
22 being considered. So that at least ten days
23 prior to the execution of a contract or
24 agreement for shelter facilities in Nassau the
25 Department of Social Services must provide

1 Full - 5-24-21

2 written notice to the legislator representing
3 the district where the shelter is to be
4 located as well as town, villages, cities and
5 school districts where the proposed shelter is
6 to be located.

7 Again, rather than providing notice
8 after a contract has been entered into, this
9 legislation simply says before you enter into
10 a contract for a shelter you provide all of
11 the interested parties, especially the elected
12 officials and office holders, of the proposed
13 action to enforce greater transparency and
14 allow the public additional information before
15 you enter into the transaction for this.

16 Any debate or discussion on this
17 proposed law? Legislator Drucker.

18 LEGISLATOR DRUCKER: Thank you
19 very much Presiding Officer. I just want to
20 reiterate some of the comments I made a couple
21 of weeks ago when this bill was before the
22 committees. I support this bill, I really do,
23 but I also recall I really strongly supported
24 the Jericho Family Support Center. I was
25 extremely disappointed as this bill addresses

1 Full - 5-24-21

2 the manner in which the community and the
3 elected officials, like ourselves, myself, who
4 represent the community were informed of this
5 contract and this plan at the very last minute
6 actually after the school district knew, after
7 the community knew at school board meetings.

8 So, I understand the need for it
9 because the transparency is critical. But I
10 also want -- I'm hopeful that this bill will
11 not minimize or marginalize this county's
12 obligation to legally -- we have a legal and
13 moral obligation to house homeless men and
14 women and children of Nassau County. It's a
15 statutory obligation as well as a moral
16 obligation.

17 Many of these people are seniors
18 who have spent long, productive lives
19 contributing to our communities or veterans
20 even who have made extraordinary sacrifices
21 for our nation.

22 I had filed an amended version of
23 this clerk item that would ensure the
24 notification of local officials regarding the
25 placement of shelters but respect the legal

1 Full - 5-24-21

2 mandates of confidentiality and will not
3 contain identifying information of residents
4 of the proposed shelter, nor disclose the
5 address of any shelter housing domestic
6 violence or abuse victims.

7 One of the most unfortunate
8 elements about the debate about the Jericho
9 Family Support Center was the level of
10 dishonest vitriol that had been directed
11 towards the concept and who the people were
12 that would be residing there.

13 I really feel that our shared sense
14 of humanity and decency makes it imperative
15 that we as a united community reject some of
16 theses toxic attitudes of a few who out of
17 ignorance, racial or class prejudice, fear or
18 just callous opportunism seek to obstruct
19 these efforts.

20 So, I just would like to make sure
21 that going forward we can operate under the
22 guise of this bill in a manner so as to not to
23 impede our ability to deliver lifesaving
24 services or further jeopardize the safety or
25 welfare of our most vulnerable population.

1 Full - 5-24-21

2 And I urge the administration to consider the
3 amendment that I had filed too. So thank you
4 very much Presiding Officer.

5 LEGISLATOR NICOLELLO: Thank you
6 Legislator Drucker. I would say this bill was
7 very narrowly drafted. Just focuses on
8 providing that notice before the contract is
9 entered. In no way does it or could we ever
10 minimalize or marginalize our legal or moral
11 obligations. And in no way obviously does it
12 require disclosure of any confidential
13 information or identifying information
14 because, again, that would be in violation of
15 legal mandates.

16 Again, it simply requires that
17 before the county executive enters into a
18 contract for such a facility she provides the
19 officials with notice. I know you've stated
20 it many times you're in support of that.

21 Legislator Walker then Legislator
22 Bynoe and then Legislator DeRiggi-Whitton.

23 LEGISLATOR WALKER: Thank you
24 Presiding Officer. I agree with what has been
25 said already this morning, and I really do

1 Full - 5-24-21

2 believe that if this had gone in the right
3 direction and we did know ahead of time and we
4 sat down with all the parties involved I would
5 hope that that shelter would have been there.

6 We do need to do something
7 different. We have families that are living
8 in hotels with nothing for the children to do
9 there. One bedroom where you have two beds
10 and a mom and three children are there. No
11 other services are there for them. A facility
12 like this, it was my understanding, would have
13 certainly helped and offered so much more to
14 our families that have to live in a shelter
15 right now. With training perhaps for the
16 adults and childcare right there for the
17 children, after school tutoring and so on and
18 so forth.

19 Again, if things had been done
20 properly and it wasn't at the last minute and
21 no one knew about it and there wasn't so much
22 confrontation regarding it I would have hoped
23 that that would have been operating.

24 So I hope, by passing this, it
25 stops that problem in the future and that we

1 Full - 5-24-21

2 move on and find very, very productive
3 shelters for those families that need it.
4 Need it the most. And at a time when their
5 lives are really dealing with a lot of
6 struggles.

7 So, like I said, I hope that it is
8 supported by everyone and we do move on and do
9 things and be upfront about them right from
10 the beginning. Thank you.

11 LEGISLATOR NICOLELLO: Thank you
12 Legislator Walker. Legislator Bynoe.

13 LEGISLATOR BYNOE: Thank you
14 Presiding Officer. I'm not sure who I should
15 pose this question to. Would it be Legislator
16 Walker? Were you the lead sponsor on the
17 bill?

18 LEGISLATOR NICOLELLO: I guess
19 any one of us can respond.

20 LEGISLATOR BYNOE: I'd like the
21 definition for multiunit. I'd like to
22 understand what would that capture? Because
23 currently what we have proliferating certain
24 communities are units, are shelters that house
25 four to five families in one house. Is that

1 Full - 5-24-21

2 considered multiunit?

3 LEGISLATOR NICOLELLO: We're
4 going to try to get you an answer to that.
5 It's potentially a term that's defined in
6 state law. Why don't we leave this hearing
7 open. Other legislators obviously can have
8 their say at this point but we will get you an
9 answer to that question before we conclude.
10 If necessary, we will go on to the next item
11 and come back.

12 LEGISLATOR BYNOE: I appreciate
13 that.

14 LEGISLATOR NICOLELLO: Anyone
15 else like to speak on this? We will leave --

16 LEGISLATOR SOLAGES: Yes. This
17 is Legislator Solages. Good afternoon. Thank
18 you Presiding Officer. I would like to know
19 what internal mechanisms the county has to
20 ensure that this piece of legislation meant
21 for notification is not meant for other
22 purposes such as protectual purposes to keep
23 certain people out of certain neighborhoods?
24 Thank you.

25 LEGISLATOR NICOLELLO: I mean,

1 Full - 5-24-21

2 there's nothing that can be read into the text
3 of this local law that could be used to imply
4 that. It's very simple and straightforward
5 and simply requires notice of these shelters,
6 notice be provided to elected officials in the
7 community in general when a contract is
8 entered into to place one of these shelters in
9 a community. Obviously the only purpose here,
10 the only purpose that can legitimately be read
11 into this is that under those circumstances
12 when they are about to enter into a contract
13 the community, the elected officials at least,
14 should know about it. So, I don't think it
15 can be used, certainly there's nothing in the
16 language of the statute could support what
17 you're suggesting.

18 LEGISLATOR SOLAGES: I'm not
19 suggesting that Presiding Officer. It's a
20 simple reality that these laws are used in
21 this fashion. Thank you.

22 LEGISLATOR NICOLELLO: I
23 categorically reject that. This law could not
24 be used in that connection.

25 LEGISLATOR SOLAGES: I hope that

1 Full - 5-24-21

2 we are not devoid of reality here. That is
3 exactly the way these laws are being used.

4 LEGISLATOR NICOLELLO: The
5 alternative is that you don't want to let the
6 community have notice of the placement of a
7 shelter in the community. Is it supposed to
8 be kept a secret? All we're suggesting is,
9 all we're requiring is that ten days before a
10 contract is entered you tell the community
11 you're about to enter into a contract. That's
12 simple enough.

13 LEGISLATOR SOLAGES: And at that
14 point that information could be used to
15 encourage fearmongering to scare people from
16 allowing these people who are in need to get
17 the need that they help.

18 LEGISLATOR NICOLELLO: But also
19 on the contrary, it could be used to provide
20 information to the community about the need
21 for such and such a site or the circumstances
22 of where it's being placed and it actually
23 might build support for something before it
24 goes forward. I fully believe that
25 transparency is the better way to approach

1 Full - 5-24-21

2 this.

3 LEGISLATOR SOLAGES: At
4 Georgetown and Boston College law school I
5 have researched various laws during the
6 reconstruction of the south in which Jim Crow
7 laws were used to muster up a lot of hate and
8 anger to make sure certain people were not
9 allowed in certain neighborhoods. Do we know
10 if this law will be used in that fashion?

11 LEGISLATOR NICOLELLO: Look, I'm
12 not even going to respond to that. If you're
13 going to start raising Jim Crow in response to
14 this legislation then there's no reasonable
15 argument that can be made. There's no
16 reasonable discussion that can be had.
17 Legislator Walker.

18 LEGISLATOR WALKER: I just want
19 to look back on our hearing that we had
20 regarding this issue and social services. And
21 the attorney for social services actually sat
22 here with the commissioner and said that if he
23 had been at the meeting with the commissioner
24 he would have advised her not even to let the
25 school district be aware of the fact that they

1 Full - 5-24-21

2 were discussing this shelter.

3 We were in the throws of COVID at
4 that time where every single parent, and
5 Legislator Solages I know you are aware of
6 this, that every single parent had to decide
7 if their child was going to school in the
8 district. If they were going to do remote
9 learning. If the school had offered a hybrid
10 what they were doing. The whole busing
11 issue. If they were eligible for a bus were
12 they going to be on the bus or were you going
13 to drive them to school. It was an even
14 crazier time than we normally have.

15 This hotel is not in my district
16 but I do -- I am the chair of Health and
17 Social Services. There were so many questions
18 in regard to the hotel at that time. There
19 was a pool that was in the hotel that just had
20 like garbage in it. They emptied the pool and
21 they threw garbage in it. I asked did we even
22 see the site? Do we know what it's like?

23 I want to ensure the health and
24 safety of the residents. These are our
25 families that are going into these shelters

1 Full - 5-24-21

2 and we have to make sure they're in a place
3 where we should have our families.

4 Like I said, I totally agree with
5 the concept of what the shelter was going to
6 offer but I just think it was done very
7 quickly without any knowledge and there were
8 certainly a lot of questions I wanted to ask
9 and I wanted to know. Every time we had
10 whether we had a hearing or whatever, a
11 discussion about it, I said this is not in
12 opposition to the shelter. This is just
13 regarding the way this was done dealing with
14 this hotel. So, in no way would I look at
15 this as being a way to keep residents, any of
16 our residents out of any community. So, I can
17 only share my information about it.

18 LEGISLATOR NICOLELLO: Any other
19 legislators?

20 MS. MEREDAY: Good afternoon
21 Presiding Officer and legislators. I am
22 concerned with regard to this legislation and
23 hearing that you all have concerns about how
24 this was put forth even heightens my concerns
25 because coming from situations where I have

1

2 seen the plethora of these types of shelters
3 both legal and illegal in communities of color
4 with no jurisdictional resources, no supports,
5 nothing, until something happens, there's a
6 fire or some kind of incident where children's
7 lives are in jeopardy or families.

8 I myself have moved a veteran's
9 family out of a similar type facility as
10 Legislator Walker stated that was unsafe for
11 the veteran who was in that shelter and this
12 hotel was located on Northern Boulevard. The
13 fact that the north shore gets those very few
14 circumstances but the south shore is inundated
15 with them.

16 So, the concerns for these
17 underserved communities, including communities
18 of color and veteran communities, ties into
19 finding out where will the public get to speak
20 with regard to how they want their communities
21 to be represented? Even when we had
22 unescorted children who were summarily just
23 dumped in our county. The Village of
24 Hempstead received an increased number versus
25 even Baldwin where I live. There were

1 Full - 5-24-21

2 hundreds that were put into the Village of
3 Hempstead and maybe 14 that ended up in
4 Baldwin. And I don't think any crossed the
5 threshold in Garden City or any place north of
6 Northern Boulevard.

7 So, the disproportionate number of
8 these shelters, however they're administered,
9 however they're monitored or established,
10 still creates a problem that yes, rings true
11 to the same types of systemic and systematic
12 racism that was engendered upon people of
13 color through Jim Crow and other type laws,
14 many of which are still indirectly on the
15 books even in our illustrious state of
16 New York.

17 So, I'm very concerned about how,
18 one, this legislation was put forth to begin
19 with and the fact that there isn't as much
20 input locally with residents who are not able
21 to attend these hearings. I myself literally
22 have left a medical office where I've been
23 assisting a critical care physician since
24 COVID started to attend this full meeting
25 because I'm continuously concerned about what

1 Full - 5-24-21

2 is happening with my tax dollars when I have
3 to travel along roadways and I read in the
4 paper about certain residents who are going to
5 get checks but then we have a medical facility
6 that's going to get shut down, that people are
7 using as a political jockeying position that
8 they claim they may be putting in some type of
9 veteran village. But I find it very
10 interesting that all these ideas for
11 homelessness and housing and veteran services
12 come right before an election.

13 But to this issue right here where
14 we're talking about multiunit shelters, I too
15 concur with Legislator Bynoe as to what
16 constitutes multiunit? What are we talking
17 about in terms of the family? What are we
18 talking about in terms of the support services
19 that are going to go into these hotels.

20 We have many empty facilities. You
21 have a structure that's being built right over
22 here where Sears was. I'm pretty sure it
23 looks like it's going to be yet another
24 medical type of facility.

25 But we need to address the shortage

1 Full - 5-24-21

2 of housing and resources for all of our
3 residents, but particularly those who are the
4 most vulnerable, the most underserved. That
5 includes our veterans. That includes our
6 seniors and that includes young people who
7 can't afford to live here. They don't want to
8 stay here. But if we do have families that
9 are in crisis, that are in need, that need to
10 be in a multiunit facility or a shelter or
11 some type of supportive housing they should
12 receive the same care, consideration, dignity
13 and sense of decency and a place to live and
14 guess what? It should be distributed across
15 the board, across the county, across the
16 borders and boundaries that are set up to keep
17 it in significant numbers in the south shore.
18 But everything on the north shore has to be a
19 certain way. And we're all paying the same
20 amount of taxes but we're not getting the same
21 resources.

22 So, I'm hoping that it goes beyond
23 this hearing that we can individually, in all
24 of your respective legislative districts, you
25 talk to your community residents and get an

1 Full - 5-24-21

2 idea of how many of these shelters are in
3 their own communities that they know about.
4 Whether they know about them or not it's still
5 is going to be an impact on their taxes in
6 their breakdown.

7 So, the concerns are there and we
8 cannot continue to just rush things through,
9 throw it on the wall and see what sticks and
10 think that the taxpayers are continuing to put
11 up with that. Thank you.

12 LEGISLATOR NICOLELLO: Any other
13 public comment on this? I'm being told that
14 the term multiunit is solely in the title to
15 this legislation and the text of it actually
16 refers simply to shelter facilities.

17 So, what we are going to do today
18 is close the hearing and I will not call the
19 local law. I think we're going to need to
20 make sure the terminology being employed in
21 the legislation is as focused as possible.
22 It's clear what we want to do but we want to
23 make sure that the legislation is narrowly
24 focused on those types of facilities such as
25 the one in Jericho where you were placing a

1 Full - 5-24-21

2 shelter that could accommodate 80 families.
3 So, again, we want to make sure the language
4 of the legislation is as clear as possible.

5 Anyone else have any comments or
6 discussion during this hearing?

7 LEGISLATOR BYNOE: Presiding
8 Officer if you will? I would like if our
9 counsel was kept in the loop of what is
10 happening before it shows back up on our
11 agenda.

12 LEGISLATOR NICOLELLO:
13 Absolutely.

14 LEGISLATOR BYNOE: Because I have
15 some thoughts.

16 LEGISLATOR NICOLELLO: We would
17 welcome those thoughts and we welcome the
18 input.

19 We need a motion to close the
20 hearing. Moved by Legislator Kennedy.
21 Seconded by Legislator Kopel. All in favor of
22 closing the hearing signify by saying aye.
23 Those opposed? The hearing is closed.

24 We are going to jump to Item 8
25 since there are people here, several

1 Full - 5-24-21

2 individuals, community leaders come to speak
3 on this item. So we're going to do that
4 first.

5 This is a local law to prohibit the
6 smoking or vaping of cannabis in all
7 county-owned properties. We had a hearing
8 several weeks ago on this. What we're going
9 to do at this point is going to amend the
10 statute to decrease the penalty for violation
11 from \$200 to a maximum amount not to exceed
12 \$25. Why we are doing that is because the
13 state legislation sets a penalty with respect
14 to the use of cannabis products of \$25 and the
15 county's legislation cannot be inconsistent
16 with that amount.

17 A motion to amend by Legislator
18 Ferretti. Seconded by Legislator Schaefer.
19 All in favor of amending this legislation to
20 reduce the amount of the penalty from \$200 to
21 \$25 signify by saying aye. Those opposed?
22 The amendment passes unanimously.

23 Is there any further debate or
24 discussion on this legislation or anyone who
25 wants to speak on its behalf? Deputy

1 Full - 5-24-21

2 Presiding Officer Kopel. I'm sorry. We have
3 public to speak on this. Let's bring up the
4 three speakers. First off we have Elizabeth
5 Boylan.

6 MS. BOYLAN: I want to thank you
7 for passing the ordinance. I'm disappointed
8 in the penalty. But the fact that you have
9 the vision to post all these signs on Nassau
10 County properties, over 6,000 acres of parks,
11 beaches, golf courses, beautiful preserves.
12 Which my family, friends and guests we take
13 advantage of and I know that many people in
14 Nassau County and the surrounding area take
15 advantage of. I hope that this will reduce or
16 eliminate people smoking anything on the
17 Nassau County-owned properties.

18 Especially the way the secondhand
19 smoke affects our most vulnerable, our
20 children and our elderly. We just stopped
21 wearing masks because we're vaccinated with
22 the pandemic but we still have an epidemic
23 which is only fueled by the legalization of
24 marijuana. Thank you.

25 I also encourage you if you could

1 Full - 5-24-21

2 get to your colleagues in the Town of
3 Hempstead, Town of North Hempstead, Town of
4 Oyster Bay and encourage them to opt out. The
5 pot bars, the pot sales that will be
6 problematic for the towns. I know people say
7 well, they can go to the next city. You know
8 what? Go to the next city. Let's make it
9 difficult.

10 We have a beautiful county. We
11 don't want to be New York City. That smell is
12 not only horrendous it's also dangerous to
13 people with compromised systems. Thank you.

14 I hope to see that those signs are
15 posted at all the facilities that you have
16 because that's clear and you are supposed to
17 be as strict or more strict than the Clean
18 Indoor Air Act. Thank you for your vision for
19 protecting Nassau County and keeping it
20 beautiful for all our families, friends and
21 surrounding neighbors. Thank you.

22 LEGISLATOR NICOLELLO: Next we
23 have Susan Blauner, who is from Savings Lives
24 and Five Towns Coalition.

25 MS. BLAUNER: Good afternoon.

1 Full - 5-24-21

2 I'm here as well to echo Liz and to echo
3 Ruthanne who will be stepping up in just a
4 moment. We are grateful, we are thankful for
5 the local law to prohibit the smoking or
6 vaping of cannabis. As you know, we are here
7 to protect the youth and families of our
8 community. We work long and hard hours to do
9 that. We're greatly appreciative of all that
10 you do at the legislature here. Thank you
11 very much.

12 LEGISLATOR NICOLELLO: Thank you
13 very much. Ruthanne McCormack, Rockville
14 Centre Coalition for Youth.

15 MS. MCCORMACK: Good afternoon.
16 Thank you for passing the ordinance to protect
17 our communities and the health of our youth.
18 I just wanted to go over some data that we
19 have from our Rockville Centre youth, from our
20 2019 youth survey results.

21 Rockville Centre youth displays
22 some of the highest rates of underage drinking
23 and marijuana use where adolescents have
24 become the stepping stones for future
25 addiction and life threatening behaviors.

1 Full - 5-24-21

2 When comparing Rockville Centre court measures
3 to county, state and national data, passed 30
4 day use of marijuana and alcohol often exceeds
5 Nassau County and the state.

6 Future survey rates of use and
7 RVC's parent-youth focus groups further
8 confirm why underage drinking and marijuana
9 use are prevalent in our community. Older
10 siblings and friends purchase beer for
11 school-age children and parents would rather
12 have kids drink in their house. Parents are
13 also talking about providing marijuana to
14 their youth now that it's been legal and
15 partaking in marijuana use as a family. This
16 is very disturbing to us and to our school
17 officials and to our medical professionals.

18 I would hope that Nassau County
19 steps up their education, prevention and just
20 basic messaging of the dangers that marijuana
21 use can do to the teenage brain. It also
22 drops the IQ points as much as eight points
23 for a heavy marijuana use and also t affects
24 our youth and their mental health by
25 increasing suicide and psychosis in our

1 Full - 5-24-21

2 youth.

3 As far as the revenue fund for the
4 state, only 20 percent will be left for drug
5 treatment and public health education. We're
6 hoping our schools will enforce prevention
7 education with our youth if they are found
8 with marijuana in school. We're also hoping
9 that our social host laws will be adjusted to
10 include marijuana. When a person 21 or older
11 in the county and the state provides marijuana
12 to a youth underage there are stiff penalties
13 for this. We have our own social host law in
14 Rockville Centre and they are adjusting that
15 in our village and we thank our mayor and town
16 board for that.

17 I just want to hope that the county
18 steps up their educational about the dangers
19 of marijuana use to further protect the future
20 of our youth that are already suffering so
21 with suicides, mental health issues and peer
22 pressure. Thank you.

23 LEGISLATOR NICOLELLO: Thank you
24 very much. Deputy Presiding Officer Kopel.

25 LEGISLATOR KOPEL: Ruthanne and

1 Full - 5-24-21

2 all of you actually. All three of you. Thank
3 you so much for what you do. The Rockville
4 Centre Coalition has been a leader for as long
5 as I've been involved for the protection of
6 youth. This legislation is focused on
7 protecting our young people. Older people
8 we're going to do what we want to do. We
9 can't do much about that at this point.

10 But we certainly can set examples
11 for our young people and show them that at
12 least where we're in charge we're not going to
13 allow this to be going on. The efforts that
14 you all put in, the tireless work that you put
15 in for so long, not only on marijuana but on
16 drugs in general, on tobacco and just in
17 general to protect the young people who after
18 all are our future is wonderful and
19 admirable.

20 And once again, just thank you.
21 And I hope and I expect that pretty much
22 everyone is going to go along with this
23 legislation. We only wish that we could do
24 more.

25 MS. MCCORMACK: Thank you. I

1 Full - 5-24-21

2 appreciate everything you do Howard and the
3 support you provide to us. My colleague at
4 Long Beach Aware, Judy Vining, also thanks you
5 for this and is hoping that further education
6 will come out at the county level for our
7 youth. Thank you.

8 LEGISLATOR NICOLELLO: We will
9 look to doing further education on a
10 countywide level. I did attend a program last
11 year from CASA, the Community Against
12 Substance Abuse, in Manhasset. The program
13 was given by Dr. Jeffery Reynolds from the
14 Family and Children's Services Association.
15 It was truly an extraordinary and eye opening
16 program. To the extent that if you haven't
17 had him in as a speaker yet you may want to
18 think about doing so.

19 MS. MCCORMACK: We are strong
20 colleagues of him and he does support us. We
21 welcome his expertise and education. He
22 really is the best.

23 LEGISLATOR NICOLELLO: Thank you.

24 MS. BOYLAN: Just want to say
25 we're also members of the Nassau County Heroin

1 Full - 5-24-21

2 Prevention Task Force which is chaired by Rene
3 Fichter under the auspices of Madeline
4 Singas. It's an incredible task force. Over
5 500 people on that list. The individuals that
6 are involved, the professionals, social
7 workers, law enforcement, people, former
8 addicts, recovery, they are a phenomenal group
9 of people. They work very hard. We're all
10 very disappointed about this legislation, but
11 we're pursuing prevention and education and
12 there's all sorts of events happening to
13 educate our public. Especially with the
14 heroin, the Fentanyl. The marijuana with the
15 poly substance use it's becoming a big
16 problem.

17 That is an incredible group that I
18 would ask that each legislator, if you can,
19 take time out once a month to attend one of
20 those meetings and listen to the members on
21 that task force and their subcommittees. It's
22 an incredible, amazing source of support and
23 recovery and help and I encourage you to do
24 that.

25 LEGISLATOR NICOLELLO: Thank you

1 Full - 5-24-21

2 Legislator Ferretti.

3 LEGISLATOR FERRETTI: Thank you
4 Presiding Officer. Thank you ladies for
5 coming out and for your words. I'm going to,
6 of course, support this legislation but I just
7 wanted to put a comment on the record.

8 The fact that this fine has to be
9 reduced and amended, this bill has to be
10 amended to be reduced to a \$25 fine is a
11 travesty. I mean, Ruthanne, I believe you
12 spoke about the messaging we need to have for
13 our children. I agree 100 percent with you.
14 What kind of message does it send that this
15 body's hands are tied and we can only fine
16 somebody \$25 for violating this? You could
17 have two people standing next to each other in
18 a county park. One smoking a cigarette, one
19 smoking marijuana. Both are not permitted.
20 And the one smoking the cigarette is going to
21 get a ticket for \$200 and the one smoking pot
22 is going to get a ticket for 25. What message
23 does that send to our children?

24 The fact that our hands have been
25 tied by Albany on this is a travesty. It's

1 Full - 5-24-21

2 the wrong message to children. And as the
3 deputy presiding officer said, as long as we
4 have anything to say about it we're certainly
5 going to do everything we can to protect the
6 community from this. But the people up in
7 Albany really need to get on the right page on
8 this. Thank you.

9 LEGISLATOR NICOLELLO: Legislator
10 Walker.

11 LEGISLATOR WALKER: I agree with
12 Legislator Ferretti, and I want to thank you
13 ladies for all you do to protect our young
14 people and I really can't thank you enough.
15 It's truly my hope that once September starts
16 and things are a bit more normal than we've
17 had for the past year, year and a half. Our
18 police department does a great job with
19 educating our youth, our school children.
20 They get into the schools. They do various
21 programs. They've tried to keep up with them
22 as much as they possibly could during COVID
23 but that's been an issue.

24 We've seen those results. We've
25 seen the opioid addiction rise again and

1 Full - 5-24-21

2 various problems that we've had that we were
3 really attacking full strength ahead and it
4 hurt us. COVID hurt us in many ways that I
5 think people don't even realize.

6 But again, I'm sure that they
7 hopefully will get back in the school
8 buildings and the more we can educate our
9 young people the better. And again, I thank
10 you for everything that you do.

11 LEGISLATOR NICOLELLO: Any other
12 legislators? Hearing none, I'm going to call
13 for a vote on this item. All in favor signify
14 by saying aye. Those opposed? Carries
15 unanimously.

16 I should have done this at the
17 outset but I'm going to go the consent
18 calendar and call those items now so that
19 those members of the administration who are
20 here waiting to hear these we can take care of
21 this right now.

22 These are all items that went
23 through committees a couple of weeks ago.
24 They've been agreed upon by the Majority and
25 Minority that they can pass without any

1 Full - 5-24-21

2 further debate or discussion among the
3 legislators. Here we go.

4 Item 13, Ordinance 45. Item 15,
5 Ordinance 47. Item 16, Ordinance 48. Item
6 17, Ordinance 49. Item 18, Resolution 73.
7 19, Resolution 74. Item 20, Resolution 75.
8 22, Resolution 77. 23, Resolution 78. 24,
9 Resolution 79. 25, Resolution 80. 26,
10 Resolution 81. 27, Resolution 82. 29,
11 Resolution 84. 30, Resolution 85. 31,
12 Resolution 86. 32, Resolution 87. 33,
13 Resolution 88. 34, Resolution 89. And that's
14 it.

15 Moved by Legislator
16 DeRiggi-Whitton. Seconded by Legislator
17 Kennedy. Any debate or discussion? Hearing
18 none, all in favor signify by saying aye.
19 Those opposed? Carries unanimously. They
20 carry unanimously.

21 Now we go back to item five which
22 is a hearing on a proposed local law further
23 postponing the date of the 2021 sale of tax
24 liens pursuant to Article 2 of Title B of
25 Chapter 5 of the Nassau County Administrative

1 Full - 5-24-21

2 Code.

3 Moved by Legislator Mule. Seconded
4 by Legislator McKevitt.

5 I don't know if there's anyone here
6 on behalf of the administration on this item.
7 By the way, that motion was to open the
8 hearing. I should have a vote on that. All
9 in favor of opening the hearing signify by
10 saying aye. Those opposed? The hearing is
11 open. Katy, do we have a speaker on this
12 item?

13 MS. HORST: The treasurer is on
14 his way over. He was just waiting for the
15 consent calendar to be called.

16 LEGISLATOR NICOLELLO: When you
17 say he's "on his way over" he's coming from
18 which building?

19 MS. HORST: Coming from One
20 West.

21 MR. JEFFERSON: Just want to
22 catch my breath for a minute. I was listening
23 in.

24 Good afternoon legislators.
25 Beaumont Jefferson, county treasurer.

1 Full - 5-24-21

2 The item before you is a
3 postponement of our annual tax lien sale. And
4 in light of the continuing economic
5 difficulties caused by COVID-19, the New York
6 State Legislature recently adopted Chapter 104
7 of 2021 which further postponed or delayed the
8 tax lien sales for COVID-19 hardship
9 declarations from May 1st to August 31st of
10 2021.

11 So, the item before you is to
12 further postpone our county sale for a date to
13 be determined by the treasurer's office beyond
14 August 31st of 2021. So, after August 31st of
15 2021 we are proposing that we will set a date
16 for the annual lien sale. Sorry about that.

17 LEGISLATOR NICOLELLO: Thank you
18 very much. Any debate or discussion?

19 LEGISLATOR SCHAEFER: I have a
20 question. This is Laura Schaefer. Hi
21 Mr. Jefferson. I'm just curious, what's the
22 reason for the process? The state has already
23 enacted this? Do we just have to follow and
24 sort of approve it on the county level?

25 MR. JEFFERSON: Yeah. So, the

1 Full - 5-24-21

2 state -- actually their approval of 104 of
3 2021 sets a date that allows taxpayers to file
4 a hardship. So, as a result of that we have
5 to notice taxpayers or delinquent taxpayers
6 and we cannot sell their lien until after
7 August 31st.

8 LEGISLATOR SCHAEFER: Okay.
9 Thank you.

10 LEGISLATOR NICOLELLO: Anyone
11 else? No other legislators? Sorry.
12 Legislator Ferretti.

13 LEGISLATOR FERRETTI: Just a
14 quick question while you're here,
15 Mr. Jefferson. You weren't here for the vote
16 but on the consent calendar we had passed the
17 reimbursement for the resident, the 95 year
18 old resident, who had the issue with the
19 assessment, the exemption. So now that that's
20 passed, do you have a time frame as to when
21 she'll be reimbursed?

22 MR. JEFFERSON: Once we get that
23 signed resolution we will reimburse her. The
24 resident in question we mailed the affidavit
25 and the W-9. We received that. We have it on

1 Full - 5-24-21

2 file. As soon as we get the signed resolution
3 we can issue a check.

4 LEGISLATOR FERRETTI: So, it
5 should be pretty instantaneous once you get
6 the signed resolution?

7 MR. JEFFERSON: Once we get the
8 signed resolution. We have everything else in
9 place.

10 LEGISLATOR NICOLELLO: Legislator
11 Walker.

12 LEGISLATOR WALKER:
13 Mr. Jefferson, I'm going to take advantage of
14 the fact that you're also here in front of us
15 today. Can you tell us, we've been told time
16 and time again that the reimbursement checks
17 to veterans and those who had the errors on
18 their tax bills that those checks were being
19 sent. We've told our residents over and over
20 that they were being sent. We're being sent
21 in this many days. Have those checks started
22 to go out? Because obviously I'm still
23 getting calls from the residents that they
24 have not received a single check.

25 MR. JEFFERSON: In anticipation

1 Full - 5-24-21

2 of that question being asked, I checked just
3 before I left the office, the checks for
4 Oyster Bay went out. North Hempstead those
5 should be going out this week and we're
6 working on the Hempstead file, which we have
7 about maybe 500 more properties to review.

8 But Oyster Bay they do have them in
9 their hands. In fact, today we received a
10 call from a resident who received a check and
11 we have to reissue it because of a death in
12 the family. But I can say Oyster Bay
13 definitely those checks are out the door.
14 North Hempstead is right behind.

15 LEGISLATOR WALKER: And if you
16 received a call that someone got them, if they
17 didn't get them yet they should be getting
18 them any day?

19 MR. JEFFERSON: If they haven't
20 gotten a check yet they should be getting
21 them. They should call my office and we can
22 research and we can tell them when it was
23 mailed and if they don't receive it within a
24 couple of weeks we can reissue the check. But
25 they're in the mail.

1 Full - 5-24-21

2 LEGISLATOR WALKER: I would hope
3 that they would receive them in a couple of
4 weeks.

5 MR. JEFFERSON: Hopefully in five
6 days. But just in case it gets lost in the
7 mail we usually want to wait.

8 LEGISLATOR WALKER: All of Oyster
9 Bay's have been sent out?

10 MR. JEFFERSON: Yes.

11 LEGISLATOR WALKER: And now
12 you're working on North Hempstead. Should
13 be --

14 MR. JEFFERSON: North Hempstead
15 was in the comptroller's office last week.
16 They were reviewed. We expect to have a run,
17 a check run on those either today or, I'm
18 sorry, Tuesday or Thursday.

19 LEGISLATOR WALKER: Hempstead
20 will be next?

21 MR. JEFFERSON: Hempstead is in
22 the queue?

23 LEGISLATOR NICOLELLO: Anyone
24 else? Thank you Beaumont. Meta. I was going
25 to say any public comment but it looks like

1 Full - 5-24-21

2 you're it today.

3 MS. MEREDAY: Meta Mereday,
4 Baldwin resident and a strong advocate for
5 veterans. And I appreciate Legislator
6 Walker's question because I too have gotten
7 some calls and I'm concerned. I support this
8 legislation as far as the liens being put on
9 hold. I'm still concerned about what actually
10 is being done for any resident that is facing
11 this possible situation of having their home
12 sold from underneath them. I'm concerned that
13 there are a number of residents again on the
14 south shore. And the fact that Hempstead,
15 again, south shore, seems to be always the
16 ones bringing up the rear and usually, in most
17 cases, we have the most numbers in terms of
18 seeking these exemptions and needing those
19 exemptions.

20 But we also have residents in the
21 south shore who were impacted from Superstorm
22 Sandy. Many of them were still living in
23 rental facilities. They did not receive any
24 of this rental income that was set up with
25 regard to the COVID assistance. Research has

1 Full - 5-24-21

2 shown the limited amount of money that
3 actually went to rental assistance. Many of
4 those families were impacted.

5 So, I'm concerned about what is
6 actually being done as opposed to just a brief
7 delay to address the issues that caused these
8 residents to be in these situations to begin
9 with. Including a number of veterans who are
10 possibly within that pool. I myself have sat
11 with veterans, older veterans, again, coming
12 across the county not just the south shore.
13 I've sat with them at these hearings and these
14 sales. It's also an embarrassment that our
15 veterans who have served our country, that we
16 will proudly walk around and put on a lapel
17 pin and as soon as you can get back to those
18 parades and the pancake breakfasts you'll be
19 standing there and saying you're going to do
20 all the things you claim that you're going to
21 do and they're still living in fear in their
22 homes because they have this type of situation
23 waiting for a judgement to come up.

24 So, I'm hoping that there is some
25 type of directive, some type of proactive

1 Full - 5-24-21

2 resource planning in place to do something to
3 help these residents to stay in their homes as
4 opposed to just delaying the inevitable for
5 them to be put out and among the
6 homelessness.

7 Because again, if we don't have a
8 proper facility, because we still have not
9 determined where we can actually shelter folks
10 in place, because we just don't have any more
11 room on the south shore to actually house
12 people if we're not focused on providing home
13 support and resources.

14 Again, I support this for the most
15 part but I still have questions as to what is
16 being done for the residents. These are not
17 just statistics. These are taxpayers. These
18 are residents. These are veterans. These are
19 families. Mothers, fathers and children who
20 run the risk of being put out of the home,
21 probably the only home that they've ever known
22 and I'm just concerned as to what is being
23 done to address those issues. Thank you.

24 LEGISLATOR NICOLELLO: Thank
25 you. Any other members of the public? Any

1 Full - 5-24-21

2 other debate or discussion? Hearing none, we
3 need a motion to close the hearing. Moved by
4 Legislator Walker. Seconded by Legislator
5 DeRiggi-Whitton to close the hearing. All in
6 favor of closing the hearing signify by saying
7 aye. Those opposed? Carries unanimously and
8 the hearing is closed.

9 We go to item number 10 which is a
10 vote on the proposed local law further
11 postponing the date of the 2021 sale of tax
12 liens pursuant to Article 2 of Title B of
13 Chapter 5 of the Nassau County Administrative
14 Code.

15 Moved by Legislator
16 DeRiggi-Whitton. Seconded by Legislator
17 Walker. Any further debate or discussion?
18 All in favor signify by saying aye. Those
19 opposed? Carries unanimously.

20 Now we go back to number six. A
21 hearing on a proposed local law to impose
22 certain requirements on the Department of
23 Assessment with respect to evidence presented
24 at Small Claims Assessment Review hearings.

25 Moved by Legislator Rhoads.

1 Full - 5-24-21

2 Seconded by Legislator Ferretti. That's a
3 motion to open the hearing and second to open
4 the hearing. All in favor of opening the
5 hearing signify by saying aye. The hearing is
6 now open.

7 This is an effort to create greater
8 transparency and fairness as part of the SCAR
9 process. And these concepts in this local law
10 stem from conversations that we have had with
11 numerous constituents who have participated in
12 these pro se hearings. Again, in particular
13 it's pro se hearings, it's not claimants who
14 are represented by representative law firms
15 but by individuals doing it themselves. There
16 are a number of issues that they are facing at
17 these hearings.

18 One of which is they are being
19 presented with comparable values for the first
20 time by representatives of the county for
21 houses that are supposedly comparable to their
22 own. Having seen these comparables for the
23 first time and no ability to check them, the
24 constituents are unable to provide
25 distinguishing characteristics which we think

1 Full - 5-24-21

2 would help to receive a fairer, more just
3 outcome to these proceedings. That's just one
4 of the examples.

5 But anyway, what the proposed
6 legislation does it states that not later than
7 30 days prior to a hearing the Department of
8 Assessment must mail a notice setting forth
9 the evidentiary proof that the pro se
10 petitioner may present at such hearing. That
11 is just giving the petitioner an idea of what
12 type of proof as an individual and someone
13 who's not an attorney for the most would like
14 to know as to how to present their case at the
15 forum.

16 Also, not later than 30 days prior
17 to a hearing Assessment must disclose the
18 evidence it will present to the pro se
19 petitioners. Assessment can only present
20 evidence that it used to determined assessed
21 valued in dispute and cannot offer any other
22 evidence to support its determination.

23 I know the administration has
24 submitted a couple of memos. One from Mr. Ray
25 Orlando, deputy county executive for budget

1 Full - 5-24-21

2 and finance, as well as a memo from the county
3 attorney's office. Do we have anyone here
4 from either OMB or the county attorney's
5 office?

6 MR. DENION: Conal Denion, county
7 attorney's office.

8 LEGISLATOR NICOLELLO: And the
9 gentleman in the seat over there?

10 MR. MILES: Robert Miles, deputy
11 assessor.

12 LEGISLATOR NICOLELLO:
13 Mr. Denion, you weren't the author of the memo
14 from the county attorney's office, correct?

15 MR. DENION: No but I am familiar
16 with it.

17 LEGISLATOR NICOLELLO: Why isn't
18 the county attorney who wrote it here?

19 MR. DENION: The county attorney
20 asked me to appear in his place. He was
21 unable to attend.

22 LEGISLATOR NICOLELLO: Actually,
23 I meant the deputy county attorney who
24 actually wrote the opinion. Why isn't he
25 here?

1 Full - 5-24-21

2 MR. DENION: I'm sorry,
3 Mr. Kasschau --

4 LEGISLATOR NICOLELLO: Not
5 Mr. Kasschau. The deputy county attorney.
6 The individual who actually wrote this thing.

7 MR. DENION: I think you're
8 questions about internal processes in the
9 county attorney's office.

10 LEGISLATOR NICOLELLO: It's not
11 an internal process. You didn't right the
12 memo, correct?

13 MR. DENION: I assisted
14 Mr. Kasschau and he directed and oversaw the
15 process of the memo.

16 LEGISLATOR NICOLELLO: Who else
17 worked on it in the county attorney's office?

18 MR. DENION: I don't know if I'm
19 the right person for you to ask those
20 questions. I'd prefer someone in either the
21 county attorney himself or the chief deputy
22 county attorney to answer.

23 LEGISLATOR NICOLELLO: The
24 purpose is not to trick you or to get overly
25 complicated. We simply wanted to know,

1 Full - 5-24-21

2 there's somebody in the office, and I think
3 probably gleaning from the content of the
4 memo, that somebody from your office actually
5 wrote it. I think that's the person we'd
6 prefer to have here. Actually, Mr. Scott.
7 His email address is on the bottom. Is he
8 here?

9 MR. DENION: I believe that's
10 just an error.

11 LEGISLATOR NICOLELLO: So then
12 you assisted in the process. Who else wrote
13 it with you?

14 MR. DENION: Again, I don't think
15 these are proper questions for me. They're
16 for Mr. Kasschau or the chief deputy. I can
17 ask her to come over. I answer to
18 Mr. Kasschau and others in the county
19 attorney's office.

20 LEGISLATOR NICOLELLO: Here's why
21 I'm asking that question. We wanted to have
22 the individual whose opinions are represented
23 in this letter. I understand it comes from
24 the chief of the department but we wanted to
25 speak with the person who formulated these

1 Full - 5-24-21

2 opinions. It's very simple.

3 MR. DENION: Again, I assisted, I
4 took part in this. But Mr. Kasschau is the
5 person who delivered the opinion under his
6 name as all county attorney opinions are. I
7 think those are types of questions that are
8 properly directed at him or to the chief
9 deputy.

10 LEGISLATOR NICOLELLO: Go ahead
11 with what you were going to say.

12 MR. DENION: I'm here to answer
13 any questions you have.

14 LEGISLATOR NICOLELLO: You don't
15 want to present the argument that's in this
16 memo that was delivered to us? You simply
17 want to answer questions?

18 MR. DENION: I'd be happy to go
19 through the memo if that's what you prefer.

20 LEGISLATOR NICOLELLO: If you
21 want to give us the gist of the memos.

22 MR. DENION: Certainly. The
23 county attorney is of the opinion that the
24 local law is not authorized for a number of
25 reasons. Because without state law

1 Full - 5-24-21

2 authorization, it would improperly relate to
3 the judicial review of taxes and would be
4 inconsistent with state general laws.

5 It would also require county
6 employees to take certain legal actions or
7 violate a rule of professional conduct. And
8 it would also present the county with
9 additional refund liability and other cost.

10 The judicial review of taxes, the
11 county would be violating provision of the New
12 York Municipal Home Rule Law which requires
13 that a law such as this not supersede any
14 general or special law of the legislature
15 because it relates to the judicial review of
16 taxes and the inconsistency with state general
17 laws. Article 7 is a state general law. And
18 this law would prevent judges and hearing
19 officers from obtaining the evidence that is
20 permitted to be presented under Article 7 of
21 the Real Property Tax Law and whatever is
22 permitted by state law and prohibited by local
23 law is inconsistent and if it deals with a
24 statute where the state has expressed its
25 intent to control the field, which it has in

1 Full - 5-24-21

2 this case, Article 7 is the exclusive law, the
3 county would not be able to enact this without
4 state law authorization.

5 LEGISLATOR NICOLELLO: What is
6 your concern about the financial impacts?

7 MR. DENION: Well, from a legal
8 perspective, if the county is not able to
9 present evidence that it otherwise could, we
10 would lose more cases, there would be more
11 refunds. It could open us up as well to
12 claims of perhaps waste under the general
13 municipal law or maybe impermissible gifts
14 under the constitution because we would have,
15 in effect, be allowing people to get refunds
16 without presenting a defense that we could
17 otherwise present.

18 LEGISLATOR NICOLELLO: Shouldn't
19 the focus of the entire process be on a fair
20 outcome in determining what the actual
21 assessed value of property is?

22 MR. DENION: I couldn't agree
23 with you more. The state has set up Article 7
24 to do that as a de novo process. And
25 therefore, it's in the hand of a judge or

1 Full - 5-24-21

2 hearing officer at that stage. It's no longer
3 about the assessment. It's now a judicial
4 review of the assessment, which is a different
5 thing, and it's governed by state law. It's
6 not an Article 78 type review of the action of
7 the assessor. Again, it's a brand new look at
8 what the value is and what the other issues
9 are based on the grounds that are in the
10 statute and that's governed by state law.

11 LEGISLATOR NICOLELLO: Let me ask
12 you this. If I'm a resident and I challenged
13 my assessment and I'm going to SCAR, not an
14 attorney, and then I show up at a SCAR hearing
15 and the county attorney is offering comparable
16 properties' values shouldn't I have the
17 opportunity to look at those properties if
18 they're in my neighborhood and to point out
19 the distinguishing features? Wouldn't that be
20 fair?

21 MR. DENION: It may be a good
22 idea, it may not be, but it's just governed by
23 state law.

24 LEGISLATOR NICOLELLO: You keep
25 going back to state law and you keep referring

1 Full - 5-24-21

2 to the state laws with respect to taxes.

3 These hearings don't involve taxes, correct?

4 They involve the assessed values of homes?

5 MR. DENION: They involve the
6 judicial review of assessments and if found to
7 be improper result in a refund of taxes.

8 LEGISLATOR NICOLELLO: That's a
9 different thing. Obviously there are laws
10 regulating taxation and taxes. But again,
11 these hearings involve assessment.

12 MR. DENION: I would say that
13 there's no effective difference. I think that
14 the judicial review of assessments and taxes
15 are effectively the same thing.

16 LEGISLATOR NICOLELLO: So, every
17 action the county takes with respect to
18 assessment has to be consistent with laws with
19 respect to taxation, is that what you're
20 telling us?

21 MR. DENION: Judicial review.
22 Laws that would relate to judicial review.

23 LEGISLATOR NICOLELLO: Judicial
24 review of assessment. Why is that different
25 than an ARC proceeding on assessment?

1 Full - 5-24-21

2 MR. DENION: ARC is also governed
3 by state law.

4 LEGISLATOR NICOLELLO: Right.
5 But specifically the state laws that you've
6 pointed out involve taxation which is not what
7 this is. This is assessment.

8 MR. DENION: Again, I think that
9 it is effectively the same thing.

10 LEGISLATOR NICOLELLO: What's the
11 basis for your thought?

12 MR. DENION: Again, because it's
13 a judicial review of assessments and
14 assessments will lead to a refund in taxes if
15 the court finds that the assessment was
16 improper.

17 LEGISLATOR NICOLELLO: But if ARC
18 determines that the assessment was incorrect
19 and leads to a refund of taxes it's the same
20 principle. So then doesn't your rational
21 apply to ARC as well?

22 MR. DENION: ARC is governed by
23 state law that allows the county to --

24 LEGISLATOR NICOLELLO: But laws
25 respecting taxation, ARC is bound by laws with

1 Full - 5-24-21

2 respect to taxation?

3 MR. DENION: ARC is bound by its
4 statute which authorizes it to do that
5 administrative level of review.

6 LEGISLATOR NICOLELLO: We're
7 going around in a circle. I'm trying to find
8 out where this inconsistency is and you keep
9 bringing up laws with respect to taxation
10 trying to make a connection with a judicial
11 proceeding with respect to assessment.

12 MR. DENION: ARC is not a
13 judicial proceeding, it's an administrative
14 proceeding and it's governed by --

15 LEGISLATOR NICOLELLO: I'm saying
16 that that's what your argument is. But what
17 I'm saying is that there is no difference
18 practically between what ARC is doing and what
19 is being done at SCAR.

20 MR. DENION: Actually there are
21 two different things. One is administrative
22 review under its own section of the RPTL and
23 the other is judicial review under separate
24 section, separate article.

25 LEGISLATOR NICOLELLO: That's

1 Full - 5-24-21

2 very true but they are both dealing with the
3 assessed value of a home, correct?

4 MR. DENION: Yes. To some
5 extent, right. There are other things.

6 LEGISLATOR NICOLELLO: To some
7 extent. What else are they dealing with other
8 than determining a fair assessed value to a
9 home?

10 MR. DENION: Exemptions. Whether
11 the property is misclassified. Whether there
12 was a ratio issue, which is an inequality
13 claim. So, there are other things that go
14 into it besides what's the value of the home.

15 LEGISLATOR NICOLELLO: Ratio is
16 involved, correct.

17 MR. DENION: That's part of the
18 review.

19 LEGISLATOR NICOLELLO: But in
20 terms of making laws relating to taxation
21 applicable to these hearings, why isn't it
22 applicable to a SCAR hearing and not an
23 Assessment Review Committee determination?

24 MR. DENION: Because the state
25 legislature has separately authorized

1 Full - 5-24-21

2 everything that ARC does.

3 LEGISLATOR NICOLELLO: Is that
4 under the taxation laws?

5 MR. DENION: It's under 523B of
6 the RPTL. As authorized to be our
7 administrative code.

8 LEGISLATOR NICOLELLO: So that's
9 not under the taxation laws?

10 MR. DENION: It is but it's also
11 authorized by the state legislature, as
12 opposed to this proposed local law, would not
13 be authorized by the state legislature.

14 LEGISLATOR NICOLELLO: I think
15 there was a term that Legislator Ferretti used
16 but I'm not going to use it right now. Anyone
17 else have any questions? Legislator Rhoads.

18 LEGISLATOR RHOADS: Thank you for
19 your presentation Mr. Denion. Just a couple
20 of follow-up questions.

21 Essentially it sounds as though the
22 county attorney's point in all of this is that
23 somehow by this legislation we are attempting
24 to change what state law says the process
25 should be for the SCAR hearings. That's

1 Full - 5-24-21

2 essentially what the county attorney's opinion
3 is?

4 MR. DENION: Yes. That's part of
5 it, yes.

6 LEGISLATOR RHOADS: However, when
7 you look at what we're actually attempting to
8 do in this law we're simply governing what is
9 disclosed by our own internal county
10 employees. We don't change the process of
11 state law at all. The SCAR hearings still
12 proceed the same way that SCAR hearings would
13 proceed. We're just controlling the
14 information that's provided by our own
15 employees and disclosed to participants in
16 that hearing.

17 MR. DENION: I don't necessarily
18 agree with that because what the law does is
19 say that if the county fails to provide the
20 information required by the local law it would
21 be prevented from offering the evidence that
22 it otherwise could under the state law. And
23 therefore that is different from the state
24 law. There's nothing in the state law that
25 says that the county would be barred from

1 Full - 5-24-21

2 presenting evidence in a de novo proceeding
3 that the hearing officer or the court would
4 need to determine that assessment for the
5 first time.

6 LEGISLATOR RHOADS: But why
7 wouldn't we have the ability, just as any
8 client would of any attorney, why wouldn't we
9 have the ability to control that information
10 we present at a hearing?

11 MR. DENION: For one thing, the
12 law not only requires that a disclosure of
13 what the county's evidence would be, but also
14 requires what the county attorney has
15 concluded could be legal advice to the other
16 side which would present issues of --

17 LEGISLATOR RHOADS: Let's deal
18 with the first issue first. Why don't I have
19 the ability as the client to direct our
20 employees as to what information they may or
21 may not present at a hearing? Understand, in
22 this legislation we are not preventing the
23 court or the hearing officer from receiving
24 any information. We're simply making a
25 determination as to the ground rules that our

1 Full - 5-24-21

2 department is going to operate under as to
3 what information is provided.

4 MR. DENION: I do think there is
5 a restriction on the ability of the evidence
6 to be presented to the hearing officer because
7 the law says it has to be done 30 days prior
8 to the hearing. When the real property tax
9 law requires them to only send a notice out
10 ten days before.

11 LEGISLATOR RHOADS: Let's say we
12 made the 30 days seven days, does that fix the
13 problem?

14 MR. DENION: It would take care
15 of that particular part of it. But again, the
16 failure to --

17 LEGISLATOR RHOADS: No, no.
18 Conceptually, because we keep bouncing around
19 to different topics here, what I'm trying to
20 understand philosophically is why us giving
21 direction to what county employees are going
22 to do somehow violates state law?

23 MR. DENION: Because it's under
24 state law that you're not allowed to do that
25 local law making because it would interfere

1 Full - 5-24-21

2 with ultimately the evidence that would be
3 presented in the forum where the hearing
4 officer or the judge would want to get the
5 evidence that the state law allows.

6 LEGISLATOR RHOADS: So, if in a
7 normal court proceeding let's say any personal
8 injury case for example, let's say we make a
9 determination that I don't want to take the
10 witness stand as a witness, right? I'm not
11 preventing the court from receiving that
12 information, right? The court would still be
13 able to receive it. If the law says that
14 we're entitled to get it you would still be
15 able to get it. I'm just making a strategic
16 decision that I don't want to present that
17 particular piece of evidence. How does that
18 violate state law?

19 MR. DENION: I think the
20 difference here is you'd be making a local law
21 that said that. Whereas, if the county
22 attorney or the county executive wanted to
23 direct employees in course of a SCAR hearing
24 what to do or not do that's a different
25 issue. But it's the law making that makes a

1 Full - 5-24-21

2 difference.

3 LEGISLATOR RHOADS: Here's a
4 philosophical question. The county executive
5 doesn't get to do whatever she wants whenever
6 she wants. The legislature has a role to play
7 here. So, we have a role in setting some of
8 these grounds rules as well. We have the
9 ability to tell the county executive these are
10 the ground rules that I want you to play
11 under. That's law making. That's kind of
12 what we do.

13 MR. DENION: To the extent that
14 you're not prohibited by state law.

15 LEGISLATOR RHOADS: We're not
16 prohibited.

17 MR. DENION: I think the county
18 attorney has a different opinion, again, for
19 the reasons stated.

20 LEGISLATOR RHOADS: But again,
21 I'm trying to understand why the county
22 attorney has that opinion.

23 MR. DENION: Because it would a
24 law related to taxes which I believe is
25 tantamount to assessment in this context.

1 Full - 5-24-21

2 Plus there would be an inconsistency with the
3 general law and the county is not allowed to
4 make local laws inconsistent with state
5 general laws.

6 LEGISLATOR RHOADS: I'm still
7 trying to understand how it's inconsistent.
8 I'm not changing what evidence the judicial
9 hearing officer is able to receive. I'm
10 controlling what evidence our own employees
11 are able to offer. By the way, making it more
12 restrictive for the county as opposed to
13 broadening it.

14 MR. DENION: I respectfully
15 disagree because, again, the ultimate penalty
16 on the county through this law would be not
17 being able to present evidence that otherwise
18 would be presented in a hearing under the
19 RPTL.

20 So, a judge who is looking at a
21 case, again, a brand new proceeding, it's not
22 a review of the assessor's work, getting
23 evidence from the petitioner and getting
24 evidence from the government, that judge is
25 not going to get evidence from the government

1 Full - 5-24-21

2 under certain circumstances in this law.
3 Certainly not evidence that is normal and
4 expected of three comparables say in a SCAR
5 hearing. Because this law says that the only
6 evidence that can be presented is what the
7 assessor did. Which is a computer-assisted
8 mass appraisal based on all the factors that
9 you know very well, the ladder and all the
10 rest. How the assessor builds a model
11 assessment is much different from a review of
12 that assessment asking for three comparables.

13 LEGISLATOR RHOADS: But that's
14 actually not what the law says. What the law
15 essentially says is that all we want the
16 Department of Assessment to do is whatever
17 we're going to rely upon in a SCAR hearing we
18 want disclosed to the petitioner in advance of
19 the hearing. We may have a discrepancy with
20 respect to 30 days and the hearing is only
21 noticed ten days before. So, that's something
22 that we can adjust and address.

23 I'm trying to understand why it is
24 that us simply saying, look, whatever
25 information we're going to rely upon for the

1 Full - 5-24-21

2 sake of fairness and transparency we're going
3 to disclose to the petitioner so that they're
4 not getting sandbagged at the hearing with
5 something that they don't know about and
6 haven't prepared for and can't prepare for and
7 can't react to at the hearing.

8 MR. DENION: But, respectfully,
9 it does more than that. I will read from the
10 proposed law. The Department of Assessment
11 shall only present evidence that it used to
12 determine the assessed value in dispute. It
13 is precluded from offering any other
14 evidence.

15 So, it does say that they can only
16 present evidence that they used to determine
17 the assessment. Which is a different process
18 from what goes on at SCAR.

19 LEGISLATOR RHOADS: So, what
20 would the county attorney's opinion be if we
21 were to modify that language? Because I
22 understand that there's some ambiguity there.
23 If I were to modify that language or we were
24 to modify that language simply to say whatever
25 evidence the Department of Assessment intends

1 Full - 5-24-21

2 to present at the SCAR hearing must be
3 disclosed to the petitioner within whatever
4 time frame is reasonable?

5 MR. DENION: I'm reluctant to
6 discuss a hypothetical and I don't want to
7 give the county attorney's opinion but I think
8 that would be different than this.

9 LEGISLATOR RHOADS: Really it's
10 not because if the basis for the county
11 attorney's opinion is that somehow we're
12 impacting state law by requiring this that
13 opinion should be the same, right?

14 MR. DENION: Again, the various
15 facets of the law that the county attorney has
16 pointed out that are inconsistent it deals
17 with, again, not allowing evidence that
18 otherwise could be presented. So, if you
19 change the law to say any evidence that could
20 be presented under the state law must be
21 disclosed I think that's a different question.

22 LEGISLATOR RHOADS: Out of
23 curiosity, what would be the penalty? Because
24 I think we all have experience on this board
25 and I know certainly Legislator Ferretti and I

1 Full - 5-24-21

2 have experience with laws being passed and
3 adopted by the county executive that she
4 simply decided not follow for a period of
5 time.

6 My question is, what exactly would
7 be the sanction on the Department of
8 Assessment for not complying with the
9 requirement to disclose the information to the
10 petitioner in advance of the hearing?

11 MR. DENION: It's what I just
12 read to you. That they're limited to the
13 proof of that -- also failure to timely
14 disclose the proof precludes the department
15 from offering evidence, any evidence at the
16 hearing. That's your penalty.

17 LEGISLATOR RHOADS: I understand
18 what the legislation says. But in the county
19 attorney's opinion what sanction is
20 permissible?

21 MR. DENION: I don't want to
22 address a hypothetical like that.

23 LEGISLATOR RHOADS: So, the
24 county attorney can only tell us what's wrong
25 he can't tell us what's right?

1 Full - 5-24-21

2 MR. DENION: I think he can
3 address legislation that's before him, before
4 this body and that he's been asked to review.
5 Again, a hypothetical is a different thing.
6 You want to see it in writing. There could be
7 nuances. You're an attorney. You know
8 hypotheticals are dangerous things.

9 LEGISLATOR RHOADS: I understand
10 that Mr. Denion, but again the larger point
11 and the thing I'm still having difficulty
12 understanding though is why it is that setting
13 the grounds rules for our own employees
14 impacts state law?

15 If we're saying, look, in the
16 interest of fairness and equity we're
17 requiring that the Department of Assessment
18 provide to the other side in an adversarial
19 proceeding disclosure of our proof in advance
20 of the hearing so that they can react and
21 respond to it. And if you don't do that,
22 we're making a decision as the county that
23 we're not going to present proof at all at the
24 SCAR hearing if we fail to do that. Why can't
25 I, as the client, voluntarily do that? How

1 Full - 5-24-21

2 does that violate state law? We're not
3 changing state law. We're just setting the
4 ground rules that our own employees operate
5 under.

6 MR. DENION: Under this proposal
7 those ground rules result in the county not
8 being able to present evidence that it would
9 otherwise ordinarily do and that the court
10 would expect to see as in three comparable
11 properties in the case of a SCAR hearing.

12 LEGISLATOR RHOADS: The simple
13 way to avoid that is doing what the law
14 requires, right?

15 MR. DENION: Which is?

16 LEGISLATOR RHOADS: Which is
17 disclosing. That's only a sanction if you
18 fail to abide by the law.

19 MR. DENION: But the law says
20 that you can't offer three comparable
21 properties because it says you can only do
22 what -- can only present evidence of what
23 Assessment did in setting the assessment.
24 Which is different. That's not three
25 comparables. That's a computer model that

1 Full - 5-24-21

2 generates an assessment.

3 LEGISLATOR RHOADS: For the
4 moment, let's look past that. Let's say
5 there's an amendment here to the law which
6 simply -- again, the point of the law is
7 simply whatever proof we're relying upon at
8 the hearing we've got to disclose in within X
9 number of days prior to the hearing so that
10 the claimant, the petitioner, has full
11 disclosure.

12 MR. DENION: I would reserve the
13 right of the county attorney to review that
14 when he sees it in writing. I don't want him
15 to address it as a supposition or a
16 hypothetical if the law were changed.

17 LEGISLATOR RHOADS: Would that
18 satisfy his concern?

19 MR. DENION: It may or may not
20 and I don't want to speak for him but I don't
21 want to speak to a hypothetical. It's not the
22 law we've been asked to review. Can only
23 review the one that's before us.

24 LEGISLATOR RHOADS: But that
25 seems to be the basis of the objection,

1 Full - 5-24-21

2 right?

3 MR. DENION: Again, there are a
4 number of bases of objection here. Not saying
5 that things couldn't be improved or things
6 could eventually be different. I don't know.
7 But I can't speak for the county attorney and
8 we'd have to see what those changes were
9 before offering an opinion.

10 LEGISLATOR RHOADS: Conceptually,
11 it seems as though the county attorney would
12 agree that we do have the ability to direct
13 our own employees, right?

14 MR. DENION: I think there's
15 probably some room for that to the extent it
16 doesn't interfere with the state general law
17 or any other prohibition on the county's local
18 law making ability.

19 LEGISLATOR RHOADS: So, I think
20 we're in agreement that if we were to move
21 this to seven days that would alleviate the
22 county attorney's concerns about the timing.

23 MR. DENION: That one particular
24 concern.

25 LEGISLATOR RHOADS: I think that

1 Full - 5-24-21

2 if we were to modify the language, it sounds
3 as though, if we were to modify the language
4 that we must simply provide the -- to make it
5 clearer -- that we don't have to provide the
6 information we initially relied upon. We have
7 to provide the information that we intend to
8 use at the hearing in advance of the hearing.

9 MR. DENION: I think you can take
10 a look at that and see what it looks like.

11 LEGISLATOR RHOADS: That seems as
12 though that would, conceptually, that would
13 satisfy that concern.

14 MR. DENION: Potentially.

15 LEGISLATOR RHOADS: So, now with
16 respect specifically to the issue of
17 preclusion from offering evidence, the county
18 attorney's opinion is that the reason that we
19 can't preclude the Department of Assessment
20 from offering evidence if they fail to
21 disclose it is because we're denying the state
22 the opportunity to receive the evidence?

23 MR. DENION: The hearing officer
24 and the court. That's the standard practice
25 and that's the scheme, that's the framework of

1 Full - 5-24-21

2 Article 7, it's an adversarial proceeding like
3 any other and evidence is presented on both
4 sides. Out of that, again, it's a de novo
5 proceeding to determine the assessment in
6 question. It's not a review of the assessor's
7 work. So, if the county is not able to
8 present evidence to the court in this brand
9 new proceeding the court can't do what it's
10 supposed to do under the statute.

11 LEGISLATOR RHOADS: It simply
12 would mean that the claimant would win.

13 MR. DENION: That leads to like
14 any other issues about is does that raise a
15 question of waste? Does it raise a question
16 of improper gift where there is a defense to
17 be made?

18 LEGISLATOR RHOADS: I don't know
19 how it would raise the question of it being an
20 improper gift. But essentially what we're
21 talking about is that if the county fails to
22 abide by our own internal procedures that we
23 set up, we, as a penalty that we're imposing
24 on ourself, are going to say that we're not
25 going to present evidence.

1 Full - 5-24-21

2 MR. DENION: Again, I think it
3 rises to the level of interfering with the
4 state framework and that's --

5 LEGISLATOR RHOADS: To our own
6 disadvantage.

7 MR. DENION: Maybe so, of
8 course. But, again, that's not what the law
9 is. The law is whether or not we have the
10 power to enact a local law that does that. If
11 the state has preempted the field then you
12 can't enact a local law that has the effect of
13 changing state's plan for Article 7.

14 LEGISLATOR RHOADS: So, under no
15 circumstances, according to Mr. Kasschau, are
16 we able to direct or control the evidence that
17 we present in any judicial proceeding?

18 MR. DENION: I think it's too
19 broad a question. Again, the law before us I
20 think fails in that test.

21 LEGISLATOR RHOADS: But there are
22 conceptual parallels to this. Again, for
23 example, in any tax certiorari case, in any
24 auto accident case involving a county vehicle,
25 in any premises liability case we don't have

1 Full - 5-24-21

2 the ability to control what evidence we
3 present?

4 MR. DENION: You have to look
5 at -- if you passed a local law to control
6 that evidence to see whether or not it
7 interfered with the application of a state
8 general law. And if it did, then those
9 questions would have to be addressed. It's
10 not the question of administratively the
11 county attorney decided to do something, it's
12 whether the county legislature has the power
13 under the constitution and under the municipal
14 home rule law to enact a law that interferes
15 with the state general law. Does it interfere
16 with the operation of a state general law is
17 question you would have to ask in all those
18 situations.

19 LEGISLATOR RHOADS: I guess the
20 issue that I have is, how does it interfere?

21 MR. DENION: Because, again, it
22 it's a de novo proceeding where there's
23 evidence presented on both sides. It's
24 adversarial proceeding that the county would
25 be saying the county is not allowed by law to

1 Full - 5-24-21

2 do that even though the state law permits it
3 and any time a local law prohibits what the
4 state permits it runs afoul of the laws
5 against interfering with the state general
6 law.

7 LEGISLATOR RHOADS: I guess my
8 philosophical difference is that we're not
9 changing the information that the state can
10 receive we're making an internal direction as
11 a matter of policy and as a matter of law as
12 to what evidence we're going to produce.
13 There's a difference between what evidence is
14 being produced and what evidence can be
15 received, right?

16 We're not changing what information
17 the state is able to receive. We're changing
18 the information that we're actually going to
19 present.

20 MR. DENION: I do believe that
21 the state is not going to receive any evidence
22 from the county to counter the evidence
23 presented by the petitioner. In general,
24 petitioner will present evidence favorable --

25 LEGISLATOR RHOADS: So, in other

1 Full - 5-24-21

2 words, would it be more clear if we said that
3 if we don't comply with the disclosure
4 requirement we're simply not going to contest
5 the petition?

6 MR. DENION: Again, I think
7 anything that interferes with the operation of
8 the -- the state has set up Article 7 as a way
9 to determine the assessment. The way it does
10 that is it gets evidence from both sides and
11 looks at the assessment brand new. So, if the
12 county is passing a local law that interferes
13 with that operation, how that's envisioned to
14 work and play out, that the court is looking
15 to get evidence from both sides, if it doesn't
16 get evidence from both sides, why? because a
17 local law has changed the rules and changed
18 ground rules. That's what the problem is.

19 LEGISLATOR RHOADS: It changed
20 the rules for only one side.

21 MR. DENION: Which changes the
22 rules for the state law.

23 LEGISLATOR RHOADS: It didn't
24 change the rules for both sides. It changed
25 the rules for one side.

1 Full - 5-24-21

2 MR. DENION: But for one side is
3 interfering with how the law contemplates that
4 the judge or the hearing officer arrives at
5 the assessment by hearing new evidence from
6 both sides. Not what the assessor did but new
7 evidence from both sides.

8 LEGISLATOR RHOADS: It's making a
9 determination that under certain circumstances
10 we're not going to contest the petitioner.
11 That's the equivalent of a preclusion from
12 offering evidence. It means that we're simply
13 not going to contest or we're going to argue
14 based solely upon the information that's
15 provided by the petitioner. Why can't we make
16 a decision on behalf of the county, that's
17 what we do, why can't we make a decision on
18 behalf of the county as to what we're going to
19 produce? Or whether we're going to produce
20 evidence at all?

21 Under what you're saying
22 essentially, if the Department of Assessment
23 made a decision that they weren't going to
24 contest a particular petition that was before
25 SCAR we're not allowed to do that. What's the

1 Full - 5-24-21

2 difference between the Department of
3 Assessment making that determination and the
4 legislature, which controls the activities of
5 the Department of Assessment, just as it does
6 with every other department, making the
7 determination that under certain circumstances
8 we're not going to contest a petition?

9 MR. DENION: I think the
10 difference is local law making and whether
11 it's allowed.

12 LEGISLATOR RHOADS: Let me ask
13 this question then. Every year it seems the
14 deadline for ARC is extended. We don't have
15 the ability to actually extend the deadline
16 ourselves, right?

17 MR. DENION: I believe the way
18 that's done is a grace period provided by the
19 Assessment Review Commission.

20 LEGISLATOR RHOADS: The state is
21 the one that actually sets the deadline. What
22 we simply say is, we have made a determination
23 that we're not going to enforce the deadline
24 for a specific period of time. So, if you're
25 supposed to file your grievance by March 1st

1 Full - 5-24-21

2 we're going to give you until the 31st. It
3 doesn't mean that that deadline isn't March
4 1st. It just means that we're not going to
5 raise the defense of timeliness of your
6 petition until we reach March 31st, right?

7 MR. DENION: Are you asking about
8 what the Assessment Review Commission is doing
9 or what the legislative action was in those
10 cases?

11 LEGISLATOR RHOADS: What I'm
12 asking is, how is it that we're able to turn
13 around and simply say we're making an internal
14 policy determination that we're not going to
15 raise the defense of timeliness for an
16 application that's made, whatever the dates
17 happen to be, in this case in my example
18 you're supposed to file it by March 1st, you
19 filed it on March 30th, but you know what?
20 we're not going to raise the defense of
21 timeliness because we internally extended the
22 deadline or we simply said we're not going to
23 enforce the deadline up to March 31st. What's
24 the difference between that and this?

25 MR. DENION: When you say we --

1 Full - 5-24-21

2 that was the question I was trying to ask --
3 when you say we if you mean the Assessment
4 Review Commission has provided a grace period
5 that's again --

6 LEGISLATOR RHOADS: Every year
7 the Assessment Review, well, the Assessment
8 Review Commission is directed either by the
9 county executive or we have attempted to
10 direct the Assessment Review Commission, as a
11 legislature, but the county has taken an
12 action to direct the Assessment Review
13 Commission that it's not going to raise the
14 defense of timeliness for whatever the period
15 of time is. Whatever the grace period is.
16 What's the difference between that and us
17 legislatively saying to the Department of
18 Assessment, hey, you know what? if we violate
19 our own rules we have decided that we're not
20 going to raise a defense at SCAR?

21 MR. DENION: The difference is
22 that the Assessment Review Commission is
23 acting administratively. It's not enacting a
24 law, it's not passing a law that's conflicting
25 with the state law. It's providing a grace

1 Full - 5-24-21

2 period. And to the extent that the county
3 attorney does not raise that as a defense,
4 that's also an administrative decision. Those
5 are not local law making actions.

6 LEGISLATOR RHOADS: So what
7 you're essentially saying is that if the
8 county executive were to direct the Department
9 of Assessment -- if the county executive were
10 to direct the Department of Assessment to do
11 exactly what this law does that would be
12 permissible. But if the legislature passed it
13 by local law that would not be permissible?

14 MR. DENION: Again, it's a
15 hypothetical. I don't want to answer.

16 LEGISLATOR RHOADS: I really need
17 the answer to that question, Mr. Denion,
18 because it goes to the heart of what we're
19 trying to do here. What you're telling me is,
20 it sounds as though that the county executive
21 has the ability to direct the Department of
22 Assessment to do whatever it is that she wants
23 to do, waive whatever laws she wants to waive,
24 create whatever restrictions she wants to
25 create but the legislature, doing it by

1 Full - 5-24-21

2 operation of law as a coequal branch of
3 government does not have the ability to do
4 that?

5 MR. DENION: Not at all. That's
6 not what I said at all. Again, it's not the
7 county executive in your other question
8 directing ARC I believe the county executive
9 requests and ARC itself decides to provide a
10 grace period. Whether the county executive
11 can do exactly what's in this law I think
12 what's exactly in this law is problematic in a
13 number of fronts. But, again, that's a
14 hypothetical. I'm not here to talk about what
15 the county executive's powers are. It's a
16 question of what this law purports to do.

17 LEGISLATOR RHOADS: Mr. Denion,
18 the question is simple though. If the county
19 executive were to make a decision today saying
20 to the Department of Assessment hey, look,
21 you've got to provide whatever information
22 you're going to rely upon at a hearing seven
23 days before the hearing to the petitioner so
24 that they can have that information. If you
25 don't, we're going to waive our defense at

1 Full - 5-24-21

2 SCAR. Does the county executive, in the
3 county attorney's opinion, have the ability to
4 do that?

5 MR. DENION: As we talked about
6 earlier, that's an area that if the
7 legislature did that, that said, if the law
8 was not interfering with state law, changing
9 the evidence but just saying that you have to
10 present it to the other side within a certain
11 amount of time, again I'd like to see that in
12 writing but as you and I talked, that could be
13 an area where perhaps the legislature could
14 legislate.

15 So, if the legislature could do
16 that, I mean, again, without addressing the
17 hypothetical too directly, that the county
18 executive is able to, of course, direct the
19 departments that report to her in certain
20 ways. But just telling what you're going to
21 give the other side it's allowed and permitted
22 by state law it's a different question.
23 That's something that could be looked at.

24 LEGISLATOR RHOADS: I don't mean
25 to sort of usurp your authority here but do

1 Full - 5-24-21

2 you want to continue with questions if anybody
3 else has questions for this witness or do you
4 want to see if we have anyone from Finance?

5 LEGISLATOR NICOLELLO: I just
6 have a couple of follow-ups.

7 MR. DENION: I believe someone
8 from OMB is available virtually.

9 LEGISLATOR NICOLELLO: We'll
10 transition to that in a moment. Is there
11 anything in the law that prohibits the county
12 from providing a pro se petitioner with a
13 description of the type of evidence that
14 they're going to need at a SCAR hearing?

15 MR. DENION: I think that raises
16 some troubling issues that the county attorney
17 has identified. For a non-attorney at the
18 Department of Assessment to do that it would
19 require knowledge of both the statute that
20 governs the evidence and case law that has
21 interpreted a statute which could be seen as
22 the improper practice of law which carries
23 consequences. And for an attorney to do it it
24 raises ethical issues of providing advice to
25 both sides in a litigation.

1 Full - 5-24-21

2 LEGISLATOR NICOLELLO: So,
3 there's no way that the county attorney,
4 Department of Assessment can sit down and
5 write down a list of the type of evidence that
6 a pro se petitioner can bring to court because
7 it violates ethical obligations on both?

8 MR. DENION: It's legal advice.
9 It's governed by statute and case law. Where
10 do you start? Where do you stop?

11 LEGISLATOR NICOLELLO: To be
12 honest with you, our approach here is we have
13 identified what is an unlevel playing field at
14 these SCAR hearings and we have identified
15 that by talking to the people, individuals who
16 go to these hearings, and it seems to me that
17 the administration likes the unlevel playing
18 field and they like it because of financial
19 reasons. You set forth that one of the main
20 reasons to oppose this is because the county
21 would lose revenue.

22 Every suggestion we've given you
23 you've given us a reason why you can't do it.
24 That in particular seems flimsy. I don't for
25 a moment believe that this government couldn't

1 Full - 5-24-21

2 put together a fact sheet and provide it to a
3 resident who's going to a SCAR hearing and
4 that that would not be a violation of an
5 attorney's duties. It would not be illegal
6 practicing of law. I believe that's done all
7 the time. Agencies across the state, if you
8 have challenges to those agencies, will tell
9 you what you have to present at a hearing.
10 The fact that you're resisting that is kind of
11 stunning to me.

12 MR. DENION: I can't speak to the
13 other statutes but I will comment that the
14 whole point of the SCAR statute is to be as
15 informal and friendly as possible and
16 representatives do not have to be attorneys.
17 So representatives are eager to represent
18 everyone who's out there who wants to do it
19 pro se. Who wants to, I'm sorry, challenge
20 their taxes. I think they're out there trying
21 to represent people. Attorneys are obviously
22 trying to get that business. I don't know if
23 it's the county's business to represent or try
24 to make legal representations to someone on
25 the other side of litigation.

1 Full - 5-24-21

2 LEGISLATOR NICOLELLO: It's not a
3 legal representation. They're simply
4 providing a general description of the type of
5 evidence that an individual can present. And
6 it's not a friendly proceeding. The
7 representative from the county is trying to
8 defeat the claim of the petitioner. So it's
9 not a friendly -- it's not a helpful
10 procedure. All we're trying to do is give
11 someone who's challenging their assessment,
12 who goes to this length to a SCAR hearing,
13 give them the simple tool to determine what I
14 can come in with and what I can present to the
15 judicial hearing officer.

16 Does the county have the power to
17 determine what evidence it's going to present
18 at the SCAR proceeding?

19 MR. DENION: I believe that the
20 administration does. But again, it's back to
21 the question of whether the county legislature
22 can enact a local law that changes the
23 evidence that the court --

24 LEGISLATOR NICOLELLO: So when
25 this proceeding is taking place it's the

1 Full - 5-24-21

2 county that's defending, correct? You're
3 making a distinction in response to a very
4 simple question. When the county of Nassau is
5 participating in these proceedings it has the
6 ability to determine what evidence it's going
7 to rely on, correct?

8 MR. DENION: The departments that
9 are involved are the Department of Assessment
10 and the county attorney's office. And there
11 is discretion to determine the scope, right,
12 and the breath of the defense, sure.

13 LEGISLATOR NICOLELLO: Do those
14 departments have the power to determine
15 whether in advance they're going to provide
16 these pre se petitioners the comparables sales
17 that they're going to rely upon?

18 MR. DENION: I don't believe that
19 they have that authority. I think it raises
20 ethical and the other issues that we
21 discussed.

22 LEGISLATOR NICOLELLO: You're an
23 attorney, correct?

24 MR. DENION: Sure.

25 LEGISLATOR NICOLELLO: Your

1 Full - 5-24-21

2 office handles civil discovery every day,
3 correct?

4 MR. DENION: Sure.

5 LEGISLATOR NICOLELLO: And your
6 office is providing to plaintiffs every day
7 information about the county's case as much
8 information as possible, correct?

9 MR. DENION: Again, I think we
10 agreed on that point that what the county's
11 evidence is is something that probably could
12 get done under a different version of this.
13 But --

14 LEGISLATOR NICOLELLO: Right.
15 So, it's different from what you just said. I
16 think we can agree then that the county can
17 decide that it's going to disclose its
18 comparable sales if it wants to.

19 MR. DENION: Just to be clear,
20 what I'm being consistent on is that the
21 county could disclose its evidence but it's a
22 different thing to say it's going to provide
23 advice what the other side can present.
24 That's a different thing to me.

25 LEGISLATOR NICOLELLO: We had

1 Full - 5-24-21

2 that discussion and I think, I mean, I think
3 that position has utterly -- is unsupported.
4 Again, there is nothing that would ever
5 prevent this county from putting together a
6 fact sheet and sending it to pro se petitioner
7 before the event and say here's the type of
8 evidence you need at this hearing just in a
9 general way. There's no way that violates
10 anybody's ethical, legal, professional
11 responsibility.

12 Again, the resistance of the county
13 to this leads me back to -- I think this is
14 why we're going to need someone from Finance --
15 that it almost seems as if the county enjoys
16 the unlevel playing field and enjoys the fact
17 that it can defeat Joe who comes in trying to
18 get his assessment correct because Joe doesn't
19 know what he's doing. The county has all the
20 power. It seems that that's what the real
21 resistance is not what you're suggesting.

22 MR. DENION: I respectfully
23 disagree. Again, the county spends a lot of
24 money and time at ARC to make sure that those
25 pro se petitioners have the ability on the

1 Full - 5-24-21

2 administrative level at no cost, to file at no
3 cost at ARC, to get a resolution at that
4 level. As you know, you've been here forever,
5 it's been a big process with ARC to improve
6 ARC over the years. About a year's worth of
7 time to do that. Increase staff. Increase
8 budget. They're doing their best for pro
9 ses. I believe maybe Mr. Miles can address
10 the outreach to pro ses at ARC. But I think
11 the county is trying to help pro se
12 petitioners get a resolution as expeditiously
13 and as inexpensively as possible. But when it
14 gets into a court proceeding then these issues
15 do unfortunately come up.

16 LEGISLATOR NICOLELLO: Is there
17 anyone here Finance?

18 MR. DENION: I believe it may be
19 remote. Phil Wasserman from OMB is on
20 remotely.

21 LEGISLATOR NICOLELLO: All
22 right. I guess Mr. Orlando is not available
23 but actually the memo we have is from him.

24 MS. HORST: The request for DC
25 Orlando came in as this meeting was starting.

1 Full - 5-24-21

2 So, he was not available. But Phil did make
3 himself available.

4 LEGISLATOR NICOLELLO: Thank you.

5 Mr. Wasserman, you're familiar with
6 the memo that was submitted by DCE Orlando?

7 MR. WASSERMAN: Yes, I am.

8 LEGISLATOR NICOLELLO: You want
9 to just summarize what that memo says?

10 MR. WASSERMAN: So, what we
11 looked at was basically what would be the
12 implications for the county financially if we
13 were to lose 100 percent of the pro se cases,
14 80 and 60 percent of the pro se cases. This
15 was an estimate based on previous year and we
16 just sort of scaled up the cost to the county
17 assuming those losses.

18 LEGISLATOR NICOLELLO: Legislator
19 Ferretti. Are you finished Mr. Wasserman?

20 MR. WASSERMAN: I'm sorry?

21 LEGISLATOR NICOLELLO: I thought
22 you had stop and you started talking again. I
23 wasn't sure if you were done or not.

24 MR. WASSERMAN: We also looked at
25 what would happen if this law was extended to

1 Full - 5-24-21

2 all SCAR hearings and there we showed what
3 would happen on a hearings basis and then for
4 all filers, assuming all SCAR filers would
5 basically push for a hearing with this law in
6 place.

7 LEGISLATOR NICOLELLO: Legislator
8 Ferretti.

9 LEGISLATOR FERRETTI: Thank you
10 Presiding Officer. I have questions kind of
11 for probably for all three of you,
12 Mr. Wasserman, Mr. Miles and Mr. Denion. Mr.
13 Denion, if I could start with you. I might
14 kind of like go from one to other. It's just
15 easier. Mr. Denion, the county attorney
16 opinion who requested it?

17 MR. DENION: I believe it could
18 have been OLBR. Maurice I believe. OLBR.

19 LEGISLATOR FERRETTI: That's who
20 it was provided to, right?

21 MR. DENION: Yes. It was given to
22 me.

23 LEGISLATOR FERRETTI: But who
24 actually requested it? Was it the
25 administration or the county executive's

1 Full - 5-24-21

2 office? Who requested it?

3 MR. DENION: I believe the
4 administration. I don't know if Maurice wants
5 to address that.

6 MR. CHALMERS: Maurice Chalmers,
7 OLBR. We reached out to the administration to
8 ask them for an impact, projected impact on
9 this local law and we got those two memos
10 back.

11 LEGISLATOR FERRETTI: From who?

12 MR. CHALMERS: From the county
13 executive's office. The administration.

14 LEGISLATOR FERRETTI: The county
15 executive requested this county attorney
16 opinion, is that correct?

17 MR. CHALMERS: That would be
18 correct.

19 LEGISLATOR FERRETTI: Mr. Denion,
20 I see there are three questions presented.
21 The Presiding Officer, Legislator Rhoads
22 they've kind of dug into questions one and
23 two. But I'm just looking at question three
24 and maybe this is a question for Robert. I'm
25 trying to understand why a question from the

1 Full - 5-24-21

2 county executive's office as to this financial
3 impact would go to the county attorney's
4 office to begin with?

5 MR. DENION: I think it's to
6 address the legal aspects of do we think that
7 this would have an effect on, in general, if
8 we don't speak to the numbers of course
9 because that's an analysis that OMB has done,
10 but, as you read, we think that more cases
11 would be lost and therefore more refunds would
12 be had and additional potential claims of
13 waste or gift issues which could lead to other
14 damages if this had a disparate impact is
15 another potential claim that's raised in the
16 memo. I think there are legal aspects which
17 would tend to have an impact on the county
18 finances that were proper for this memo to
19 address.

20 LEGISLATOR FERRETTI: Let's just
21 talk about your opinion as to number three.
22 The negative impact on county finances. Just
23 reading the section in the middle of the first
24 paragraph. Additionally, represented
25 petitioners would almost surely demand that

1 Full - 5-24-21

2 the county amend the local law to expand its
3 provisions to them in the interest of equal
4 treatment under law and fairness to all
5 taxpayers.

6 What basis do you make that
7 assertion?

8 MR. DENION: I believe that it's
9 seen as if pro se petitioners had this ability
10 to go into court without evidence on the other
11 side that perhaps the represented taxpayers
12 would say well, we'd like to have the same
13 benefits of the law that if the county doesn't
14 do what it's supposed to do it could result in
15 this very favorable treatment to them as
16 well. If so, that would lead to greater
17 refunds.

18 LEGISLATOR FERRETTI: Number
19 three your opinion is based on a
20 hypothetical?

21 MR. DENION: I think it's based
22 on a natural result that would come from this
23 law being passed.

24 LEGISLATOR FERRETTI: So that's a
25 natural result?

1 Full - 5-24-21

2 MR. DENION: I think it's an
3 extrapolation of what's going on here. Of
4 what would happen.

5 LEGISLATOR FERRETTI: Are you
6 also extrapolating that this body will vote a
7 certain way to appease those non-pro se
8 filers?

9 MR. DENION: I don't believe the
10 memo says anything like that.

11 LEGISLATOR FERRETTI: But your
12 opinion is taking a position based on a
13 hypothetical. Just about a half hour ago you
14 told Legislator Rhoads that hypotheticals are
15 dangerous. This entire opinion is based on
16 one.

17 MR. DENION: I wouldn't consider
18 this a hypothetical. If something happened
19 that happened. I think this is, again, an
20 extrapolation of a likely result of the law.
21 I think this is an extrapolation of what would
22 happen as a result if this law passed.

23 LEGISLATOR FERRETTI:
24 Hypothetically? Yes?

25 MR. DENION: I don't know if I

1 Full - 5-24-21

2 would use the same word.

3 LEGISLATOR FERRETTI: What word
4 would you use?

5 MR. DENION: Extrapolation.

6 LEGISLATOR FERRETTI: How many,
7 and this may be for Mr. Miles, how many SCAR
8 petitions were there this last year.

9 MR. MILES: 80,000.

10 LEGISLATOR FERRETTI: How many
11 were pro se?

12 MR. MILES: Approximately 550.

13 LEGISLATOR FERRETTI: Is that
14 about five percent of the filers were pro se?

15 MR. MILES: Potentially. I
16 didn't do the math.

17 LEGISLATOR FERRETTI: So really
18 what we're talking about here is about five
19 percent of the filers that are actually --

20 MR. MILES: Potentially, yeah.

21 LEGISLATOR FERRETTI: So, from
22 that, Mr. Denion, you're extrapolating that
23 100 percent will all of a sudden turn and
24 demand that they have this disclosure as
25 well?

1 Full - 5-24-21

2 MR. DENION: Again, the memo says
3 that they would likely demand this. Like it
4 says 100 percent, but it's the likely result
5 of this law being enacted.

6 LEGISLATOR FERRETTI: Let's
7 assume for a second that your extrapolation my
8 hypothetical as I read it is correct and 100
9 demand it. Let's also assume that this body
10 was to vote for that. Why is it assumed that
11 the county would lose every single case?

12 MR. DENION: It's the risk I
13 think that this is talking about. That the
14 risk that if, as the law is written, with ten
15 day notice from the court or 30 days notice
16 required by the law, all those cases would be
17 loss because we could not comply, then those
18 would be just a series of lost cases.

19 LEGISLATOR FERRETTI: So the,
20 quote unquote, most accurate assessment ever
21 we would lose all the cases?

22 MR. DENION: At the judicial
23 review stage it's not an issue of whether or
24 not what the assessor did. It's a brand new
25 look at it. If there's only evidence on one

1 Full - 5-24-21

2 side what the assessment is that's all the
3 court has before it.

4 LEGISLATOR FERRETTI: I think
5 we've talked ad nauseum about the first and
6 second questions presented to the county
7 attorney's office and it sounds like that the
8 bill can be tweaked to appease the concerns at
9 least listed in here, although I'm certain
10 there will be more once those concerns are
11 fixed, but if they were we still have this
12 number three. This issue of the financial
13 impact.

14 Now, if those concerns in question
15 presented one and question presented two were
16 appeased then the county should be able to
17 give the same exact evidence that they always
18 could have. It's just they have to disclose
19 that evidence to the other side. Just like
20 every other court proceeding that I can think
21 of you have to exchange evidence, right?

22 So, if number one and two could be
23 rectified in the county attorney's mind, would
24 that change the financial impact? Not a
25 hypothetical just extrapolating.

1 Full - 5-24-21

2 MR. DENION: I agree with you if
3 you change one and two it's going to change
4 three to that extent. Whatever that might be.

5 LEGISLATOR FERRETTI: Mr.
6 Wasserman.

7 MR. WASSERMAN: Yes, sir.

8 LEGISLATOR FERRETTI: Just
9 reading through the memo here. I want to
10 understand what the administration's position
11 is on SCAR hearings. What's the point of
12 them?

13 MR. DENION: I don't know if
14 that's a question for --

15 LEGISLATOR FERRETTI: No. Mr.
16 Wasserman.

17 MR. WASSERMAN: I would assume
18 you send out a tax bill that you believe is
19 the best representation of what the taxpayer
20 owes and the responsibility to the other
21 taxpayers to defend that.

22 LEGISLATOR FERRETTI: What we're
23 looking for is fair and accurate assessments,
24 right?

25 MR. WASSERMAN: I believe so,

1 Full - 5-24-21

2 yes.

3 LEGISLATOR FERRETTI: As a
4 threshold question, is the point of a SCAR
5 hearing to win at all costs or get the
6 assessments right?

7 MR. WASSERMAN: I'm sorry. I'm a
8 budget person. You should be asking the
9 people who try these hearings.

10 LEGISLATOR FERRETTI: Mr.
11 Wasserman, the reason I'm asking you is
12 because you're speaking on behalf of
13 Mr. Orlando, correct?

14 MR. WASSERMAN: Yes, that's
15 correct.

16 LEGISLATOR FERRETTI: I'm
17 referring to Mr. Orlando's memo where he
18 indicates that as written the legislation
19 could result in the county losing almost all
20 pro se cases with the resulting liability of
21 \$800,000.

22 Now, I would hope that that's not
23 the case considering we just had a
24 reassessment and supposedly it's the most
25 accurate in the history of the world. But

1 Full - 5-24-21

2 just assuming that that's true for a second,
3 my question is -- and I hate to be frank -- so
4 what? If these people were not assessed
5 properly and these residents go to SCAR and
6 the evidence that we use is disclosed to them
7 and we nevertheless lose, God bless, you
8 weren't assessed properly. You went through
9 the system and you won. What's the problem
10 with that?

11 MR. WASSERMAN: I think in a fair
12 trial if the taxpayer proves that the
13 assessment was incorrect then matzel tov.

14 LEGISLATOR FERRETTI: I agree.
15 We all agree. But then why does this memo
16 seem to indicate that that's a major concern
17 when in fact this memo only addresses that?

18 MR. WASSERMAN: I believe our
19 understanding that the impact of this law will
20 impact the ability of the county to properly
21 defend the roll. Properly defend the
22 assessments that were made.

23 LEGISLATOR FERRETTI: Look, I
24 think it's pretty clear that three questions
25 were presented for this opinion but really it

1 Full - 5-24-21

2 sounds to me like all they really care about
3 is number three, the financial impact. What
4 we should be shooting for is that residents of
5 Nassau County are taxed and assessed fairly
6 and accurately. What we're trying to do is
7 make a level playing field here. And it
8 sounds like the administration is doing
9 everything it can to keep an advantage. That
10 shouldn't be the goal. The goal should be
11 fair and accurate assessments. That should
12 have been the goal throughout this entire
13 process. It seems like every step of the way
14 when we try to make that the goal we get some
15 other -- I'm going to say it Rich --
16 gobbledygook thrown at us to tell us why we
17 can't do it. Thank you.

18 LEGISLATOR NICOLELLO: Are there
19 any other questions? Legislator Walker.

20 LEGISLATOR WALKER: I really
21 didn't have a question and I guess I really am
22 just summing up again what Legislator Ferretti
23 just said. Yes, I'm a legislator but I'm also
24 a taxpayer. I'm a widow. I struggle every
25 day to make ends meet and if I'm fighting my

1 Full - 5-24-21

2 assessment I want to go there and I want to be
3 able to have everything presented that I can
4 present but know what I'm up against. Know
5 what I'm fighting against. Like you would in
6 court. Know what you're up against.

7 From everything that you've stated
8 it's just reinforced over and over and over to
9 me as a taxpayer and as a legislator that we
10 don't really care if the assessment is right
11 when you get to that point, we just want to
12 win and take their money. That's what it
13 points out to me. And I think any resident
14 that might be sitting here is going to feel
15 that same way. They're not on a level playing
16 field. And yes, the county might lose money
17 but then it's because their home was assessed
18 improperly.

19 Many of our homes are still
20 assessed improperly and I think we know that,
21 and we can say this is the best assessment
22 ever and it's fair and it's wonderful, but
23 many of our homes are still being assessed
24 improperly. That's a problem and it's a
25 problem now that all we care about really is

1 Full - 5-24-21

2 worrying about losing all those, you know, ARC
3 or whatever it is. I'm so confused at this
4 point. The SCAR petitions. You're concerned
5 that we could lose basically all of them.
6 Well, too bad if we do because then the houses
7 weren't assessed properly.

8 Those people there that weren't
9 represented by an attorney, they're doing it
10 by themselves, they barely understand the
11 whole assessment process to begin with and now
12 it's just another way to say gotcha, you lose
13 we win. That's my perspective of what all has
14 been said this afternoon.

15 MR. DENION: Can I have a chance
16 to respond?

17 LEGISLATOR NICOLELLO: Sure.

18 MR. DENION: I would say that the
19 county is just trying to have obviously fair
20 and accurate assessments at the Department of
21 Assessment level. It's done a great job over
22 the last two years with the reassessment. ARC
23 is doing its best. And also when it comes to
24 the court procedure, when it comes to judicial
25 review county attorney, Department of

1 Full - 5-24-21

2 Assessment are doing their best to be fair to
3 both the petitioner and to the taxpayers who
4 have to pay the refunds.

5 It has to be a process that is the
6 one that is respected, I'm sorry, is based on
7 the current state law procedures that ensure
8 fairness and that the truth does come out at
9 the proceeding so it does result in a fair and
10 accurate assessment.

11 But I think the core of the problem
12 here is this changes that state operation of
13 law to arrive at that truth by changing the
14 inputs, changing the evidence and therefore it
15 presents an unfair advantage. The county
16 shouldn't have an unfair advantage and the
17 petitioner should not have an unfair
18 advantage. The state law properly balances
19 that. This tips the balance a little too much
20 in another different direction which harms all
21 the county taxpayers who have to pay those
22 refunds.

23 LEGISLATOR NICOLELLO: Legislator
24 Drucker.

25 LEGISLATOR DRUCKER: Thank you

1 Full - 5-24-21

2 Presiding Officer. I think this entire body
3 recognizes that we all want the same thing.
4 We want a fair and accurate assessment. But
5 once this SCAR matter gets to a hearing it
6 becomes an adversarial proceeding. It becomes
7 trial. It's called a trial de novo. And the
8 person responsible for obtaining the truth and
9 accuracy is the hearing officer. Or the
10 judge. So, I think we all want the same
11 thing.

12 But once it gets to that point
13 we're talking about a judicial proceeding.
14 It's not policy. It's not process any
15 longer. It's a matter of which side is going
16 to prevail and both sides try to present what
17 they have in the most favorable light.

18 But I think that to summarize here,
19 Legislator Rhoads and the presiding officer
20 after a very brief period of time, after an
21 hour and half of this though their line of
22 questioning shifted to hypotheticals. It was
23 always if. If we did this, if we did that, if
24 we did this and if did that why can't we do
25 it? Those are fair questions but they're not

1 Full - 5-24-21

2 fair questions today. Because isn't it true,
3 Mr. Denion, that this bill before us is trying
4 to do indirectly what we can't do directly,
5 which is to change the SCAR process? That's
6 why it conflicts with state law; isn't that
7 correct?

8 MR. DENION: I agree, yes.

9 LEGISLATOR DRUCKER: We've spent
10 a lot of time discussing hypotheticals and I
11 understand we should know what our parameters
12 are as legislators but it's not before us
13 today. This bill is fatally defective on its
14 face and it can't go forward. I think the
15 Majority recognizes that because their line of
16 questioning shifted early on to if. If we do
17 this and if we do that. Would you agree with
18 that?

19 MR. DENION: I'd rather you
20 characterize the nature of the questions.

21 LEGISLATOR DRUCKER: I just
22 wanted to make that point. But you agree
23 thought that what this bill does on its face
24 is patently defective because of what it's
25 trying to do indirectly what we can't do

1 Full - 5-24-21

2 directly?

3 MR. DENION: For the reasons
4 discussed, yes.

5 LEGISLATOR DRUCKER: I have no
6 further questions. Thank you.

7 LEGISLATOR NICOLELLO: Thank
8 you. Legislator Rhoads.

9 LEGISLATOR RHOADS: Just in
10 response to that. Look, the whole idea behind
11 a hearing is to give voice to concerns on both
12 sides of legislation. There's absolutely
13 nothing wrong with asking, okay, let's assume
14 that a point is being made or what happens if
15 we address it in this way. Talking about
16 hypotheticals or talking about extrapolations
17 or whatever the terminology is that you want
18 to use, I don't know how one is somehow good
19 and the other one isn't, that's part of the
20 law making process.

21 So, I don't have a problem with
22 asking those questions, getting feedback and
23 trying to find areas where there's common
24 ground that where we might be able to reach a
25 resolution. My whole question in this process

1 Full - 5-24-21

2 is, is there is common ground to reach a
3 resolution? I think what we're seeing here is
4 that we have a county executive who does not
5 want to do this and is using the county
6 attorney's office to come up with reasons for
7 why it cannot be done simply because she does
8 not want to come out and say we don't want to
9 level the playing field when it comes to
10 SCAR. That's my concern.

11 Whether that bears out remains to
12 be seen if there are amendments made to this
13 legislation and it passes, it remains to be
14 seen what the county executive winds up doing
15 with that.

16 Ultimately, this legislation is
17 about leveling the playing field and it is
18 about fairness. It's about disclosing as you
19 would do in any other court proceeding,
20 disclosing the evidence that's going to be
21 presented to the other side so that both sides
22 aren't surprised at the time of trial. That's
23 not anything earth shattering. That's
24 something that's done in virtually every other
25 area of the law except for some reason at

1 Full - 5-24-21

2 SCAR.

3 Our legislation has no broader
4 implication state-wide than Nassau County.
5 And we do have the ability to control what
6 happens in Nassau County and how we respond
7 and how we react to that we still have the
8 ability to control what our own employees do
9 even with respect to what they present at the
10 SCAR hearing.

11 So, I appreciate your testimony
12 here today Mr. Wasserman, Mr. Miles and
13 Mr. Denion. I think it's given us some food
14 for thought, and I know we will be revisiting
15 this very shortly.

16 LEGISLATOR NICOLELLO: I want to
17 echo what Legislator Rhoads said. I want to
18 thank you for your comments and, again, it
19 gives us some food for thought going forward.
20 I would like to invite Mr. Kasschau down for a
21 hearing on Friday afternoon if he's
22 available. Just kidding. I know that's his
23 last day. I think there would be a revolution
24 if I did that. Thank you.

25 We will close the hearing. Motion

1 Full - 5-24-21

2 to close. Legislator Rhoads makes a motion to
3 close. Legislator Ferretti makes a second.
4 All in favor of closing the hearing signify by
5 saying aye. Those opposed? Hearing is
6 closed. We will not be calling the proposed
7 local law today, so we have one other
8 hearing.

9 It's a hearing on a local law to
10 amend the Nassau County administrative code
11 with respect to vendor integrity and
12 disclosure documents for municipal
13 corporations and districts as defined by
14 Section 119-N of the New York State General
15 Municipal Law.

16 Legislator Walker moves that.
17 Seconded by Legislator Drucker. That's a
18 motion to open the hearing. All in favor of
19 opening the hearing signify by saying aye.
20 Those opposed? Hearing is now open.

21 Let's see. This is a legislation
22 intended to facilitate one aspect of the CRP
23 process that the county undertakes and these
24 revisions that we're going to be making in a
25 few moments when we get to the vote on the law

1 Full - 5-24-21

2 it was a collaborative effort between the
3 Majority and Minority caucuses. And I thank
4 both counsel who worked on this.

5 This legislation is intended to end
6 the requirement with respect to municipalities
7 who submit IMAs with the county for various
8 grants to prevent those municipalities from
9 having to come back every six months to file
10 new disclosure statements when nothing has
11 changed.

12 The legislation will require that a
13 municipal corporation or district will submit
14 updated vendor integrity and disclosure
15 documents when a principal, as defined by the
16 charter, is newly elected or appointed. It
17 also requires municipal corporations or
18 districts to provide vendor integrity and
19 disclosure documents every five years.

20 Again, it's trying to avoid having
21 the repetitive requests from municipalities to
22 submit these documents when nothing has change
23 in the course of six months.

24 Any debate or discussion? Motion
25 to close the hearing by -- sorry.

1 Full - 5-24-21

2 LEGISLATOR DERIGGI-WHITTON: I
3 just want to say this was a bipartisan effort
4 and I appreciate both sides of our caucuses
5 here. It was good to work together with our
6 legal teams as well as all the legislators. I
7 really think that this will hopefully help
8 make this process a little bit smoother for
9 each one of us. It was good to do together.

10 LEGISLATOR NICOLELLO: There's
11 another item coming later on that was worked
12 on by both sides as well.

13 Motion to close the hearing by
14 Legislator Bynoe. Seconded by Legislator
15 McKevitt. All in favor of closing the hearing
16 signify by saying aye. Those opposed?
17 Carries unanimously.

18 Move on to item 12, which is a vote
19 on a local law to amend the Nassau County
20 administrative code with respect to vendor
21 integrity and disclosure documents for
22 municipal corporations and districts as
23 defined by Section 119-N of the New York State
24 General Municipal Law.

25 Moved by Legislator

1 Full - 5-24-21

2 DeRiggi-Whitton. Seconded by Legislator
3 Ford. That's before us.

4 We need to make an amendment in the
5 nature of a substitution. And as stated
6 before, the amendment clarifies that a
7 municipal corporation or district must submit
8 updated vendor integrity and disclosure
9 documents when a principal, as defined by the
10 charter, is newly elected or appointed and
11 further requires a municipal corporation or
12 district to provide vendor integrity and
13 disclosure statements every five years.

14 Motion to amend by Legislator
15 Ford. Seconded by Legislator
16 DeRiggi-Whitton. All in favor of the
17 amendment signify by saying aye. Those
18 opposed? Amendment passes.

19 On the amended item, any debate or
20 discussion? All in favor of the amended item
21 signify by saying aye. Those opposed?
22 Carries unanimously.

23 Move on to item 14. This is
24 Ordinance 46. An ordinance to amend Ordinance
25 105 of 1985 as amended by Ordinances 154 of

1 Full - 5-24-21

2 1989, 103 of 2000 and 203 of 2001 with regard
3 to maintenance and guarantees associated with
4 road openings in Nassau County.

5 Moved by Legislator Rhoads.

6 Seconded by Deputy Presiding Officer Kopel.

7 Legislator Rhoads you want to make comments?

8 LEGISLATOR RHOADS: Sure. The
9 bill itself is rather simple. Nassau County
10 spends in 2020, 2021 will spend approximately
11 almost \$80 million for road resurfacing
12 projects. All throughout the county and one
13 only needs to travel on Franklin Avenue right
14 outside of these chambers you saw a perfectly
15 good roadway that was opened up by a utility
16 who then placed a temporary patch. And as a
17 result, anybody that's traveling right now
18 northbound on Franklin Avenue one would think
19 that you're driving -- hopefully you're
20 driving an all terrain vehicle in order to get
21 over the roadway.

22 What this legislation seeks to do
23 is to hold utilities accountable for the
24 patchwork that they create. Does a couple of
25 things. If a utility opens up a roadway it

1 Full - 5-24-21

2 has 60 days to replace its temporary patch
3 with permanent restoration. Unless there is
4 some sort of exigent circumstances which are
5 brought to the attention of the Department of
6 Public Works that they would have to agree
7 that those exigent circumstances exist.

8 If the utility does not make the
9 repairs within 60 days, the permanent in-kind
10 restoration, so, in other words, if it's
11 asphalt they have to replace it with asphalt,
12 if it's concrete they have to replace it with
13 concrete because we've seen that as well.
14 Concrete roadways where they put in a
15 permanent patch that's asphalt. Not good
16 enough. You got to put what was there. If
17 you broke it you got to replace it.

18 If they don't make the repairs
19 within 60 days it gives the Department of
20 Public Works the ability to come in and
21 actually make the restoration ourselves to our
22 specification and bill back the utility for
23 the cost of those repairs.

24 It also enables the county to
25 charge the utility a per diem fine for the

1 Full - 5-24-21

2 length of time that it takes to make that
3 restoration. It seeks to hold the utility
4 accountable and responsible. As well as for
5 the patches that they actually do put in, they
6 are responsible to maintain those patches for
7 the useful life of the roadway as determined
8 by the DPW commissioner.

9 Again, it's an issue of fairness
10 for the utility and an issue of fairness for
11 taxpayers. The useful life of the roadway is
12 determined by the commissioner because if a
13 roadway that is going to be replaced in 18
14 months is what's disturbed obviously the
15 utility shouldn't have a ten-year period that
16 they're responsible for it when we are
17 replacing the roadway.

18 Conversely, if it's a brand new
19 road and they are opening up the roadway they
20 should be responsible for maintaining it for
21 however long it is that we expect that roadway
22 to exist.

23 Again, this is about protecting the
24 investment that county taxpayers are making in
25 county roads that are disturbed by public

1 Full - 5-24-21

2 utilities and at the same time making sure
3 that those roadways are passable as quickly as
4 possible once that work has to take place.

5 LEGISLATOR NICOLELLO: Thank
6 you. Any other legislator want to comment?
7 Legislator Drucker.

8 LEGISLATOR DRUCKER: Thank you
9 Presiding Officer. I have no problem with
10 this bill per se. I really think it's a good
11 bill. However, I have a question for
12 Legislator Rhoads or anybody else on the
13 Majority. For full disclosure, did you
14 discuss this bill with the public utility
15 companies and is 60 days enough time to
16 conduct the necessary permanent rehabilitation
17 to the road? I just want to make sure.

18 LEGISLATOR RHOADS: I did have
19 some conversations not related to this bill
20 but I did have some conversations with
21 New York American Water with respect to
22 roadway restorations. I have had
23 conversations with respect to National Grid
24 regarding some clarifications that they wanted
25 with respect to the bill. The timeliness of

1 Full - 5-24-21

2 it was not a concern that was raised. So, the
3 60 days, I didn't ask that question
4 specifically, but the 60 days doesn't seem to
5 be a source of any concern.

6 LEGISLATOR DRUCKER: They raised
7 it with me. So, I just wanted to know if you
8 had any further discussion on it. They did
9 raise that 60 days could be potentially
10 problematic. But you know what? it is what it
11 is.

12 LEGISLATOR RHOADS: That's why if
13 there are exigent circumstances they can
14 certainly explain that to the Department of
15 Public Works. And it gives the Department of
16 Public Works the flexibility to be able to
17 adjust that time frame based on circumstances
18 on the ground.

19 LEGISLATOR NICOLELLO: Anyone
20 else? Hearing none, all in favor of this item
21 signify by saying aye. All in favor signify
22 by saying aye. Those opposed? Carries
23 unanimously.

24 Item 21 Resolution 76. A
25 resolution authorizing the county to execute

1 Full - 5-24-21

2 an agreement with American Traffic Solutions,
3 Inc. d/b/a Verra Mobility and two agreements
4 with school districts in relation to the
5 county's bus Stop-Arm Photo Enforcement
6 program.

7 Moved by Legislator Walker.

8 Seconded by Legislator Mule.

9 MS. MALHAME: Allison Malhame,
10 deputy commissioner of shared services.

11 LEGISLATOR NICOLELLO: Thank you
12 for coming today. The IG has informed us that
13 she is still undertaking an investigation into
14 the contract which she has not completed yet.
15 I don't believe the legislature will be
16 passing this today. We have meetings coming
17 up, both committees and full legislature in
18 June, we can always defer action until that
19 time.

20 I had one question. I'm sure a lot
21 of other legislator have questions. The
22 warning time period in the agreement I guess
23 with the vendor is 30 days, correct?

24 MS. MALHAME: Yes. That's the
25 amount of time that's stated in the local law

1 Full - 5-24-21

2 is 30 days.

3 LEGISLATOR NICOLELLO: My
4 understanding is that Suffolk extended theirs
5 to 60 days. I think Katy would like to say
6 something.

7 MS. HORST: We're going to be
8 introducing legislation to extend that warning
9 period to 60 days.

10 LEGISLATOR NICOLELLO: The local
11 law that you were referring to is the local
12 law that's before us or a local law passed by
13 the state of New York?

14 MS. MALHAME: The law passed by
15 the legislature here.

16 LEGISLATOR NICOLELLO: Katy, you
17 want to clarify? Or somebody?

18 MR. GREGWARE: Dan Gregware,
19 deputy county attorney's office. Yes, that's
20 correct. Allison had stated that correctly.
21 It's the local law that the county legislature
22 had approved. They had a 30-day warning
23 period in that local law legislation.

24 LEGISLATOR NICOLELLO: So it has
25 to be changed by local law to 60 days,

1 Full - 5-24-21

2 correct?

3 MR. GREGWARE: Correct. As Katy
4 just confirmed, the administration is going to
5 be proposing I guess a new local law or an
6 amendment to that local law extending it to 60
7 days. I think the agreement itself is pretty
8 flexible with respect to the warning period.
9 It doesn't specifically state a 30-day warning
10 period. I think we should be okay on that
11 front. It's just a matter of amending that
12 local law.

13 LEGISLATOR NICOLELLO: Thank
14 you. Anyone else? Thank you. As I said, the
15 IG is completing her investigation and report,
16 so we are hopeful that we can take action on
17 this in the very near future. But for today,
18 we are bound to wait until she finishes.
19 Thank you.

20 Last item is Resolution 83. It's
21 item 28. It's a resolution authorizing and
22 directing the Nassau County Department of
23 Information and Technology to provide
24 legislative staff read only access to the
25 county's electronic contract routing system,

1 Full - 5-24-21

2 ECRS.

3 Moved by Legislator

4 DeRiggi-Whitton. Seconded by Legislator

5 Ford. Again, this was a collaborative effort
6 between the Majority and the Minority. The
7 item is going to be amended and the amendment
8 will do the following. Will specify that the
9 information that must be provided by access to
10 ECRS including but not limited to the status
11 of departmental approvals of agreements
12 pertaining to CRPs. Departments that approved
13 such agreements and the date approval was
14 given as well as the department for which
15 approvals are pending.

16 Legislator Ford makes a motion on
17 that amendment. Legislator DeRiggi-Whitton
18 seconds that. Any debate or discussion on the
19 amendment? All in favor of the amendment
20 signify by saying aye. Those opposed? The
21 amendment passes unanimously.

22 Again, this relates to the county's
23 CPR grants. It will give the legislature the
24 opportunity to look at the ECRS system,
25 without making changes, to identify where a

1 Full - 5-24-21

2 particular grant is in the process. If it is
3 still pending approval for some length of time
4 with a specific office we can make inquiries
5 of what the delay is. But the motivation is
6 to try to streamline the process and get these
7 through the system more quickly.

8 As to the item as amended, all in
9 favor signify by saying aye. Those opposed?
10 Carries unanimously.

11 Motion to adjourn? Legislator
12 Rhoads. Seconded by Legislator Mule. All in
13 favor of adjourning signify by saying aye.
14 Those opposed? Carries unanimously.

15 We are adjourned.

16 (Meeting was adjourned at 3:55 p.m.)

17

18

19

20

21

22

23

24

25

1
2
3
4
5
6
7
8
9
10
11
12
13
14
15
16
17
18
19
20
21
22
23
24
25

CERTIFICATION

I, FRANK GRAY, a Notary
Public in and for the State of New
York, do hereby certify:

THAT the foregoing is a true and
accurate transcript of my stenographic
notes.

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, I have
hereunto set my hand this second day of
June 2021.

FRANK GRAY

LEGISLATIVE CALENDAR

NASSAU COUNTY LEGISLATURE
SIXTEENTH MEETING
FIFTH MEETING OF 2021

MINEOLA, NEW YORK
MAY 24, 2021 1:00PM
LEGISLATIVE CALENDAR

Please be advised that due to health and safety concerns associated with the COVID-19 virus, the Peter J. Schmitt Memorial Legislative Chamber will be open to a maximum of thirty-five members of the public. Further, this meeting will be available for viewing online at <http://www.nassaucountyny.gov/agencies/Legis/index.html>

Public comment on any item may be emailed to the Clerk of the Legislature at LegPublicComment@nassaucountyny.gov and will be made part of the formal record of this Legislative meeting.

While Chamber capacity is limited, the Nassau County Legislature is committed to making its public hearings accessible to individuals with disabilities. If, due to a disability, you need an accommodation or assistance to participate in the public hearing or to obtain a copy of the transcript of the public hearing in an alternative format in accordance with the provisions of the Americans with Disabilities Act, please contact the Office of the Clerk of the Legislature at 571-4252, or the Nassau County Office of the Physically Challenged at 227-7101 or TDD telephone No. 227-8989.

EVERY LEGISLATIVE MEETING IS STREAMED LIVE ON
<http://www.nassaucountyny.gov/agencies/Legis/index.html>

1. **HEARING ON ORDINANCE NO. 126-2020**

AN ORDINANCE TO ADOPT THE CAPITAL BUDGET FOR THE COUNTY OF NASSAU FOR THE FIRST YEAR OF THE FOUR-YEAR CAPITAL PLAN, TO COMMENCE ON JANUARY 1, 2021, PURSUANT TO THE PROVISIONS OF SECTION 310 OF THE COUNTY GOVERNMENT LAW OF NASSAU COUNTY. 305-20(PW)

2. **ORDINANCE NO. 126-2020**

AN ORDINANCE TO ADOPT THE CAPITAL BUDGET FOR THE COUNTY OF NASSAU FOR THE FIRST YEAR OF THE FOUR-YEAR CAPITAL PLAN, TO COMMENCE ON JANUARY 1, 2021, PURSUANT TO THE PROVISIONS OF SECTION 310 OF THE COUNTY GOVERNMENT LAW OF NASSAU COUNTY. 305-20(PW)

3. **RESOLUTION NO. 168-2020**

A RESOLUTION TO ADOPT THE FOUR-YEAR CAPITAL PLAN FOR THE COUNTY OF NASSAU, TO COMMENCE ON JANUARY 1, 2021, PURSUANT TO THE PROVISIONS OF SECTION 310 OF THE COUNTY GOVERNMENT LAW OF NASSAU COUNTY.
304-20(PW)

4. **HEARING ON PROPOSED LOCAL LAW NO. -2021**

A LOCAL LAW TO AMEND ARTICLE X OF THE NASSAU COUNTY ADMINISTRATIVE CODE TO REQUIRE WRITTEN NOTIFICATION TO TOWNS, VILLAGES, CITIES AND SCHOOL DISTRICTS OF AGREEMENTS PROPOSED TO BE ENTERED INTO BY NASSAU COUNTY FOR THE OPERATION OF MULTI-UNIT SHELTERS TO BE LOCATED WITHIN SUCH JURISDICTIONS. 151-21(LE)

5. **HEARING ON PROPOSED LOCAL LAW NO.-2021**

A LOCAL LAW FURTHER POSTPONING THE DATE OF THE 2021 SALE OF TAX LIENS PURSUANT TO ARTICLE 2 OF TITLE B OF CHAPTER V OF THE NASSAU COUNTY ADMINISTRATIVE CODE. 159-21(CE)

6. **HEARING ON PROPOSED LOCAL LAW NO. -2021**

A LOCAL LAW TO IMPOSE CERTAIN REQUIREMENTS ON THE DEPARTMENT OF ASSESSMENT WITH RESPECT TO EVIDENCE PRESENTED AT SMALL CLAIMS ASSESSMENT REVIEW HEARINGS. 175-21(LE)

7. **HEARING ON PROPOSED LOCAL LAW NO. -2021**

A LOCAL LAW TO AMEND THE NASSAU COUNTY ADMINISTRATIVE CODE WITH RESPECT TO VENDOR INTEGRITY AND DISCLOSURE DOCUMENTS FOR MUNICIPAL CORPORATIONS AND DISTRICTS AS DEFINED BY § 119-N OF THE NEW YORK STATE GENERAL MUNICIPAL LAW. 176-21(LE)

8. **VOTE ON PROPOSED LOCAL LAW NO.-2021**

A LOCAL LAW TO PROHIBIT THE SMOKING OR VAPING OF CANNABIS IN ALL COUNTY OWNED PROPERTIES. 143-21(LE)

9. **VOTE ON PROPOSED LOCAL LAW NO.-2021**

A LOCAL LAW TO AMEND ARTICLE X OF THE NASSAU COUNTY ADMINISTRATIVE CODE TO REQUIRE WRITTEN NOTIFICATION TO TOWNS, VILLAGES, CITIES AND SCHOOL DISTRICTS OF AGREEMENTS PROPOSED TO BE ENTERED INTO BY NASSAU COUNTY FOR THE OPERATION OF MULTI-UNIT SHELTERS TO BE LOCATED WITHIN SUCH JURISDICTIONS. 151-21(LE)

10. **VOTE ON PROPOSED LOCAL LAW NO.-2021**

A LOCAL LAW FURTHER POSTPONING THE DATE OF THE 2021 SALE OF TAX LIENS PURSUANT TO ARTICLE 2 OF TITLE B OF CHAPTER V OF THE NASSAU COUNTY ADMINISTRATIVE CODE. 159-21(CE)

11. **VOTE ON PROPOSED LOCAL LAW NO. -2021**

A LOCAL LAW TO IMPOSE CERTAIN REQUIREMENTS ON THE DEPARTMENT OF ASSESSMENT WITH RESPECT TO EVIDENCE PRESENTED AT SMALL CLAIMS ASSESSMENT REVIEW HEARINGS. 175-21(LE)

12. **VOTE ON PROPOSED LOCAL LAW NO. -2021**

A LOCAL LAW TO AMEND THE NASSAU COUNTY ADMINISTRATIVE CODE WITH RESPECT TO VENDOR INTEGRITY AND DISCLOSURE DOCUMENTS FOR MUNICIPAL CORPORATIONS AND DISTRICTS AS DEFINED BY § 119-N OF THE NEW YORK STATE GENERAL MUNICIPAL LAW. 176-21 (LE)

13. **ORDINANCE NO. 45-2021**

AN ORDINANCE MAKING CERTAIN DETERMINATIONS PURSUANT TO THE STATE ENVIRONMENTAL REVIEW ACT AND AUTHORIZING THE COUNTY EXECUTIVE OF THE COUNTY OF NASSAU TO ACCEPT, ON BEHALF OF THE COUNTY OF NASSAU, AN OFFER OF PURCHASE FROM INWOOD 175, LLC OF CERTAIN PREMISES LOCATED IN THE TOWN OF HEMPSTEAD, COUNTY OF NASSAU, STATE OF NEW YORK, SAID PROPERTY KNOWN AS SECTION 40, BLOCK L, LOTS 5, 55, 56, 57, 59, 117, 2579 AND 2585 ON THE LAND AND TAX MAP OF THE COUNTY OF NASSAU, AND AUTHORIZING THE COUNTY EXECUTIVE TO EXECUTE A CONTRACT OF SALE, DEED AND ALL PERTINENT DOCUMENTS IN CONNECTION THEREWITH TO CONSUMMATE THE SALE. 148-21(PW)

14. **ORDINANCE NO. 46-2021**

AN ORDINANCE TO AMEND ORDINANCE NO. 105-1985 AS AMENDED BY ORDINANCES 154-1989, 103-2000, AND 203-2001 WITH REGARD TO MAINTENANCE AND GUARANTEES ASSOCIATED WITH ROAD OPENINGS IN NASSAU COUNTY. 174-21(LE)

15. **ORDINANCE NO. 47-2021**

AN ORDINANCE SUPPLEMENTAL TO THE ANNUAL APPROPRIATION ORDINANCE IN CONNECTION WITH THE DEPARTMENT OF HUMAN SERVICES. 152-21(OMB)

16. **ORDINANCE NO. 48-2021**

AN ORDINANCE SUPPLEMENTAL TO THE ANNUAL APPROPRIATION ORDINANCE IN CONNECTION WITH THE DEPARTMENT OF HEALTH. 153-21(OMB)

17. **ORDINANCE NO. 49-2021**

AN ORDINANCE SUPPLEMENTAL TO THE ANNUAL APPROPRIATION ORDINANCE IN CONNECTION WITH THE CORRECTIONAL CENTER. 154-21(OMB)

18. **RESOLUTION NO. 73-2021**

A RESOLUTION AUTHORIZING THE COUNTY EXECUTIVE TO EXECUTE AN AGREEMENT WITH THE BAYVILLE FIRE COMPANY FOR THE PROCUREMENT OF AN AMBULANCE. 170-21(CE)

19. **RESOLUTION NO. 74-2021**

A RESOLUTION AUTHORIZING THE COUNTY EXECUTIVE TO EXECUTE AN INTER-MUNICIPAL AGREEMENT WITH THE BETHPAGE FIRE DISTRICT IN RELATION TO PURCHASING A DIGITAL SIGN AND AUTOMATED CPR EQUIPMENT. 171-21(CE)

20. **RESOLUTION NO. 75 -2021**

A RESOLUTION AUTHORIZING THE COUNTY EXECUTIVE TO EXECUTE AN AMENDMENT TO AN AGREEMENT WITH THE NEW YORK STATE ENVIRONMENTAL FACILITIES CORPORATION IN RELATION TO THE NEW YORK STATE SEPTIC SYSTEM REPLACEMENT PROGRAM. 160-21(PW)

21. **RESOLUTION NO. 76-2021**

A RESOLUTION AUTHORIZING THE COUNTY EXECUTIVE TO EXECUTE (1) AN AGREEMENT WITH AMERICAN TRAFFIC SOLUTIONS, INC., D/B/A VERRA MOBILITY, AND (2) AGREEMENTS WITH SCHOOL DISTRICTS, IN RELATION TO THE COUNTY'S SCHOOL BUS STOP-ARM PHOTO ENFORCEMENT PROGRAM. 172-21(TV)

22. **RESOLUTION NO. 77-2021**

A RESOLUTION AUTHORIZING THE COUNTY EXECUTIVE OF THE COUNTY OF NASSAU TO EXECUTE, ON BEHALF OF THE COUNTY OF NASSAU, AN AGREEMENT WITH THE LONG ISLAND RAILROAD IN RELATION TO THE DESIGN, CONSTRUCTION, INSTALLATION, AND MAINTENANCE OF ADDITIONAL GRADE CROSSING PROTECTION DEVICES AT THE ATLANTIC AVENUE RAILROAD CROSSING IN THE HAMLET OF OCEANSIDE. 161-21(PW)

23. **RESOLUTION NO. 78-2021**

AUTHORIZING THE COUNTY OF NASSAU TO PARTICIPATE IN A TRANSPORTATION PROJECT PROVIDING FOR CUTTER MILL ROAD/ BAYVIEW AVENUE BRIDGE OVER LIRR REHABILITATION, PIN 0761.19, BIN 3364560 AND AUTHORIZING THE COUNTY EXECUTIVE OF THE COUNTY OF NASSAU TO EXECUTE THE AGREEMENT ON BEHALF OF THE COUNTY WITH THE NEW YORK STATE DEPARTMENT OF TRANSPORTATION FOR THE ADVANCEMENT OF SAID AID FOR TRANSPORTATION PROJECTS IN NASSAU COUNTY, NEW YORK. 156-21(PW)

24. **RESOLUTION NO. 79-2021**

A RESOLUTION AUTHORIZING THE COUNTY EXECUTIVE TO EXECUTE AN AMENDMENT TO A GRANT AGREEMENT BETWEEN THE COUNTY OF NASSAU, ACTING ON BEHALF OF THE DEPARTMENT OF PARKS, RECREATION AND MUSEUMS AND THE ART GUILD OF PORT WASHINGTON, INC. 155-21(PK)

25. **RESOLUTION NO. 80-2021**

A RESOLUTION AUTHORIZING THE COUNTY EXECUTIVE TO EXECUTE A GRANT AGREEMENT BETWEEN THE COUNTY OF NASSAU, ACTING ON BEHALF OF THE DEPARTMENT OF PARKS, RECREATION AND MUSEUMS, AND THE FRIENDS OF NASSAU COUNTY BAILEY ARBORETUM. 157-21(PK)

26. **RESOLUTION NO. 81-2021**

A RESOLUTION REQUESTING THE LEGISLATURE OF THE STATE OF NEW YORK TO ENACT AND THE GOVERNOR TO APPROVE AN ACT IN RELATION TO AUTHORIZING THE COUNTY OF NASSAU TO TRANSFER OWNERSHIP OF CERTAIN PARKLAND TO THE VILLAGE OF FREEPORT. 168-21(CE)

27. **RESOLUTION NO. 82-2021**

A RESOLUTION TO ACCEPT A GIFT OFFERED BY THE NASSAU COUNTY POLICE DEPARTMENT FOUNDATION TO THE NASSAU COUNTY POLICE DEPARTMENT. 158-21(PD)

28.

RESOLUTION NO. 83-2021

A RESOLUTION AUTHORIZING AND DIRECTING THE NASSAU COUNTY DEPARTMENT OF INFORMATION TECHNOLOGY TO PROVIDE LEGISLATIVE STAFF “READ ONLY” ACCESS TO THE COUNTY’S ELECTRONIC CONTRACT ROUTING SYSTEM (“ECRS”). 173-21(LE)

29.

RESOLUTION NO. 84-2021

A RESOLUTION TO AUTHORIZE THE COUNTY ASSESSOR AND/OR THE COUNTY TREASURER AND/OR THE RECEIVER OF TAXES OF THE TOWN OF HEMPSTEAD TO PARTIALLY EXEMPT CERTAIN REAL PROPERTIES SITUATED IN VARIOUS SCHOOL DISTRICTS, ASSESSED TO DESIGNATED OWNERS APPEARING ON THE ASSESSMENT ROLLS FOR THE SPECIFIED SCHOOL AND/OR COUNTY YEARS PURSUANT TO THIS RESOLUTION; PURSUANT TO THE REAL PROPERTY TAX LAW, THE COUNTY GOVERNMENT LAW OF NASSAU COUNTY AND THE NASSAU COUNTY ADMINISTRATIVE CODE. 163-21(AS)

30.

RESOLUTION NO. 85-2021

A RESOLUTION TO AUTHORIZE THE COUNTY ASSESSOR AND/OR THE COUNTY TREASURER AND/OR THE RECEIVER OF TAXES OF THE TOWN OF HEMPSTEAD TO CANCEL RESTORED TAX CERTAIN REAL PROPERTIES SITUATED IN VARIOUS SCHOOL DISTRICTS, ASSESSED TO DESIGNATED OWNERS APPEARING ON THE ASSESSMENT ROLLS FOR THE SPECIFIED SCHOOL AND/OR COUNTY YEARS PURSUANT TO THIS RESOLUTION; PURSUANT TO THE REAL PROPERTY TAX LAW, THE COUNTY GOVERNMENT LAW OF NASSAU COUNTY AND THE NASSAU COUNTY ADMINISTRATIVE CODE. 164-21(AS)

31.

RESOLUTION NO. 86-2021

A RESOLUTION TO AUTHORIZE THE COUNTY ASSESSOR AND/OR THE COUNTY TREASURER AND/OR THE RECEIVER OF TAXES OF THE TOWN OF HEMPSTEAD TO CORRECT ERRONEOUS CERTAIN REAL PROPERTIES SITUATED IN VARIOUS SCHOOL DISTRICTS, ASSESSED TO DESIGNATED OWNERS APPEARING ON THE ASSESSMENT ROLLS FOR THE SPECIFIED SCHOOL AND/OR COUNTY YEARS PURSUANT TO THIS RESOLUTION; PURSUANT TO THE REAL PROPERTY TAX LAW, THE COUNTY GOVERNMENT LAW OF NASSAU COUNTY AND THE NASSAU COUNTY ADMINISTRATIVE CODE. 165-21(AS)

32.

RESOLUTION NO. 87-2021

A RESOLUTION TO AUTHORIZE THE COUNTY ASSESSOR AND/OR THE COUNTY TREASURER AND/OR THE RECEIVER OF TAXES OF THE TOWN OF NORTH HEMPSTEAD TO PARTIALLY EXEMPT CERTAIN REAL PROPERTIES SITUATED IN VARIOUS SCHOOL DISTRICTS, ASSESSED TO DESIGNATED OWNERS APPEARING ON THE ASSESSMENT ROLLS FOR THE SPECIFIED SCHOOL AND/OR COUNTY YEARS PURSUANT TO THIS RESOLUTION; PURSUANT TO THE REAL PROPERTY TAX LAW, THE COUNTY GOVERNMENT LAW OF NASSAU COUNTY AND THE NASSAU COUNTY ADMINISTRATIVE CODE. 166-21(AS)

33.

RESOLUTION NO. 88-2021

A RESOLUTION TO AUTHORIZE THE COUNTY ASSESSOR AND/OR THE COUNTY TREASURER AND/OR THE RECEIVER OF TAXES OF THE TOWN OF OYSTER BAY TO PARTIALLY EXEMPT CERTAIN REAL PROPERTIES SITUATED IN VARIOUS SCHOOL DISTRICTS, ASSESSED TO DESIGNATED OWNERS APPEARING ON THE ASSESSMENT ROLLS FOR THE SPECIFIED SCHOOL AND/OR COUNTY YEARS PURSUANT TO THIS RESOLUTION; PURSUANT TO THE REAL PROPERTY TAX LAW, THE COUNTY GOVERNMENT LAW OF NASSAU COUNTY AND THE NASSAU COUNTY ADMINISTRATIVE CODE. 167-21(AS)

A RESOLUTION PROVIDING FOR THE ISSUANCE OF A WARRANT DIRECTING THE TREASURER OF THE COUNTY OF NASSAU TO PAY TO THE SUPERVISORS OF THE SEVERAL TOWNS AND TO THE TREASURERS OF THE SEVERAL VILLAGES AND CITIES WITHIN THE COUNTY OF NASSAU, THE SUMS AS APPORTIONED BY THE NASSAU COUNTY LEGISLATURE BASED ON A REPORT FILED BY THE COUNTY TREASURER AND THE COUNTY CLERK, SHOWING DEPOSITS FROM MORTGAGE TAXES FOR THE QUARTER BEGINNING JANUARY 1, 2021 THROUGH MARCH 31, 2021; PURSUANT TO THE COUNTY GOVERNMENT LAW OF NASSAU COUNTY AND THE NASSAU COUNTY ADMINISTRATIVE CODE. 150-21(LE)

NOTICE IS HEREBY GIVEN that the Nassau County Executive has executed the following personal service contracts, copies of which are on file with the Office of the Clerk of the Nassau County Legislature. These contracts are listed for informational purposes only.

County of Nassau acting on behalf of Housing and Homeless Services and Bethany House of Nassau County Corp. \$90,000.00. RE: ESG-CV. ID# CQHI21000009.

County of Nassau acting on behalf of Human Services and Sid Jacobson Jewish Community Center. \$97,549.00. RE: OFA Sis Jacobson E. ID# CQHS21000007.

County of Nassau acting on behalf of Human Services and EAC, Inc. \$352,000.00. RE: OFA EAC CM EISEP. ID# CQHS21000013.

County of Nassau acting on behalf of Human Services and Long Beach Reach, Inc. \$400,000.00. RE: Youth Development. ID# CQHS21000031.

County of Nassau acting on behalf of Human Services and Long Beach Reach, Inc. \$240,000.00. RE: Youth Development. ID# CQHS21000032.

County of Nassau acting on behalf of Housing and Homeless Services and Gospel of Peace International Inc. \$55,000.00. RE: ESG-CV. ID# CQHI210000106.

County of Nassau acting on behalf of the Police Department and North American Family Institute, Inc. \$.01. RE: Youth & Police Initiative Program. ID# CLPD21000002.

THE NASSAU COUNTY LEGISLATURE
WILL CONVENE THE NEXT
COMMITTEE MEETINGS ON
MONDAY, JUNE 14, 2021 at 1:00PM
AND
FULL LEGISLATURE MEETING ON
MONDAY, JUNE 28, 2021 AT 1:00PM

PROPOSED LOCAL LAW -2021

A Local Law to impose certain requirements on the Department of Assessment with respect to evidence presented at Small Claims Assessment Review Hearings.

WHEREAS, pursuant to Title I or Article 7 of the Real Property Tax Law or under small claims assessment review (SCAR) law provided by Title 1-A of Article 7 of the Real Property Tax Law, Nassau County residents may seek judicial review of the Assessment Review Commission's determination of their property's assessed value; and

WHEREAS, residents deserve transparency, and those who seek judicial review should be informed of the evidence that the County will use to support its assessment; and

WHEREAS, the County should only be able to introduce evidence that it used to determine a property's assessed value; now, therefore,

BE IT ENACTED by the County Legislature of the County of Nassau as follows:

Section I. § 6-36.0 of Chapter VI, Title A of the Nassau County Administrative Code is added to read as follows:

§6-36.0. Small Claims Assessment Review Disclosure Requirements. For any pro se petitioner who files a petition for judicial review under Title 1 of Article 7 of the Real Property Tax Law or under small claims assessment review (SCAR) law provided by Title 1-A of Article 7 of the Real Property Tax Law, no later than thirty (30) days prior to a hearing on such petition, the Department of Assessment shall mail a notice setting forth the evidentiary proof that the pro se petitioner may present at such hearing. In addition, no later than thirty days prior to such hearing, the Department of Assessment shall disclose the evidence it will present to pro se petitioners. Failure to timely disclose such proof shall preclude the Department from offering evidence at the hearing. Further, the Department of Assessment shall only present evidence that it used to determine the assessed value in dispute and is precluded from offering any other evidence to support its determination.

§2. Severability. If any clause, sentence, paragraph, subdivision, section, or part of this law or the application thereof to any person, individual, corporation, firm, partnership, entity, or circumstance shall be adjudged by any court of competent jurisdiction to be invalid or unconstitutional, such order or judgment shall not affect, impair, or invalidate the remainder thereof, but shall be confined in its operation to the clause, sentence, paragraph, subdivision, section, or part of this law, or in its application to the person, individual, corporation, firm, partnership, entity, or circumstance directly involved in the controversy in which such order or judgment shall be rendered.

§3. It is hereby determined, pursuant to the provisions of the State Environmental Quality Review Act, 8 N.Y.E.C.L. section 0101 et seq. and its implementing regulations, Part 617 of 6 N.Y.C.R.R., and Section 1611 of the County Government Law of Nassau County, that the imposition of a hotel and motel occupancy tax and distribution of revenue pursuant to Title 24 of the Miscellaneous Laws of Nassau County, as amended, are "Type II" Actions within the meaning of Section 617 .5(c)(20) of 6 N.Y.C.R.R. ("routine or continuing agency administration and management, not including new programs or major reordering of priorities that may affect the environment"), and, accordingly, are of a class of actions which do not have a significant effect on the environment; and no further review is required.

§ 3. This local law shall take effect immediately.

PROPOSED LOCAL LAW

-2021

A Local Law to amend the Nassau County Administrative Code with respect to vendor integrity and disclosure documents for Municipal corporations and districts as defined by § 119-N of the New York State General Municipal Law

WHEREAS, as authorized pursuant to Article 5-G of the New York State General Municipal Law, Nassau County enters into agreements with municipal corporations and districts to, amongst other reasons, effectuate community revitalization projects, which benefit the health, safety, and well-being of Nassau County residents; and

WHEREAS, as part of the process, municipal corporations and districts are required to Submit vendor integrity and disclosure document, to the County prior to every contract award, renewal, or extension, which are valid for six months; and

WHEREAS, the six-month period causes undue delay in the processing of inter-municipal agreements with no accompanying benefit, as elected officials who govern municipal corporations and districts receive no pecuniary benefit from entering into such agreements; and

WHEREAS, important projects have been unnecessarily stalled as a result of this requirement; and

WHEREAS, the Nassau County Legislature wishes to require municipalities and districts to update their vendor integrity and disclosure documents only when a new person is elected or appointed to an elected position; now therefore,

BE IT ENACTED by the County Legislature of the County of Nassau as follows:

Section I. Paragraph c. is added to Article XI, Title B, § 1124 of the Nassau County Charter to read as follows:

c) Notwithstanding paragraphs a. and b. of this section, a municipal corporation or district, as defined by New York State General Municipal Law § 119-n, that enters into an agreement with Nassau County pursuant to Article 5-G of the New York State General Municipal Law

shall only be required to provide updated vendor integrity and disclosure documents when an individual is newly elected or appointed to a duly elected position within said municipal corporation or district.

§2. Severability.

If any section or subdivision of this title is held to be wholly or partially invalid by a final decree or a court of competent jurisdiction, the remainder of this title shall be valid, and no other section or subsection shall be deemed invalid.

§3. SEQRA Determination

If it is hereby determined, pursuant to the provisions of the State Environmental Quality Review Act, 8 N.Y.E.C.L. Section 0101 et seq. and its implementing regulations, Part 617 of 6 N.Y.C.R.R., and Section 1611 of the County Government Law of Nassau County, that the adoption of this local law is a "Type II" Action within the meaning of Section 617(c)(20) and (27) of 6 N.Y.C.R.R., and, accordingly is of a class of actions which do not have a significant effect on the environment, and no further review is required.

§ 4. Effective Date

This law shall take effect immediately.

PROPOSED LOCAL LAW -2021

A Local Law to amend Article X of the Nassau County Administrative Code to require written notification to Towns, Villages, Cities and School Districts of agreements proposed to be entered into by Nassau County for the operation of multi-unit shelters to be located within such jurisdictions.

BE IT ENACTED by the County Legislature of Nassau County as follows:

Section 1. A new title is hereby added to Article X. Department of Public Welfare of the Nassau County Administrative Code as follows:

TITLE A SHELTER AGREEMENT NOTIFICATION

Section	10-1.0	Legislative Intent
	10-1.1	Required Notifications
	10.1.2	Severability

§10-1.0. Legislative Intent. The purpose of this law is to ensure that elected representatives of the county, towns, villages, cities and school districts are appropriately notified prior to the execution by Nassau County of any contract or agreement for the operation of multi-unit shelters within such jurisdictions. This law will enhance transparency and foster communication between Nassau County and its municipal partners to ensure that all appropriate non-County approvals and permits are secured and that all proposed multi-unit shelters may operate in manner that is fully protective of the life, health, safety and welfare of its occupants.

§10. 1. 1. Required Notifications. At least ten businesses days prior to the execution of any contract or agreement for the provision of shelter facilities in Nassau County, the Department of Social Services shall provide written notification including the proposed terms of any such contract or agreement to the county legislator representing the district where the proposed shelter facilities are to be located, and the town, village, city and school district wherein the proposed shelter facility is to be located.

§ 10.1.2. Severability. If any clause, sentence, paragraph, subdivision, section or part of this local law or the application thereof to any person, individual, corporation, firm, partnership, entity or circumstance shall be adjudged by any court of competent jurisdiction to be invalid or unconstitutional, such order or judgment shall not affect, impair, effect or invalidate the remainder thereof, but shall be confined in its operation to the clause, sentence, paragraph, subdivision, section or part of this law or in its application to the person, individual, corporation, firm, partnership, entity or circumstance directly involved in the controversy in which such order or judgment shall

be rendered.

§2. S.E.Q.R.A. It is hereby determined, pursuant to the provisions of the State Environmental Quality Review Act, 8 N.Y.E.C.L., section 0101 et seq. and its implementing regulations, Part 617 of 6 N.Y.C.R.R., and section 1611 of the County Government Law of Nassau County, that the adoption of this local law is a "Type II" Action within the meaning of Section 617.5(c)(20) and (27) of 6 N.Y.C.R.R., and, accordingly, is of a class of actions which do not have a significant effect on the environment; and no further review is required.

§3. Effective date. This local law shall take effect immediately.

PROPOSED LOCAL LAW NO. -2021

A LOCAL LAW FURTHER POSTPONING THE DATE OF THE 2021 SALE OF
TAX LIENS PURSUANT TO ARTICLE 2 OF TITLE B OF CHAPTER V OF THE
NASSAU COUNTY ADMINISTRATIVE CODE.

WHEREAS, Nassau County Administrative Code Section 5-33.0(a) provides that the Nassau County Treasurer may sell tax liens as a means of enforcing the collection of real estate taxes; and

WHEREAS, Nassau County Administrative Code Section 5-33.0(d) provides that the sale of tax liens shall commence on a day designated by the County Treasurer in the year following the year for which the tax lien was obtained and shall continue until all tax liens are sold and the County Treasurer declares the sale completed; and

WHEREAS, Nassau County Administrative Code Section 5-36.0 provides for the publication of a notice specifying the approximate date on which the tax lien sale shall take place; and

WHEREAS, Nassau County Administrative Code Section 5-36.0(c) requires that the content of such notice shall be substantially as set forth in Section 5-36.0(c), which includes language that the tax lien will be advertised and “on or about or around the day of February thereafter sold”; and

WHEREAS, Nassau County Administrative Code Section 5-37.0 requires the County Treasurer to mail a notice of tax lien to the name and address of the record owner

or occupant and mortgagee of real estate on which the tax lien is to be sold and further requires additional newspaper publications in advance of the sale date; and

WHEREAS, the State Legislature in recognition of the financial adversity caused by the ongoing statewide COVID-19 public health emergency adopted chapter 381 of the laws of 2020 and chapter 73 of the laws of 2021, which granted a temporary stay through May 1, 2021 for tax lien sales respectively for residential and commercial properties the owners of which filed a COVID-19 declaration of hardship; and

WHEREAS, in light of the continuing economic difficulties caused by the COVID-19 public health emergency, the State Legislature adopted chapter 104 of 2021 which extended the date of the temporary stay on tax lien sales for COVID-19 hardship declarants through August 31, 2021; and

WHEREAS, in order to provide relief to economically distressed Nassau County property owners and in the interest of administrative efficiency, the County Legislature adopted Local Law No. 2-2021 which authorized the Treasurer to postpone the 2021 tax lien sale to be held pursuant to Nassau County Administrative Code sections 5-36.0(c), 5-33.0(d) and 5-37.0 from February 16, 2021 to on or about May 3, 2021; and

WHEREAS, in light of the impending adoption of the chapter 104 of 2021 and the ongoing economic hardships being suffered by many Nassau County property owners, the Treasurer announced that the May 5, 2021 tax lien sale was being postponed;

NOW THEREFORE BE IT ENACTED, by the County Legislature of the County of Nassau, as follows:

Section 1. Notwithstanding the provisions set forth in Nassau County Administrative Code Sections 5-36.0(c), 5-33.0(d) and 5-37.0 or any other provision to the contrary, the tax liens referenced in such subdivisions, to the extent they relate to tax liens that were to be sold on May 5, 2021, shall be sold on a date to be designated by the County

Treasurer which shall be on or after August 31, 2021. The County Treasurer shall provide all required mailings and notices and otherwise publish any required advertisements in accordance with the provisions of Article 2 of Title B of Chapter V of the Nassau County Administrative Code at such time as would be consistent with the tax lien sale date designated pursuant to this local law. To the extent that the Nassau County Treasurer has mailed or provided notice or otherwise published any advertisements of such sale of tax liens indicating a sale date earlier than August 31, 2021, the Nassau County Treasurer is directed to mail, provide and/or publish revised notices or advertisements consistent with the tax lien sale date designated pursuant to the provisions of this local law and otherwise in accordance with the provisions of Article 2 of Title B of Chapter V of the Nassau County Administrative Code.

§ 2. It is hereby determined, pursuant to the provisions of the State Environmental Quality Review Act, 8 N.Y.E.C.L. section 0101 et seq. and its implementing regulations, Part 617 of 6 N.Y.C.R.R., that this is a “Type II” Action within the meaning of Section 617.5(c)(20) of 6 N.Y.C.R.R. (“routine or continuing agency administration and management, not including new programs or major reordering of priorities that may affect the environment”), and, accordingly, are of a class of actions which do not have a significant effect on the environment; and no further review is required.

§ 3. This local law shall take effect immediately and shall be deemed to have been in full force and effect on May 1, 2021.

PROPOSED LOCAL LAW -2021

A LOCAL LAW TO PROHIBIT THE SMOKING OR VAPING OF CANNABIS IN ALL COUNTY OWNED PROPERTIES

WHEREAS, the New York State Legislature has passed, and Governor Cuomo has signed the "Marijuana Tax and Reform Act" legalizing the recreational use and sale of cannabis products in New York; and

WHEREAS, individuals over the age of 21 can smoke or vape cannabis products wherever smoking is allowed under the Clean Indoor Air Act; and

WHEREAS, the Clean Indoor Air Act prohibits the smoking or vaping of cannabis products in most workplaces, restaurants, bars, mass transportation, public transportation terminals, schools, colleges and universities, hospitals and indoor arenas; and

WHEREAS, the smoking or vaping of cannabis products in outdoor spaces remain unregulated; and

WHEREAS, it is in interest of Nassau County residents to prohibit the smoking and vaping of cannabis at all County-owned properties including but not limited to County-owned buildings, sidewalks, parking lots, parks, preserves, playgrounds, and beaches; NOW THEREFORE

BE IT ENACTED by the County Legislature of the County of Nassau as follows:

Section 1. Title XX is added to the Miscellaneous Laws of Nassau County as follows:

Title XX

Prohibition against the Smoking or Vaping of Cannabis Products on County-Owned Properties

§ 1. Prohibition against the Smoking or Vaping of Cannabis Products on County-Owned Properties.

a. No person shall smoke or vape cannabis or concentrated cannabis as those terms are defined by §222.00 of the New York State Penal Law on any County-owned property including but not limited to buildings, sidewalks, parking lots, parks, preserves, playgrounds, beaches, campgrounds, or any other county-owned open spaces.

§ 2. Penalties. A violation of section one of this local law shall be punishable by a civil penalty of \$200.00.

§2. Severability. If any clause, sentence, paragraph, subdivision, section, or part of this law or tire application thereof to any person, individual, corporation, firm, partnership, entity, or circumstance shall be adjudged by any court of competent jurisdiction to be invalid or

unconstitutional, such order or judgment shall not affect, impair, or invalidate the remainder thereof, but shall be confined in its operation to the clause, sentence, paragraph, subdivision, section, or part of this law, or in its application to the person, individual, corporation, firm, partnership, entity, or circumstance directly involved in the controversy in which such order or judgment shall be rendered.

§3. It is hereby determined, pursuant to the provisions of the State Environmental Quality Review Act, 8.N.Y.E.C.L. section 0101 et. seq. and its implementing regulations, Part 617 of 6 N.Y.C.R.R., and Section 1611 of the County Government Law of Nassau County, that the adoption of this local law is a "Type II" Action within the meaning of Section 617.5(c)(20) and (27) of 6 N.Y.C.R.R., and, accordingly, is of a class of actions which do not have a significant effect on tire environment; and no further review is required.

§4. This local law shall take effect immediately.

PROPOSED ORDINANCE NO. 47 – 2021

AN ORDINANCE supplemental to an appropriation ordinance in connection with
the Department of Human Services.

WHEREAS, Nassau County has received certain revenue; and

WHEREAS, such funds have not been otherwise appropriated; and

WHEREAS, the County Executive, by communication dated April 19, 2021, addressed to the County Legislature, has recommended the appropriation of such funds not otherwise appropriated; and,

WHEREAS, this supplemental appropriation is within the scope of Section 307 of the County Government Law; now, therefore,

BE IT ORDAINED by the County Legislature of the County of Nassau, as follows:

Section 1. There is hereby appropriated from monies not otherwise appropriated, the following sums of money to the following accounts:

<u>TOTAL AMOUNT</u> (in dollars)	<u>SOURCE OF FUNDS</u>	<u>APPROPRIATED TO:</u>			
		<u>FUND</u>	<u>DEPT. CODE/Index</u>	<u>OBJ. CODE</u>	<u>AMOUNT</u> (in dollars)
\$541,941	New York State Office for the Aging	GRT	HS	BB	\$ 135,485
		GRT	HS	DD	\$ 135,485
		GRT	HS	DE	\$ 270,971

§ 2. This ordinance may be modified to allow for the correction of any mathematical and/or typographical errors subsequent to any approval and adoption of said ordinance without the necessity for a vote to be taken by the County Legislature or by the members of any Standing Committee of said Legislature if said ordinance is passed by the affirmative vote of a majority of said Legislature.

§ 3. It is hereby determined, pursuant to the provisions of the State Environmental Quality Review Act, 8 N.Y.E.C.L. Section 0101 et seq. and its implementing regulations, Part 617 of 6

N.Y.C.R.R., and Section 1611 of the County Government Law of Nassau County, that this supplemental appropriation ordinance is a “Type II” Action within the meaning of Section 617.5(c)(20) of 6 N.Y.C.R.R. (“routine or continuing agency administration and management, not including new programs or major reordering of priorities that may affect the environment”), and, accordingly, is of a class of actions which do not have a significant effect on the environment; and no further review is required.

§ 4. This ordinance shall take effect immediately.

PROPOSED ORDINANCE NO. 48 – 2021

AN ORDINANCE supplemental to an appropriation ordinance in connection with the Department of Health.

WHEREAS, Nassau County has received certain revenue; and

WHEREAS, such funds have not been otherwise appropriated; and

WHEREAS, the County Executive, by communication dated March 29, 2021, addressed to the County Legislature, has recommended the appropriation of such funds not otherwise appropriated; and,

WHEREAS, this supplemental appropriation is within the scope of Section 307 of the County Government Law; now, therefore,

BE IT ORDAINED by the County Legislature of the County of Nassau, as follows:

Section 1. There is hereby appropriated from monies not otherwise appropriated, the following sums of money to the following accounts:

<u>TOTAL AMOUNT</u> (in dollars)	<u>SOURCE OF FUNDS</u>	<u>APPROPRIATED TO:</u>			
		<u>FUND</u>	<u>DEPT. CODE/Index</u>	<u>OBJ. CODE</u>	<u>AMOUNT</u> (in dollars)
\$ 155,000	Health Research, Inc.	GRT	HE	AA	\$ 98,574
		GRT	HE	AB	\$ 50,764
		GRT	HE	DD	\$ 4,280
		GRT	HE	HH	\$ 1,382

§ 2. This ordinance may be modified to allow for the correction of any mathematical and/or typographical errors subsequent to any approval and adoption of said ordinance without the necessity for a vote to be taken by the County Legislature or by the members of any Standing Committee of said Legislature if said ordinance is passed by the affirmative vote of a majority of said Legislature.

§ 3. It is hereby determined, pursuant to the provisions of the State Environmental Quality Review Act, 8 N.Y.E.C.L. Section 0101 et seq. and its implementing regulations, Part 617 of 6

N.Y.C.R.R., and Section 1611 of the County Government Law of Nassau County, that this supplemental appropriation ordinance is a “Type II” Action within the meaning of Section 617.5(c)(20) of 6 N.Y.C.R.R. (“routine or continuing agency administration and management, not including new programs or major reordering of priorities that may affect the environment”), and, accordingly, is of a class of actions which do not have a significant effect on the environment; and no further review is required.

§ 4. This ordinance shall take effect immediately.

PROPOSED ORDINANCE NO. 49 – 2021

AN ORDINANCE supplemental to an appropriation ordinance in connection with the Correctional Center.

WHEREAS, Nassau County has received certain revenue; and

WHEREAS, such funds have not been otherwise appropriated; and

WHEREAS, the County Executive, by communication dated April 19, 2021, addressed to the County Legislature, has recommended the appropriation of such funds not otherwise appropriated; and,

WHEREAS, this supplemental appropriation is within the scope of Section 307 of the County Government Law; now, therefore,

BE IT ORDAINED by the County Legislature of the County of Nassau, as follows:

Section 1. There is hereby appropriated from monies not otherwise appropriated, the following sums of money to the following accounts:

<u>TOTAL AMOUNT</u> (in dollars)	<u>SOURCE OF FUNDS</u>	<u>APPROPRIATED TO:</u>			
		<u>FUND</u>	<u>DEPT. CODE/Index</u>	<u>OBJ. CODE</u>	<u>AMOUNT</u> (in dollars)
\$160,744	Federal Drug Enforcement Agency	GRT	CC	DD	\$ 160,744

§ 2. This ordinance may be modified to allow for the correction of any mathematical and/or typographical errors subsequent to any approval and adoption of said ordinance without the necessity for a vote to be taken by the County Legislature or by the members of any Standing Committee of said Legislature if said ordinance is passed by the affirmative vote of a majority of said Legislature.

§ 3. It is hereby determined, pursuant to the provisions of the State Environmental Quality Review Act, 8 N.Y.E.C.L. Section 0101 et seq. and its implementing regulations, Part 617 of 6 N.Y.C.R.R., and Section 1611 of the County Government Law of Nassau County, that this

supplemental appropriation ordinance is a “Type II” Action within the meaning of Section 617.5(c)(20) of 6 N.Y.C.R.R. (“routine or continuing agency administration and management, not including new programs or major reordering of priorities that may affect the environment”), and, accordingly, is of a class of actions which do not have a significant effect on the environment; and no further review is required.

§ 4. This ordinance shall take effect immediately.

PROPOSED ORDINANCE NO. 126 -2020

AN ORDINANCE TO ADOPT THE CAPITAL BUDGET FOR THE COUNTY OF NASSAU FOR THE FIRST YEAR OF THE FOUR-YEAR CAPITAL PLAN, TO COMMENCE ON JANUARY 1, 2021, PURSUANT TO THE PROVISIONS OF SECTION 310 OF THE COUNTY GOVERNMENT LAW OF NASSAU COUNTY

WHEREAS, section 310 of the County Government Law of Nassau County requires the County Executive to submit to the Nassau County Legislature (“County Legislature”) a proposed four-year Capital Plan (“Capital Plan”), the first year of which shall be referred to as the Proposed Capital Budget (“Proposed Capital Budget”); and

WHEREAS, on the 15th day of October 2020, the County Executive filed with the Clerk of the County Legislature three (3) copies of such Capital Plan and Proposed Capital Budget, together with her capital budget message (“Capital Budget Message”) including a summary and explaining the main features of the Proposed Capital Budget; and

WHEREAS, such Capital Plan includes, pursuant to subdivision a of section 310 of the County Government Law of Nassau County, details, descriptions and projections of proposed capital programs, projects and activities, as well as descriptions and projections regarding all of the proposed funding sources for each capital program, project or activity contained in the Capital Plan; and

WHEREAS, such Capital Plan also includes, pursuant to subdivision a of section 310 of the County Government Law of Nassau County, a report on the outstanding indebtedness of the County and of the Nassau County Interim Finance Authority, a report on previously approved capital programs, projects and activities which have not been completed, a report on authorized but unissued serial bonds, and projections of the County’s outstanding indebtedness assuming completion of pending capital programs, projects and activities and assuming authorization and financing of all proposed capital programs, projects and activities included in such Capital Plan; and

WHEREAS, the County Executive has, pursuant to subdivision a of section 310 of the County Government Law of Nassau County, submitted along with such Capital Plan a Proposed

Capital Budget, including a listing of the capital programs, projects and activities, other than judgments and settlements, which are proposed to be authorized in the first year of the four year capital plan and the cost estimates associated therewith; and

WHEREAS, the County Legislature has, pursuant to subdivision b of section 310 of the County Government Law of Nassau County, made such Capital Plan and Capital Budget Message relating to the Proposed Capital Budget available for public inspection and purchase; and

WHEREAS, the County Legislature has, pursuant to subdivision b of section 310 of the County Government Law of Nassau County, published at least twice, at intervals of one week in the official newspapers, a copy of such Capital Budget Message and duly held a public hearing on such Proposed Capital Budget; and

WHEREAS, the County Legislature has given due consideration and deliberation to each and all of the items which are set forth in such Proposed Capital Budget and to the statements of all persons who were heard at such hearing; now, therefore,

BE IT ORDAINED by the County Legislature of the County of Nassau as follows:

Section 1. In accordance with the Proposed Capital Budget filed by the County Executive with the Clerk of the County Legislature the capital programs, projects and activities, other than judgments and settlements, which are proposed to be authorized in the first year of the four year capital plan and the cost estimates associated therewith, as identified in Appendix A attached hereto and incorporated herein, are hereby approved and adopted by the County Legislature as the Capital Budget of the County of Nassau for the fiscal year beginning January 1, 2021, and ending December 31, 2021.

§ 2. This ordinance, including Appendix A, may be modified to allow for the correction of any mathematical and/or typographical errors subsequent to any approval and adoption of said ordinance without the necessity for a vote to be taken by the County Legislature or by the members of any Standing Committee of said Legislature if said ordinance is passed by the affirmative vote of a majority of said Legislature.

§ 3. This ordinance shall take effect immediately.

PROPOSED ORDINANCE NO. 45 - 2021

AN ORDINANCE MAKING CERTAIN DETERMINATIONS PURSUANT TO THE STATE ENVIRONMENTAL QUALITY REVIEW ACT AND AUTHORIZING THE COUNTY EXECUTIVE OF THE COUNTY OF NASSAU TO ACCEPT, ON BEHALF OF THE COUNTY OF NASSAU, AN OFFER OF PURCHASE FROM INWOOD 175, LLC OF CERTAIN PREMISES LOCATED IN THE TOWN OF HEMPSTEAD, COUNTY OF NASSAU, STATE OF NEW YORK, SAID PROPERTY KNOWN AS SECTION 40, BLOCK L, LOTS 5, 55, 56, 57, 59, 117, 2579 AND 2585 ON THE LAND AND TAX MAP OF THE COUNTY OF NASSAU, AND AUTHORIZING THE COUNTY EXECUTIVE TO EXECUTE A CONTRACT OF SALE, DEED AND ALL PERTINENT DOCUMENTS IN CONNECTION THEREWITH TO CONSUMMATE THE SALE.

WHEREAS, the County of Nassau did heretofore acquire title to the premises;
and

WHEREAS, the premises are no longer required by the County of Nassau for public purposes; and

WHEREAS, Inwood 175, LLC has requested that the County of Nassau convey to it the aforesaid parcel and has made an offer of Three Million Seven Hundred Thousand (\$3,700,000.00) Dollars, pursuant to a certain Contract of Sale, a copy of which is on file in the office of the Clerk of the Nassau County Legislature; and

WHEREAS, in accordance with Section 1611 of the Nassau County Charter and acting in an advisory capacity to the Nassau County Legislature, the Nassau County Planning Commission has reviewed the proposed action and recommended that it be classified as an “Unlisted Action” pursuant to the New York State Environmental Quality Review Act (“SEQRA”) and has further reviewed the Environmental Assessment Form (“EAF”) for the proposed action and recommends that the Nassau County Legislature upon its review of the (“EAF”) and any supporting documentation, if any, determine that

the evidence before it indicates that the proposed action will have no significant environmental impact and does not require further environmental review; and

WHEREAS, the Nassau County Planning Commission, acting in an advisory capacity to the Nassau County Legislature, passed a resolution regarding the proposed action, a copy of such resolution being attached hereto as Appendix A and incorporated herein, recommending that the Nassau County Legislature conclude that no further environmental review or action is required on such proposed action.

THEREFORE, BE IT ORDANED BY THE LEGISLATURE OF THE COUNTY OF NASSAU AS FOLLOWS:

1. That the County Executive be and she is hereby authorized to accept the offer of purchase of Inwood 175, LLC in the sum of Three Million Seven Hundred Thousand (\$3,700,000.00) Dollars for said premises described as Section 40, Block L, Lots 5, 55, 56, 57, 59, 117, 2579 and 2585 on the Land and Tax Map of the County of Nassau subject to all of the terms and conditions as outlined in the contract of sale.

2. That the County Executive be and she is hereby authorized to execute the deed from the County of Nassau, as Grantor, to Inwood 175, LLC, as Grantee, and to execute any ancillary documents and instruments necessary to effectuate the terms of the contract of sale.

3. That it is hereby determined pursuant to the provisions of the New York State Environmental Quality Review Act, 8 N.Y.E.C.L. Section 0101 et seq. and its implementing regulations, Part 617 of 6 N.Y.C.R.R., and Section 1611 of the County Government Law of Nassau County, that the proposed sale of the property has been determined not to have a significant effect on the environment and that no further review is required for the reasons set forth in the attached Determination of Non-Significance;

4. That this Ordinance shall take effect immediately.

PROPOSED ORDINANCE 46-2021

An ordinance to amend Ordinance No. 105-1985 as amended by Ordinances 154-1989, 103-2000, and 203-2001 with regard to maintenance and guarantees associated with road openings in Nassau County.

BE IT ORDAINED by the County Legislature of the County of Nassau as follows:

Section I. Section 2. of Ordinance No. 105-1985 is amended as follows:

Section 2.

- a) No person, association of persons, corporations, municipal corporation, or any other legal entity whatsoever shall be allowed to open and dig upon any County road or in any way alter any curbing, gutter, basin, drainage line, or other works of the County for any purpose without a written permit from the Commissioner of the Department of Public Works of the County.
- b) Notwithstanding any law or rule to the contrary, every person, association of persons, corporations, municipal corporation, and any other legal entity whatsoever that is granted a permit from the Commissioner of the Department of Public Works of the County to open and dig upon any County road or in any way alter curbing, gutter, basin, drainage line, or other works of the County shall agree as a condition to such permit to maintain restorations and correct failed restorations at the direction of the Commissioner of the Department of Public Works for a period not to exceed the useful life of the road, curbing, gutter, basin, drainage line or other work of the County as determined by the Commissioner of the Department of Public Works. The remaining useful life of the road, curbing, gutter, basin, drainage line or other work of the County shall be determined by the Commissioner of the Department of Public Works in his or her sole discretion.
- c) As a condition of such permit, the person, association of persons, corporation, municipal corporation or other legal entity receiving such permit expressly agrees to indemnify, defend and hold harmless the County of Nassau for any claim for injury or damage to persons or property as a result of a defective or failed restoration.
- d) If such maintenance or correction is not made to the satisfaction of the Commissioner of the Department of Public Works pursuant to subsection (b) of this Ordinance, such maintenance or correction may be made by Nassau County and the costs of such maintenance or correction shall be charged back to the permittee.
- e) All restorations required pursuant to subdivision (b) of this section shall be made in conformity with the construction specifications of the public work that was disturbed due to the work performed.
- f) Unless otherwise approved by the Commissioner of the Department

- of Public Works, permanent restoration of temporary patches must be made within sixty days of the placement of the temporary patch.
- g) If such restoration is not made pursuant to subdivision (f) of this section, the restoration may be made by Nassau County and the costs of such restoration shall be charged back to the permittee.
 - h) All restorations required pursuant to this section shall be made within a time period required by the Commissioner of the Department of Public Works.
 - i) Failure to perform restoration activities as required by this Ordinance shall be punishable by a fine of one thousand dollars (\$1000). Each additional day or part of a day in which a violation continues shall constitute a separate violation subject to a five hundred (\$500) fine.
 - j) Any work or other activity described in subdivision (a) of this section which is performed on an emergency basis shall be subject to the requirements and penalties set forth in this section.
 - k) The Office of the County Attorney is authorized to bring a civil action in a court of competent jurisdiction to enforce the provisions of this Section.

§2. Severability.

If any clause, sentence, paragraph, subdivision, section or part of this ordinance or the application thereof to any Permittee, individual, corporation, firm, partnership, entity or circumstance shall be adjudged by any court of competent jurisdiction to be invalid or unconstitutional, such order or judgment shall not affect, impair or invalidate the remainder thereof, but shall be confined in its operation to the clause, sentence, paragraph, subdivision, section or part of this law or in its application to the Permittee, individual, corporation, firm, partnership entity or circumstance directly involved in the controversy in which order or judgment shall be rendered.

§3. State Environmental Quality Review Act Determination

It is hereby determined by the Nassau County Legislature, the lead agency, and pursuant to the provisions of the State Environmental Quality Review Act ("SEQRA"), 8 NYECL section 0101 et seq. and its implementing regulations, Part 617 of 6 NYCRR, and Section 1611 of the County Government Law of Nassau County, that this Ordinance will not have a significant impact on the environment and that no further environmental review or action is required.

§4. Effective Date:

This Ordinance shall take effect immediately.

PROPOSED RESOLUTION NO. 81- 2021

A RESOLUTION REQUESTING THE LEGISLATURE OF THE STATE OF NEW YORK TO ENACT AND THE GOVERNOR TO APPROVE AN ACT IN RELATION TO AUTHORIZING THE COUNTY OF NASSAU TO TRANSFER OWNERSHIP OF CERTAIN PARKLAND TO THE VILLAGE OF FREEPORT

RESOLVED, that the Nassau County Legislature pursuant to Section Two of Article IX of the Constitution of the State of New York, hereby requests the Legislature to enact and the Governor to approve the following bills:

S. 1372

A. 7292

ENACTED: “AN ACT in relation to authorizing the County of Nassau to transfer ownership of certain parkland to the Village of Freeport.”

PROPOSED RESOLUTION NO.

82– 2021

A RESOLUTION TO ACCEPT A GIFT OFFERED BY THE NASSAU COUNTY POLICE DEPARTMENT FOUNDATION TO THE NASSAU COUNTY POLICE DEPARTMENT.

WHEREAS, pursuant to the attached gift agreement, the Nassau County Police Department Foundation (the “Foundation”) has offered to the Nassau County Police Department (“the Department”) a gift in the form of Tide detergent pods and earplugs, valued at a total amount of \$694.48; and

WHEREAS, the said donation will be used by the Nassau County Police Department’s Firearms Training Unit to maintain the Department members’ safety while they perform their essential duties;

WHEREAS, the Nassau County Police Department deems the acceptance of such a gift to be in the best interest of the County of Nassau; now therefore, be it

RESOLVED, that the said gift is gratefully accepted and the County Executive is hereby authorized to direct the Nassau County Police Department to accept the donation and to use the donation in furtherance of the Department’s mission.

PROPOSED RESOLUTION 83 -2021

A resolution authorizing and directing the Nassau County Department of Information Technology to provide legislative staff "read only" access to the county's electronic contract routing system ("ECRS")

WHEREAS, for many years, members of the Nassau County Legislature have been allocated capital funds for community revitalization projects within their legislative districts, which allow the County to provide funding to local municipalities for projects that benefit the health, safety and well-being of residents; and

WHEREAS, the County's processing of the inter-municipal agreements effectuating these projects ("inter-municipal agreements") has inexplicably taken months or even years; and

WHEREAS, municipalities contact legislative offices inquiring about the status of these agreements; and

WHEREAS, to allow legislative offices to timely communicate with municipalities and follow up with County departments, it is critical that legislative staff have access to the County's Electronic Contract Routing System ("ECRS"), and this Legislature wishes to require the same; now, therefore, be it

RESOLVED, that within sixty days of the passage of this resolution by the Nassau County Legislature, the Nassau County Department of Information Technology shall provide legislative Staff with "read only" access to ECRS, which will allow such staff to view information without altering the same; and be it further

RESOLVED, that all County Departments and Offices shall cooperate with the Department of Information Technology in furtherance of the directive within this resolution; and be it further

RESOLVED, that such resolution shall take effect immediately.

A RESOLUTION AUTHORIZING THE COUNTY EXECUTIVE TO
EXECUTE AN AGREEMENT WITH THE BAYVILLE FIRE COMPANY
FOR THE PROCUREMENT OF AN AMBULANCE

WHEREAS, pursuant to New York County Law (“County Law”) Section 225(a), the County is authorized to contract with organizations and other corporations, associations and agencies within the County formed for purposes enumerated therein; and

WHEREAS, the Contractor is an organization as described in County Law Section 225(a); and

WHEREAS, paying for the procurement of an ambulance is authorized pursuant to County Law Section 225(a) in furtherance of the County Fire Mutual Aid Plan; and

WHEREAS, it is desirable for the County and the CONTRACTOR to undertake a certain project as authorized by the County Law through this Agreement; now, therefore, be it

RESOLVED, that the Nassau County Legislature authorizes the County Executive to execute the said agreement with the Great Neck Alert Fire Company; and be it further

RESOLVED that pursuant to the provisions of the State Environmental Quality Review Act (“SEQRA”), 8 N.Y.E.C.L. section 0101 *et seq.* and its

implementing regulations, Part 617 of 6 N.Y.C.R.R., and Section 1611 of the County Government Law of Nassau County said Project is a "Type II Action" within the meaning of Section 617.5(c) of 6 N.Y.C.R.R., and, accordingly, is of a class of actions which do not have a significant effect on the environment and no further review is required.

PROPOSED RESOLUTION NO. 74 – 2021

A RESOLUTION AUTHORIZING THE COUNTY EXECUTIVE TO EXECUTE
AN INTER-MUNICIPAL AGREEMENT WITH THE BETHPAGE FIRE DISTRICT IN
RELATION TO PURCHASING A DIGITAL SIGN AND AUTOMATED CPR
EQUIPMENT

WHEREAS, the County of Nassau (the “County”) and the Bethpage Fire District (the “District”) are authorized, pursuant to Article 5-G of the General Municipal Law to enter into intergovernmental agreements; and

WHEREAS, it is in the best interests of the County and District in procuring a digital sign and CPR equipment for the District (the “Project”); and

WHEREAS, the District has agreed to accept funds from the County in furtherance of this Project; and

WHEREAS, the County and the District believe it to be in the best interest of the taxpayers of their respective municipalities to authorize intermunicipal cooperation with respect to the mutual covenants set forth in the proposed Agreement, on file with the Clerk of the Legislature; now, therefore, be it

RESOLVED, that the Nassau County Legislature authorizes the County Executive to execute the said agreement with the District, in relation to the aforesaid Project; and be it further

RESOLVED that pursuant to the provisions of the State Environmental Quality Review Act (“SEQRA”), 8 N.Y.E.C.L. section 0101 *et seq.* and its implementing regulations, Part 617 of 6 N.Y.C.R.R., and Section 1611 of the County Government Law of Nassau County said Project is a “Type II Action” within the meaning of Section 617.5(c) of 6 N.Y.C.R.R., and, accordingly, is of a class of actions which do not have a significant effect on the environment and no further review is required.

PROPOSED RESOLUTION NO. 75 – 2021

A RESOLUTION AUTHORIZING THE COUNTY EXECUTIVE TO EXECUTE AN AMENDMENT TO AN AGREEMENT WITH THE NEW YORK STATE ENVIRONMENTAL FACILITIES CORPORATION IN RELATION TO THE NEW YORK STATE SEPTIC SYSTEM REPLACEMENT PROGRAM.

WHEREAS, pursuant to Section 99-r of the New York State General Municipal Law, Nassau County and the New York State Environmental Facilities Corporation are authorized to enter into inter-governmental agreements; and

WHEREAS, Nassau County is participating with the New York State Environmental Facilities Corporation in the State Septic System Replacement Program whereby New York State provides grant funding for eligible “septic system projects” to pay for a portion of the cost of replacing cesspools or septic systems in New York State, or otherwise improving such septic systems, in an effort to reduce the environmental and public-health impacts associated with the discharge of effluent from such cesspools and septic systems on groundwater used for drinking water, as well as on threatened or impaired waterbodies, all as is more particularly set forth in the County Participation Agreement dated March 1, 2018 between the County and the New York State Environmental Facilities Corporation (the “County Participation Agreement”); and

WHEREAS, Nassau County and the New York State Environmental Facilities Corporation now desire to amend, restate, and supersede the County Participation Agreement as provided in the First Amended And Restated State Septic System Replacement Program County Participation Agreement (the “Amended and Restated County Participation Agreement”), a copy of which is on file with the Clerk of the Legislature.

NOW, THEREFORE, be it

RESOLVED, that the Nassau County Legislature hereby authorizes the County Executive to execute the said Amended and Restated County Participation Agreement between Nassau County and the New York State Environmental Facilities Corporation, in relation to the aforesaid program.

PROPOSED RESOLUTION NO. 89- 2021

A RESOLUTION PROVIDING FOR THE ISSUANCE OF A WARRANT DIRECTING THE TREASURER OF THE COUNTY OF NASSAU TO PAY TO THE SUPERVISORS OF THE SEVERAL TOWNS AND TO THE TREASURERS OF THE SEVERAL VILLAGES AND CITIES WITHIN THE COUNTY OF NASSAU, THE SUMS AS APPORTIONED BY THE NASSAU COUNTY LEGISLATURE BASED ON A REPORT FILED BY THE COUNTY TREASURER AND THE COUNTY CLERK, SHOWING DEPOSITS FROM MORTGAGE TAXES FOR THE QUARTER BEGINNING January 1, 2021 THROUGH March 31, 2021; PURSUANT TO THE COUNTY GOVERNMENT LAW OF NASSAU COUNTY AND THE NASSAU COUNTY ADMINISTRATIVE CODE.

WHEREAS, the County Treasurer and the County Clerk have heretofore filed with the Clerk of the Nassau County Legislature their joint report showing that the sum of \$26,382,364.55 is the net amount to be credited to the various tax districts in the County of Nassau, in accordance with section 5-1.2 of the Nassau County Administrative Code for the quarterly period commencing January 1, 2021, and ending on March 31, 2021; and

WHEREAS, the Nassau County Legislature in pursuance of said section of the Nassau County Administrative Code is required to issue its warrant for payment to the respective tax districts of the County of seventy-five percent of the amounts credited in such report, including an apportionment to incorporated villages within the towns of the County; now, therefore be it

RESOLVED, that the sum of \$19,786,773.41 consisting of seventy-five percent of the net amount so credited, as above, is hereby apportioned among the respective tax districts and incorporated villages as follows:

To the Supervisor of the

Town of Hempstead the sum of

\$ 8,697,554.14

To the Village Treasurer of the Incorporated
Villages in the Town of Hempstead

VILLAGE	AMOUNT
ATLANTIC BEACH	\$ 22,144.14
BELLEROSE	\$ 5,627.00
CEDARHURST	\$ 63,859.36
EAST ROCKAWAY	\$ 47,895.11
FLORAL PARK	\$ 71,796.99
FREEPORT	\$ 225,916.11
GARDEN CITY	\$ 309,055.49
HEMPSTEAD	\$ 265,969.78
HEWLETT BAY PARK	\$ 11,575.50
HEWLETT HARBOR	\$ 11,844.45
HEWLETT NECK	\$ 3,085.91
ISLAND PARK	\$ 17,492.79
LAWRENCE	\$ 72,100.75
LYNBROOK	\$ 115,440.59
MALVERNE	\$ 40,489.12
MINEOLA	\$ 234.98
NEW HYDE PARK	\$ 17,245.28
ROCKVILLE CENTRE	\$ 211,337.53
SOUTH FLORAL PARK	\$ 2,297.58
STEWART MANOR	\$ 8,667.08
VALLEY STREAM	\$ 172,683.40
WOODSBURGH	\$ 5,292.24

To the Supervisor of the
 Town of North Hempstead, the sum of \$ 2,418,000.10

To the Village Treasurer of the Incorporated
 Villages in the Town of North Hempstead

VILLAGE	AMOUNT
BAXTER ESTATES	\$ 6,900.99
EAST HILLS	\$ 47,478.59
EAST WILLISTON	\$ 10,593.96
FLORAL PARK	\$ 6,835.26
FLOWER HILL	\$ 36,234.76
GARDEN CITY	\$ 400.89
GREAT NECK	\$ 67,548.08
GREAT NECK ESTATES	\$ 19,145.83
GREAT NECK PLAZA	\$ 76,747.26
KENSINGTON	\$ 6,743.81
KINGS POINT	\$ 62,083.19
LAKE SUCCESS	\$ 72,111.35
MANORHAVEN	\$ 20,739.06
MINEOLA	\$ 140,652.42
MUNSEY PARK	\$ 19,725.97
NEW HYDE PARK	\$ 22,069.86
NORTH HILLS	\$ 62,367.91
OLD WESTBURY	\$ 38,820.67
PLANDOME	\$ 11,317.59
PLANDOME HEIGHTS	\$ 4,455.33
PLANDOME MANOR	\$ 8,537.02
PORT WASHINGTON N.	\$ 21,237.94
ROSLYN	\$ 34,848.28
ROSLYN ESTATES	\$ 7,346.20
ROSLYN HARBOR	\$ 9,725.49
RUSSELL GARDENS	\$ 7,515.04
SADDLE ROCK	\$ 7,178.54
SANDS POINT	\$ 42,607.83
THOMASTON	\$ 20,395.56
WESTBURY	\$ 60,498.70
WILLISTON PARK	\$ 24,521.29

To the Supervisor of the
Town of Oyster Bay, the sum of \$ 4,451,636.68

To the Village Treasurer of the Incorporated
Villages in the Town of Oyster Bay

VILLAGE	AMOUNT
BAYVILLE	\$ 33,418.19
BROOKVILLE	\$ 82,361.43
CENTRE ISLAND	\$ 9,506.43
COVE NECK	\$ 4,557.94
EAST HILLS	\$ 264.60
FARMINGDALE	\$ 61,497.56
LATTINGTOWN	\$ 46,087.27
LAUREL HOLLOW	\$ 30,484.72
MASSAPEQUA PARK	\$ 57,929.86
MATINECOCK	\$ 30,150.12
MILL NECK	\$ 25,262.91
MUTTONTOWN	\$ 63,169.66
OLD BROOKVILLE	\$ 37,091.78
OLD WESTBURY	\$ 57,294.92
OYSTER BAY COVE	\$ 30,600.17
ROSLYN HARBOR	\$ 1,849.54
SEA CLIFF	\$ 34,742.00
UPPER BROOKVILLE	\$ 47,516.47

To the City Treasurer of the City of
Long Beach, the sum of \$ 475,599.46

To the City Treasurer or comparable
financial officer of the City of
Glen Cove, the sum of \$ 410,761.61

and be it further

RESOLVED, that the Clerk of the Nassau County Legislature shall execute on behalf of the Legislature a warrant, in pursuance of Section 5-1.2 of the Nassau County Administrative Code, directing the County Treasurer to make payment of the aforesaid sums to the respective officials set forth herein.

PROPOSED RESOLUTION NO. 168 - 2020

A RESOLUTION TO ADOPT THE FOUR-YEAR CAPITAL PLAN FOR THE COUNTY OF NASSAU, TO COMMENCE ON JANUARY 1, 2021, PURSUANT TO THE PROVISIONS OF SECTION 310 OF THE COUNTY GOVERNMENT LAW OF NASSAU COUNTY

WHEREAS, section 310 of the County Government Law of Nassau County requires the County Executive to submit to the Nassau County Legislature (“County Legislature”) a proposed four-year Capital Plan (“Capital Plan”), the first year of which shall be referred to as the Proposed Capital Budget (“Proposed Capital Budget”); and

WHEREAS, on the 15th day of October 2020, the County Executive filed with the Clerk of the County Legislature three (3) copies of such Capital Plan and Proposed Capital Budget, together with her capital budget message (“Capital Budget Message”) including a summary and explaining the main features of the Proposed Capital Budget; and

WHEREAS, such Capital Plan includes, pursuant to subdivision a of section 310 of the County Government Law of Nassau County, details, descriptions and projections of proposed capital programs, projects and activities, as well as descriptions and projections regarding all of the proposed funding sources for each capital program, project or activity contained in the Capital Plan; and

WHEREAS, such Capital Plan also includes, pursuant to subdivision a of section 310 of the County Government Law of Nassau County, a report on the outstanding indebtedness of the County and of the Nassau County Interim Finance Authority, a report on previously approved capital programs, projects and activities which have not been completed, a report on authorized but unissued serial bonds, and projections of the County’s outstanding indebtedness assuming completion of pending capital programs, projects and activities and assuming authorization and financing of all proposed capital programs, projects and activities included in such Capital Plan; and

WHEREAS, the County Executive has, pursuant to subdivision a of section 310 of the County Government Law of Nassau County, submitted along with such Capital Plan a Proposed Capital Budget, including a listing of the capital programs, projects and activities, other than judgments and settlements, which are proposed to be authorized in the first year of the four-year capital plan and the cost estimates associated therewith; and

WHEREAS, the County Legislature has, pursuant to subdivision b of section 310 of the County Government Law of Nassau County, made such Capital Plan and Capital Budget Message relating to the Proposed Capital Budget available for public inspection and purchase; now, therefore, be it

RESOLVED, in accordance with the proposed four-year Capital Plan and Capital Budget filed by the County Executive with the Clerk of the County Legislature on the 15th of October 2020, that the capital programs, projects and activities, other than judgments and settlements, identified in Appendix A attached hereto and incorporated herein, are hereby approved and adopted by the County Legislature as the Capital Plan of the County of Nassau for the fiscal years beginning January 1, 2021, and ending December 31, 2024; and be it further

RESOLVED that this resolution, including Appendix A, may be modified to allow for the correction of any mathematical and/or typographical errors subsequent to any approval and adoption of said resolution without the necessity for a vote to be taken by the County Legislature or by the members of any Standing Committee of said Legislature if said resolution is passed by the affirmative vote of a majority of said Legislature.

PROPOSED RESOLUTION NO. 84 -2021

A resolution to authorize the county assessor and/or the county treasurer and/or the receiver of taxes of the

Town of Hempstead to Partially Exempt

Certain real properties situated in various school districts, assessed to designated owners appearing on the assessment rolls for the specified school and/or county years pursuant to this resolution; pursuant to the real property tax law, the county government law of Nassau County and the Nassau County Administrative Code.

Resolved, that the County Assessor and/or the County treasurer and/or the Receiver of Taxes of the **Town of Hempstead** be and hereby are (is) authorized and directed to act upon the clerical errors on the specified properties as are more particularly described in the County Assessor's petition(s) no(s) 0074-2021 copies of which are annexed hereto and made a part of this resolution and which are on file with the Legislature of the County of Nassau.

PROPOSED RESOLUTION NO. 85-2021

A resolution to authorize the county assessor and/or the county treasurer and/or the receiver of taxes of the

Town of Hempstead to Cancel Restored Taxes

Certain real properties situated in various school districts, assessed to designated owners appearing on the assessment rolls for the specified school and/or county years pursuant to this resolution; pursuant to the real property tax law, the county government law of Nassau County and the Nassau County Administrative Code.

Resolved, that the County Assessor and/or the County treasurer and/or the Receiver of Taxes of the **Town of Hempstead** be and hereby are (is) authorized and directed to act upon the clerical errors on the specified properties as are more particularly described in the County Assessor's petition(s) no(s) 0097-2021, 0098-2021 copies of which are annexed hereto and made a part of this resolution and which are on file with the Legislature of the County of Nassau.

PROPOSED RESOLUTION NO. 86 --2021

A resolution to authorize the county assessor and/or the county treasurer and/or the receiver of taxes of the

Town of Hempstead to Correct Erroneous

Certain real properties situated in various school districts, assessed to designated owners appearing on the assessment rolls for the specified school and/or county years pursuant to this resolution; pursuant to the real property tax law, the county government law of Nassau County and the Nassau County Administrative Code.

Resolved, that the County Assessor and/or the County treasurer and/or the Receiver of Taxes of the **Town of Hempstead** be and hereby are (is) authorized and directed to act upon the clerical errors on the specified properties as are more particularly described in the County Assessor's petition(s) no(s) 0096-2021 copies of which are annexed hereto and made a part of this resolution and which are on file with the Legislature of the County of Nassau.

PROPOSED RESOLUTION NO. 87-2021

A resolution to authorize the county assessor and/or the county treasurer and/or the receiver of taxes of the

Town of North Hempstead to Partially Exempt

Certain real properties situated in various school districts, assessed to designated owners appearing on the assessment rolls for the specified school and/or county years pursuant to this resolution; pursuant to the real property tax law, the county government law of Nassau County and the Nassau County Administrative Code.

Resolved, that the County Assessor and/or the County treasurer and/or the Receiver of Taxes of the **Town of North Hempstead** be and hereby are (is) authorized and directed to act upon the clerical errors on the specified properties as are more particularly described in the County Assessor's petition(s) no(s) 0530-2020, 0042-2021, 0054-2021, 0055-2021, 0057-2021, 0077-2021 copies of which are annexed hereto and made a part of this resolution and which are on file with the Legislature of the County of Nassau.

PROPOSED RESOLUTION NO. 88 -2021

A resolution to authorize the county assessor and/or the county treasurer and/or the receiver of taxes of the

Town of Oyster Bay to Partially Exempt

Certain real properties situated in various school districts, assessed to designated owners appearing on the assessment rolls for the specified school and/or county years pursuant to this resolution; pursuant to the real property tax law, the county government law of Nassau County and the Nassau County Administrative Code.

Resolved, that the County Assessor and/or the County treasurer and/or the Receiver of Taxes of the **Town of Oyster Bay** be and hereby are (is) authorized and directed to act upon the clerical errors on the specified properties as are more particularly described in the County Assessor's petition(s) no(s) 0786-2020, 0787-2020, 0044-2021, 0052-2021, 0053-2021, 0056-2021, 0058-2021, 0070-2021, 0071-2021, 0072-2021, 0076-2021, 0078-2021 copies of which are annexed hereto and made a part of this resolution and which are on file with the Legislature of the County of Nassau.

PROPOSED RESOLUTION NO. 76 – 2021

A RESOLUTION AUTHORIZING THE COUNTY EXECUTIVE TO EXECUTE (1) AN AGREEMENT WITH AMERICAN TRAFFIC SOLUTIONS, INC., D/B/A VERRA MOBILITY, AND (2) AGREEMENTS WITH SCHOOL DISTRICTS, IN RELATION TO THE COUNTY'S SCHOOL BUS STOP-ARM PHOTO ENFORCEMENT PROGRAM.

WHEREAS, Section 1174-a of the New York State Vehicle and Traffic Law ("Section 1174-a") authorizes local governments to establish a demonstration program imposing owner liability for failure of an operator to stop for a school bus displaying a red visual signal and stop-arm, and to enter into agreements with school districts for the installation and operation of school bus photo violation monitoring systems on school buses owned, operated by, or under contract with such school districts;

WHEREAS, as authorized under Section 1174-a, the County adopted Local Law No. 19 of 2019 ("Local Law 19-2019") establishing a demonstration program entitled the "School Bus Photo Violation Monitoring Program" (hereinafter referred to as the "Stop Arm Program") imposing owner liability for failure of an operator to stop for a school bus displaying a red visual signal and stop-arm;

WHEREAS, the County solicited proposals and now desires to enter into an agreement with American Traffic Solutions, Inc., D/B/A Verra Mobility to install, operate, and maintain a school bus photo violation monitoring system on school buses owned, operated by, or under contract with school districts located within the County as part of the Stop Arm Program (the "Camera Operations Contract"), a copy of which is on file with the Clerk of the Legislature; and

WHEREAS, upon execution of the Camera Operations Contract, the County will begin to enter into participation agreements with school districts located within the County who wish to participate in the Stop Arm Program (collectively, the "Participation Agreements"), a template of which is included in the Camera Operations Contract on file with the Clerk of the Legislature.

NOW, THEREFORE, be it

RESOLVED, that the Nassau County Legislature hereby authorizes the County Executive to execute the said Camera Operations Contract, Participation Agreements, and to execute any and all other instruments or ancillary agreements and to take such other action as is necessary to effectuate and carry out the purposes of the Camera Operations Contract and Participation Agreements.

RESOLVED, that pursuant to the provisions of SEQRA, 8 N.Y.E.C.L. section 0101 et seq. and its implementing regulations, Part 617 of 6 N.Y.C.R.R., the proposed Camera Operations Contract and Participation Agreements have been determined not to have any significant adverse impacts on the environment and no further review is required.

PROPOSED RESOLUTION NO. 77 – 2021

A RESOLUTION AUTHORIZING THE COUNTY EXECUTIVE OF THE COUNTY OF NASSAU TO EXECUTE, ON BEHALF OF THE COUNTY OF NASSAU, AN AGREEMENT WITH THE LONG ISLAND RAIL ROAD IN RELATION TO THE DESIGN, CONSTRUCTION, INSTALLATION, AND MAINTENANCE OF ADDITIONAL GRADE CROSSING PROTECTION DEVICES AT THE ATLANTIC AVENUE RAILROAD CROSSING IN THE HAMLET OF OCEANSIDE

RESOLVED, that the County Executive be, and she hereby is, authorized to execute an agreement between the County of Nassau and the Long Island Rail Road in relation to the design, construction, installation, and maintenance of additional grade crossing protection devices at the Atlantic Avenue Railroad Crossing (the "Project"), as is more particularly described in a certain proposed agreement, a copy of which is on file with the Clerk of the Nassau County Legislature; and be it further

RESOLVED, that the County Executive be, and she hereby is, authorized to execute any further documentation in relation to the aforesaid Project.

AUTHORIZING THE COUNTY OF NASSAU TO PARTICIPATE IN A TRANSPORTATION PROJECT PROVIDING FOR CUTTER MILL ROAD/ BAYVIEW AVENUE BRIDGE OVER LIRR REHABILITATION, PIN 0761.19, BIN 3364560 AND AUTHORIZING THE COUNTY EXECUTIVE OF THE COUNTY OF NASSAU TO EXECUTE THE AGREEMENT ON BEHALF OF THE COUNTY WITH THE NEW YORK STATE DEPARTMENT OF TRANSPORTATION FOR THE ADVANCEMENT OF SAID AID FOR TRANSPORTATION PROJECTS IN NASSAU COUNTY, NEW YORK.

WHEREAS, the County of Nassau has identified the above bridge improvement project intended to improve the observed deteriorating structural conditions, improve safety conditions and pedestrian access; and

WHEREAS, this project and associated funding, to advance this project has been identified and approved as part of the County's four years Capital Plan; and

WHEREAS, the County of Nassau has been approved to receive Aid on the above project; and

WHEREAS, the County of Nassau has approved of and desires to advance these projects by making a commitment for 100 percent of its local share of the cost; and

WHEREAS, personal service agreements and/or contracts required to further advance these projects will be submitted for Legislative approval, now therefore, be it

RESOLVED, that the County Legislature hereby authorizes the participation of the County in the project not on the State Highway System, and it be further

RESOLVED, that the County Legislature authorizes the County of Nassau to pay in the first instance 100 percent of the of the project cost, or portion thereof, and it be further

RESOLVED, that the County Executive of the County of Nassau be and is hereby authorized to execute agreement numbers PIN 0761.19 on behalf of the County of Nassau with the New York State Department of Transportation in connection with the advancement or approval of this Project and providing for the administration of the Project and the municipality's first instance funding of project's costs and permanent funding of the local share of the Project costs eligible for Aid and all Project costs within appropriations therefore that are no so eligible, and it is further

RESOLVED, that the County Executive of the County of Nassau be and is hereby authorized to execute all necessary additional agreements, supplemental agreements, certifications or reimbursement requests for Aid on behalf of the County of Nassau with the New York State Department of Transportation in connection with the

advancement or approval of all phases of this Project and providing for the administration of the Project and the municipality's first instance funding of project's costs and permanent funding of the local share of the Project costs eligible for Aid and all Project costs within appropriations therefore that are no so eligible, and it is further

RESOLVED, that a certified copy of this resolution be filed with the New York State Commissioner of Transportation by attaching it to any necessary Agreement in connection with the Project, and it is further

RESOLVED, this Resolution shall take effect immediately.

A RESOLUTION AUTHORIZING THE COUNTY EXECUTIVE TO EXECUTE AN AMENDMENT TO A GRANT AGREEMENT BETWEEN THE COUNTY OF NASSAU, ACTING ON BEHALF OF THE DEPARTMENT OF PARKS, RECREATION AND MUSEUMS AND THE ART GUILD OF PORT WASHINGTON, INC.

WHEREAS, Nassau County (“County”) has received funding from the State of New York pursuant to State Tax Law section 1202-q, and appropriated said funds to the Department of Parks, Recreation and Museums (“Department”) in accordance with said law in order to support programs and activities relevant to the enhancement of cultural in the County; and

WHEREAS, the Department has determined that funding shall be awarded to The Art Guild of Port Washington, Inc., an existing not-for-profit organization located within the County for the continuation and enhancement of cultural growth in the County; now, therefore, be it

RESOLVED, that the Nassau County Legislature authorizes the County Executive to execute the said amended agreement with The Art Guild of Port Washington, Inc.

PROPOSED RESOLUTION NO. 80 – 2021

A RESOLUTION AUTHORIZING THE COUNTY EXECUTIVE TO EXECUTE A GRANT AGREEMENT BETWEEN THE COUNTY OF NASSAU, ACTING ON BEHALF OF THE DEPARTMENT OF PARKS, RECREATION AND MUSEUMS AND THE FRIENDS OF NASSAU COUNTY BAILEY ARBORETUM

WHEREAS, Nassau County (“County”) has received funding from the State of New York pursuant to State Tax Law section 1202-q, and appropriated said funds to the Department of Parks, Recreation and Museums (“Department”) in accordance with said law in order to support programs and activities relevant to the enhancement of cultural in the County; and

WHEREAS, the Department has determined that funding shall be awarded to the Friends of Nassau County Bailey Arboretum, an existing not-for-profit organization located within the County for the continuation and enhancement of cultural growth in the County; now, therefore, be it

RESOLVED, that the Nassau County Legislature authorizes the County Executive to execute the said agreement with the Friends of Nassau County Bailey Arboretum.

EMERGENCY RESOLUTION NO. 3 -2021

AN EMERGENCY RESOLUTION DECLARING AN EMERGENCY FOR IMMEDIATE ACTION UPON A RESOLUTION REQUESTING THE LEGISLATURE OF THE STATE OF NEW YORK TO ENACT AND THE GOVERNOR TO APPROVE AN ACT TO AMEND THE RETIREMENT AND SOCIAL SECURITY LAW, IN RELATION TO DISABILITY RETIREMENT BENEFITS FOR SHERIFFS, DEPUTY SHERIFFS, UNDERSHERIFFS, AND CORRECTION OFFICERS IN NASSAU COUNTY

WHEREAS, the Honorable Richard Nicoletto, Presiding Officer, has submitted to this County Legislature a written recommendation dated May 24, 2021, pursuant to the provisions of the County Government Law of Nassau County; and

WHEREAS, the said recommendation refers to an emergency resolution declaring an emergency for immediate action upon a resolution requesting the Legislature of the State of New York to enact and the Governor to approve an Act to amend the Retirement and Social Security Law, in relation to disability retirement benefits for sheriffs, deputy sheriffs, undersheriffs, and correction officers in Nassau County; and

WHEREAS, the said recommendation is that the County Legislature adopt a resolution declaring that an emergency exists in Nassau County the nature of which is to take immediate action upon the aforesaid resolution; now, therefore be it

RESOLVED, that the County Legislature hereby declares that an emergency exists within Nassau County, the nature of which is to consider and to take immediate action upon the aforesaid resolution now before this Legislature.

EMERGENCY RESOLUTION NO. 4 -2021

AN EMERGENCY RESOLUTION DECLARING AN EMERGENCY FOR IMMEDIATE ACTION UPON A RESOLUTION REQUESTING THE LEGISLATURE OF THE STATE OF NEW YORK TO ENACT AND THE GOVERNOR TO APPROVE AN ACT TO AMEND THE RETIREMENT AND SOCIAL SECURITY LAW, IN RELATION TO PROVIDING DEATH BENEFITS FOR CORRECTION OFFICERS EMPLOYED BY NASSAU COUNTY

WHEREAS, the Honorable Richard Nicoletto, Presiding Officer, has submitted to this County Legislature a written recommendation dated May 24, 2021, pursuant to the provisions of the County Government Law of Nassau County; and

WHEREAS, the said recommendation refers to an emergency resolution declaring an emergency for immediate action upon a resolution requesting the Legislature of the State of New York to enact and the Governor to approve an Act to amend the Retirement and Social Security Law, in relation to providing death benefits for correction officers employed by Nassau County; and

WHEREAS, the said recommendation is that the County Legislature adopt a resolution declaring that an emergency exists in Nassau County the nature of which is to take immediate action upon the aforesaid resolution; now, therefore be it

RESOLVED, that the County Legislature hereby declares that an emergency exists within Nassau County, the nature of which is to consider and to take immediate action upon the aforesaid resolution now before this Legislature.

EMERGENCY RESOLUTION NO. 5 -2021

AN EMERGENCY RESOLUTION DECLARING AN EMERGENCY FOR IMMEDIATE ACTION UPON A RESOLUTION REQUESTING THE LEGISLATURE OF THE STATE OF NEW YORK TO ENACT AND THE GOVERNOR TO APPROVE AN ACT TO AMEND THE RETIREMENT AND SOCIAL SECURITY LAW, IN RELATION TO ACCIDENTAL DISABILITY RETIREMENT FOR DEPUTY SHERIFFS

WHEREAS, the Honorable Richard Nicoletto, Presiding Officer, has submitted to this County Legislature a written recommendation dated May 24, 2021, pursuant to the provisions of the County Government Law of Nassau County; and

WHEREAS, the said recommendation refers to an emergency resolution declaring an emergency for immediate action upon a resolution requesting the Legislature of the State of New York to enact and the Governor to approve an Act to amend the Retirement and Social Security Law, in relation to accidental disability retirement for deputy sheriffs; and

WHEREAS, the said recommendation is that the County Legislature adopt a resolution declaring that an emergency exists in Nassau County the nature of which is to take immediate action upon the aforesaid resolution; now, therefore be it

RESOLVED, that the County Legislature hereby declares that an emergency exists within Nassau County, the nature of which is to consider and to take immediate action upon the aforesaid resolution now before this Legislature.

RESOLUTION NO. 89-A- 2021

A RESOLUTION REQUESTING THE LEGISLATURE OF THE STATE OF NEW YORK TO ENACT AND THE GOVERNOR TO APPROVE AN ACT TO AMEND THE RETIREMENT AND SOCIAL SECURITY LAW, IN RELATION TO DISABILITY RETIREMENT BENEFITS FOR SHERIFFS, DEPUTY SHERIFFS, UNDERSHERIFFS, AND CORRECTION OFFICERS IN NASSAU COUNTY.

RESOLVED, that the Nassau County Legislature pursuant to Section Two of Article IX of the Constitution of the State of New York, hereby requests the Legislature to enact and the Governor to approve the following bills:

S.6710

A.7342

ENACTED: “AN ACT to amend the retirement and social security law, in relation to disability retirement benefits for sheriffs, deputy sheriffs, undersheriffs, and correction officers in Nassau County.”

RESOLUTION NO. 89-B - 2021

A RESOLUTION REQUESTING THE LEGISLATURE OF THE STATE OF NEW YORK TO ENACT AND THE GOVERNOR TO APPROVE AN ACT TO AMEND THE RETIREMENT AND SOCIAL SECURITY LAW, IN RELATION TO PROVIDING DEATH BENEFITS FOR CORRECTION OFFICERS EMPLOYED BY NASSAU COUNTY.

RESOLVED, that the Nassau County Legislature pursuant to Section Two of Article IX of the Constitution of the State of New York, hereby requests the Legislature to enact and the Governor to approve the following bills:

S. 4440

A. 6936

ENACTED: “AN ACT to amend the retirement and social security law, in relation to providing death benefits for correction officers employed by Nassau County.”

RESOLUTION 89-C-2021

A Resolution requesting the Legislature of the state of New York to enact and the Governor to approve an act to amend the Retirement and Social Security Law in relation to Accidental Disability Retirement for Deputy Sheriffs.

RESOLVED, that the Nassau County Legislature pursuant to Section Two of Article IX of the Constitution of the State of New York, hereby requests the Legislature to enact and the Governor to approve the following bills:

S.6092

A. 4392

ENACTED: "AN ACT" to amend the retirement and social security law, in relation to accidental disability retirement for deputy sheriffs.